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People’s expectation toward individual mobility requires more than just a convenient means of transportation. The old 
understanding of cars has become outdated. A car represents individuals’ lifestyles, and it became an integral part of 
their lives. At the same time, the automobile industry has experienced seismic change. Hyundai Motor Company has 
grown rapidly to become one of the largest automakers, backed by world class production capability and superior quality. 
We have now reached a point where we need a qualitative approach to bring bigger ideas and relevant solutions to our 
customers. This is an opportunity to move forward and we have developed a new brand slogan that encapsulates our 
willingness to take a big leap. Led by our new slogan and the new thinking underlying it, we will become a company that 
keeps challenging itself to unlock new possibilities for people and the planet.

www.facebook.com/hyundaiworldwide 
www.youtube.com/hyundaiworldwide

plus.google.com/+hyundai
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BLUE WAVES, a New Beginning

Challenging preconceptions,

overcoming purported limitations,

and changing the minds of our customers.

‘Making the best cars’ 

is the cornerstone of Hyundai’s belief. 

New thinking and sheer determination

have opened up new possibilities.

The fresh and energetic waves that 

Hyundai is stirring up

penetrate our lives today and in the future.



The Most Beloved Auto Brand
Hyundai Motor Company’s brand direction ‘Modern Premium’ is all about providing new values and experiences to even more customers 
through ways that are unique to the brand and which go beyond what customers expect. Hyundai’s brand slogan ‘New Thinking. New 
Possibilities.’ reflects the will of Hyundai Motor Company to move forward in its effort to create the ‘Modern Premium’ values and 
experiences through innovative thinking. The ‘live brilliant’ global campaign embodying the brand direction features moving stories about 
people’s life experiences shared with Hyundai cars. Hyundai Motor Company will continue to strive to make the brand the most trusted 
and loved by customers worldwide.



4,410 Thousand84,469,721

G
lo

ba
l PLA

N
T O

PERATIO
N

US

Korea

India

Turkey

China

Russia
Czech

Brazil

2008

20
09

20
10

2010

20
11

20
12

77
,79

7,8
95

 
84

,46
9,7

21
 

66
,98

5,2
71

 

11
2,5

89
,67

9 

91
,46

3,0
64 

79
,73

6,3
51 

K-
G

A
A

P

K-
IF

RS

Sa
le

s 
Re

ve
n

u
e

400

25
,0

00
,0

00

20
,0

00
,0

00

75,000,000

60,000,000

100,000,000

80,000,000

600

80
0

1,
00

0

200

27 86 

225 

303 

856 

361 

641 

1,911 

<Unit: KRW Million>

FY 2012 Sales Revenue TOTAL



ANNUAL REPORT 201208 09

667 Korea

839 North America

669 Europe
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Credit Rating
2008 2009 2010 2011 2012

Domestic

KIS AA AA AA+ AA+ AAA

NICE AA AA AA+ AA+ AAA

Korea Rating AA AA AA+ AA+ AAA

Overseas
S&P BBB- BBB- BBB BBB BBB+

Moody's Baa3 Baa3 Baa2 Baa2 Baa1

Consolidated Statements of Income
<Unit: KRW Million>

For the Year
K-GAAP K-IFRS*

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 2012

Sales Revenue** 79,736,351 91,463,064 112,589,679 66,985,271 77,797,895 84,469,721 

Operating Income 3,072,043 5,620,241 9,117,742 5,918,492 8,028,829 8,436,947 

Margin (%) 3.9% 6.1% 8.1% 8.8% 10.3% 10.0%

Net Income*** 1,092,552 4,043,436 7,982,924 6,001,182 8,104,863 9,056,277 

Margin (%) 1.4% 4.4% 7.1% 9.0% 10.4% 10.7%

Basic EPS (KRW)**** 2,499 10,947 20,052 20,516 28,200 31,515 

* �From FY 2011, the company adopted Korean International Financial Reporting Standards (K-IFRS)
** Business results of BHMC is accounted in equity income accounting
*** Net income includes non-controlling interest
**** Basic earnings per common share attributable to the owners of the Parent Company

FY 2012 Financial Summary by Division
<Unit: KRW Million>

FY 2012 Vehicle Finance Other Consolidation
Adjustments

Net Revenue 103,878,092 8,799,513 5,348,113 -33,555,998 

Operating Income 6,711,118 1,177,513 254,552 -293,765 

84,469,721 Net Revenue 

8,436,947 Operating 
Income

<Unit: KRW Million>
Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

At Year End
K-GAAP K-IFRS

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 2012

Assets 103,205,783 102,324,934 118,077,818 94,714,131 109,479,975 121,537,814 

Liabilities 77,853,886 73,363,274 81,342,217 61,826,158 69,152,273 73,620,239 

Shareholder's Equity 25,351,897 28,961,660 36,735,601 32,887,973 40,327,702 47,917,575 

Liab. to Eqt. Ratio(%) 307.1% 253.3% 221.4% 188.0% 171.5% 153.6%

<Unit: KRW Million>R&D Expense

For the Year
K-GAAP K-IFRS

2008 2009 2010 2010 2011 2012

R&D Expense 2,190,476 2,239,471 2,416,204 1,388,776 1,445,268 1,631,670

GLOBAL RETAIL SALES
<Unit: Thousand>

SALES BY REGION Korea North America Europe Asia Others Total

FY 2011 682 775 599 1,288 755 4,099 

FY 2012 667 839 669 1,409 807 4,392 

Portion (%) 15.2% 19.1% 15.2% 32.1% 18.4% 100.0%

YoY  Chg (%) -2.1% 8.3% 11.7% 9.4% 6.9% 7.1%

1,885 339 740 616 252 
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Global Plant Operation
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FY 2012 Total
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In 2012, Hyundai Motor Company maintained growth and development 

despite an extremely competitive market environment, 

selling 4.41 million vehicles worldwide, an 8.6% increase 

from the previous year.

We will fortify our position 
as a global leader 
through quality-driven brand innovation.

Chairman and CEO
Chung, Mong-Koo

May 2013

In 2013, the domestic and overseas market environments are expected to remain challenging due 
to the effects of the ongoing European debt crisis and global recession.  As a result, competition 
among automakers is expected to intensify exponentially. However, Hyundai Motor has histori-
cally shown an indomitable spirit of challenge and passion to overcome hardships and deliver a 
brilliant performance.  Likewise, we will overcome challenges expected in 2013 by strengthening 
internal capabilities that will lead to qualitative growth and by developing competitiveness that 
will drive future growth.

To this end, Hyundai Motor will first and foremost pursue a strategy of brand innovation based 
on quality.  Throughout the years, quality has always been at the very heart of Hyundai Motor’s 
philosophy of putting customers first.  We will continue to strive for the highest quality and to 
not just satisfy, but exceed customers’ expectations so that they may feel an even greater pride 
in the Hyundai brand. 

Hyundai Motor will expand its presence in the Chinese market, a key market that is expected to 
continue to grow.  Moreover, it will step up efforts to stabilize quality in global production bases 
and in factories in markets such as Brazil, where the company is pursuing aggressive growth.

Hyundai Motor will enhance our brand image, which will in turn lead to improved profitability, 
creating a virtuous cycle that will lay down the groundwork for long-term qualitative growth.  
We will continuously invest in research and development in areas such as eco-friendly vehicles 
to secure technological competitiveness and solidify our global leadership.  We will also pursue 
investment and employment to secure future growth engines.

Implementation of a globalized, organic, cross-functional communication and cooperation sys-
tem across the organization will be undertaken to respond more actively to changing market 
conditions and achieve sales targets.  Moreover, we will reinforce close cooperation between 
sales and production and promote better communication and collaboration with partner affili-
ates, including part suppliers and sales dealers.

Finally, despite of the difficult times, Hyundai Motor will continue to care for the underprivileged 
and play a leading role promoting mutual growth with partner companies.  It will fulfill its respon-
sibilities as a model corporate citizen by reaching out to the most neglected areas of society 
through diverse social contribution activities.
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Although the worldwide recession in the automotive market is 

expected to continue in 2013, Hyundai Motor’s goal is 

to outdo our impressive performance last year by strengthening 

competitiveness through quality-driven brand innovation.

President and CEO
Choong Ho Kim

May 2013

Dear honorable shareholders,

With no end in sight for the worldwide recession, 2012 was a difficult 
year for all of us at home and abroad.  As a result of the financial 
crisis, car sales in Europe continued on a downward trend, and the 
growth momentum in emerging markets was further dampened.  For 
the first time since 2008, the Korean domestic market recorded nega-
tive growth, driven by an increase in household debt and a decline in 
consumption.

Nevertheless, Hyundai Motor continued to grow last year, selling 4.41 
million units or 120,000 units more than its 4.29 million unit business 
target.  It inaugurated a plant in Brazil, securing production bases in 
all major markets around the world, and began operations at its third 
China plant, establishing a system to produce and sell one million ve-
hicles in China.

This remarkable performance can be attributed to the steadfast sup-
port and encouragement of our shareholders.  This year, Hyundai Mo-
tor will do our best to repay shareholders with an even better per-
formance.

Prospects are grim for the automotive industry this year. In line with 
the ongoing financial crisis, car sales in Europe are expected to hit 
the lowest levels since 2007, and in emerging markets such as China 
and India, Japanese and American automakers are expected step up 
their game, presenting fierce competition. Moreover, the appreciation 
of the Korean won and protectionist policies aimed at promoting the 
development of local industries worldwide are even more items to be 
added to the ever-growing list of concerns for management. 

Despite the many difficulties expected this year, Hyundai Motor will 
continue to focus on strengthening competitiveness and pursuing 
qualitative growth through brand innovation based on quality.  To this 
end, Hyundai will undertake the following strategies:

First, Hyundai Motor will address and overcome foreign exchange 
risks arising from the appreciation of the Korean won. Strategic steps 

will be taken to navigate through drops in price competitiveness by 
ongoing cost savings and managing our business portfolio by adjusting 
expansion into overseas markets.

In addition, Hyundai Motor will strengthen our customized, country-
specific strategies in both advanced and emerging markets.   In the 
United States, which is beginning to show some signs of economic re-
covery, Hyundai will enhance customer service and continue to draw 
customers to the brand.  Moreover, we will boost sales in Brazil and 
China, where there are new plants with even greater capacity, and we 
will reinforce sales of luxury cars in the Middle East and Russia.

Hyundai Motor will also promote sales of compact cars, which remain 
customer favorites even in economic downturns.  We will also promote 
sales of the company’s worldwide bestsellers, Accent and Elantra, and 
the i-series (i10, i20, i30), which is gradually replacing older models.

In order to secure future growth, Hyundai Motor will increase invest-
ment in research and development in the field of eco-friendly cars and 
electronic controls.  We will also focus on nurturing talent to continu-
ously build technological competitiveness.  Through these measures, 
Hyundai Motor expects to achieve our 4.66 million unit sales target and 
contribute to the national economy, laying the foundation for employ-
ment expansion and growth with partner companies.
As a global automotive leader in the forefront of new technologies 
and trends, Hyundai Motor will not settle with the status quo. We will 
continue to undertake challenges to improve ourselves, to outperform 
ourselves. 

I ask for your continued interest in Hyundai Motor this year and assure 
you that we will do our best to maximize shareholder value and reward 
you for your support.

Thank you.
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Hyundai Motor Group
Management Concept

Hyundai Motor Group
Main Affiliate Companies

Hyundai Motor Group’s Beliefs and Passion
Hyundai Motor Group has continued in its path of success by upholding and practicing the spirit 
and values handed down from the company’s founders. As such, the Management Concept, which 
reflects the company’s future-oriented values and the direction of its evolution, serves to bring 
everyone together in the making of new history. By sharing its management philosophy, vision, 
and core values with everyone involved, Hyundai promises to deliver concrete results. 

Hyundai, Realizing the Dreams of Humanity
The management philosophy is what guides all our management activities and the reason for 
Hyundai’s existence. Hyundai is spreading its management philosophy of “realizing the dream of 
humanity by creating a new future through ingenuity and continuous challenge new frontiers” in 
order to become a great company that is respected worldwide and contributes to society.  

Five Core Values, the DNA That Will Ensure Hyundai’s Continued Legendary Success
The core values are the DNA of success inherent in the organizations and the employees of 
Hyundai Motor Group. They are also concrete expressions of the strategy that the Group is 
developing for a better future. The core values—customer, challenge, collaboration, people, and 
globality—will drive the Group to achieve its vision with more passion by fostering an advanced 
corporate culture befitting a global company. 

New Vision for the Future: “Lifetime Partner in Automobiles and Beyond”
Hyundai Motor Group established a new vision, “Together for a better future,” in order to fulfill 
its role and responsibility as a trusted global firm. Hyundai Motor Company defined its vision of 
being a “Lifetime partner in automobiles and beyond” to come one step closer to its customers 
and become their beloved brand. The car is no longer simply a means of transportation that links 
people to people; it has become a life space that occupies a central role in people’s lives. As such, 
Hyundai seeks to become a lifetime partner in the everyday lives of customers. At this very 
moment, Hyundai is developing eco-friendly and human-oriented technologies for the future and 
setting up optimized global management systems in order to provide the best experience to its 
customers. 

Customer First
We promote a customer-driven corporate culture by providing the best quality and impeccable 
service with all our efforts aimed at the satisfaction of our customers.

Challenging Performance
We refuse to be complacent, embrace every opportunity for greater challenge, and are confident 
in achieving our goals with unwavering passion and ingenuity.

Communication and Cooperation
We create synergy though a sense of “togetherness” that is fostered by mutual communication 
and cooperation within the company and with our business partners.

Respect for Talent
We believe that the future of our organization lies in the hearts and capabilities of individual 
members, and will help them develop their potential by creating a corporate culture that respects 
talent.

Global Orientation
We respect the diversity of cultures and customs, aspire to be the world’s best at what we do, and 
strive to become a respected global corporate citizen. 

other

finance

construction

steel

automobile

parts
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2000~2005

1990~1996

1997~1999

2000~2001

2002~2003

2004~2005

1967~1989

With passion and unyielding spirit, 
Hyundai Motor Company of today came to be. 
With amazing and groundbreaking 
innovations, Hyundai Motor Company of 
tomorrow will come to be.

1990	•	Launch of Elantra, Scoupe
1991	•	Release of the first Korean-developed Alpha engine
	 •	Development of electric car; launch of Galloper
1992	•	Development of HCD-I, Korea’s first concept car
1993	•	Launch of Sonata II; development of concept car HCD-II
1994	•	Hyundai exceeds 1 million units in annual production; 
		  launch of Accent
	 •Development of solar-powered and hydrogen fuel 
		  cell vehicles
1995	•	Launch of Avante; development of concept car 
		  HCD-III
1996	•	Hyundai exceeds 10 million units in cumulative 
		  production (all models combined)
	 •	Completion of Namyang Technical Research Centre
	 •	Launch of Dynasty, Tiburon 

high performance Engine 
Development

The development of world-class high performance 
engines such as Alpha (1991), Epsilon (1997), V6 Delta 
(1998), etc. demonstrated the engineering prowess 
of Hyundai Motor Company to the world.

1997	•	Completion of Turkey plant; independent 
		  development Epsilon engine
1998	•	Acquisition of Kia Motors; completion of India plant
	 •	Launch of Grandeur XG, EF Sonata; development 
		  of 2nd solar-powered vehicle 
	 •	Independent development of world-class 
		  high performance V6 Delta engine
1999	•	Development of Korea’s first automotive fuel cell battery
	 •	Launch of ultra-large sedan Equus, Verna, Trajet XG 

2000	•	Development of Korea’s first passenger diesel 
		  engine and large commercial engine
	 •	Development of Korea’s first fuel cell vehicle 
	 •	Launch of Santa Fe, Avante XD 
	 •	Incorporation as Korea’s first automotive group 
	 •	Official sponsor of Euro 2000 Football Championship
2001	•	Launch of sports coupe Tuscani, Terracan, Lavita 
	 •	Santa Fe selected as No. 1 in U.S. customer 
		  satisfaction survey 
	 •	HMA receives J.D. Power’s presidential award 
	 •	Unveiling of Korea’s first fuel cell-powered Santa Fe 
	 •	Unveiling of concept car HCD-VI

2002	•	Launch of Chinese-produced Elantra model 
	 •	Sonata selected as No. 1 by J.D. Power in 
		  performance, driving, and design research 
	 •	Completion of California Design & Technical Centre
2003	•	Hyundai exceeds 1 million units and USD 10 billion 
		  in exports  
	 •	Completion of Europe Technical Centre 
	 •	Hyundai is the first to rank No. 1 in Korean Industry 
		  Customer Satisfaction for the 10th consecutive year
	 •	Hyundai is the first in the automotive industry to 
		  officially proclaim “Global Environmental Management” 
	 •	Elantra (Avante) exceeds 2 million units in production; 
		S  onata exceeds 2.5 million units in production 
	 •	Completion of U.S. Design Centre and ground
		  breaking of proving ground 
	 •	Development of world’s first ultra high pressure 
		  hydrogen storage system for fuel cell vehicles 

Expanding Global Network

Hyundai has been expanding its global network 
through the launches of the California Design & 
Technical Research Centre (2002) and the Europe 
Technical Research Centre (2003) as well as the 
U.S. Technical Centre and manufacturing plant in 
Alabama (2005).

Launching Plants in 
Turkey and India

Hyundai launched a plant in Turkey, a strategic 
location connecting Europe, Africa, and the Middle 
East and a plant in India, which integrates a vertical 
pipeline of production and sales.

2004	•	Hyundai breaks national record by exceeding 
		  10 million units in exports 
	 •	Establishment of joint venture plant for 
		  commercial vehicles in China 
	 •	Development of 2nd generation Tucson 
		  fuel cell vehicle 
	 •	President Mong-Koo Chung named as Best CEO of 
		  2004 by Business Week
2005	•	Click is selected as India’s Best Car of 2005
	 •	Completion of U.S. proving ground, Technical 
		C  entre and plant in Alabama 
	 •	Unveiling of the New Grandeur, HED-1 at the 
		G  eneva Motor Show
	 •	Hyundai is selected as the Official Partner of FIFA 
		  from 2007 to 2014 
	 •	Hyundai exceeds 1 million units in exports to 
		A  frica and the Middle East 
	 •	President Mong-Koo Chung named Best CEO in 
		  the automotive sector by Automotive 
	 •	Hyundai enters 100 Best Global Brands 
	 •	Completion of eco-friendly Vehicle Recycling Centre 

Hyundai ‘Pony’ - 
the First Passenger Car 
Developed in Korea

Developed entirely in Korea for the first time and 
launched in 1976, Pony enhanced the international 
standing of Korea’s automotive industry.

1967	�•	Incorporation of Hyundai Motor Company
1968	•	Mass production of Cortina
1976	•	Launch of Hyundai Pony, the first Korean passenger car 
1983	•	Incorporation of the Canadian subsidiary HMC
1984	•	Launch of Excel 
1985	•	Incorporation of the U.S. subsidiary HMA
1986	•	Launch of Grandeur, Hyundai’s large-sized luxury car; 
		  first export of Excel to the U.S.
1987	•	Best sales of Excel in U.S. compact car category for 
		  the 3rd consecutive year
1988	•	Launch of Sonata, Hyundai’s mid-sized luxury sedan
1989	•	Excel exceeds 1 million units in overseas exports 

1967~1999
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2009	•	Main sponsor of U.S. Super Bowl
	 •	Unveiling of i20 3-door and concept car ix-onic at
		  the Geneva Motor Show 
 	 •	Genesis awarded North American Car of the Year 
 	 •	Hyundai selected as best automotive company in 
		C  hina’s warranty service satisfaction survey 
 	 •	Hyundai exceeds 1 million units in cumulative 
		  exports to Africa 
 	 •	Hyundai ranks No. 1 in the general brand category 
		  by J.D. Power’s 2009 new car quality survey; Elantra 
		  (Avante) ranks No. 1 in the mid-sized car category; 
		G  enesis ranks No. 1 in the new models category 
 	 •	Unveiling of ix-Metro and ix35 at the Frankfurt 
		  Motor Show 
 	 •	Hyundai reaches 69th in global brand value as 
		  published by Business Week 
 	 •	Completion of Czech plant with annual production 
		  capacity of 300,000 units 
 	 •	First unveiling of independently developed, next-
		  generation high performance Theta GDi engine 
	 •	Tau engine selected among Ward’s Auto 10 Best 
		E  ngines for 2nd consecutive year and receives 
		  2009 Korean Technology Award’s Presidential Prize  

2011	•	Introduction of Blue Link at the 2011 Consumer 
		E  lectronics Show (CES) in U.S. 
	 •	World premiere of HCD-XII Curb concept vehicle at 
		  the Detroit International Auto Show 
	 •	World debut of Veloster at the North American 
		I  nternational Auto Show 
	 •	Official announcement of Hyundai’s new brand 
		�  direction and slogan ‘New Thinking. New Possibilities.’ 
		  at the North American International Auto Show 
	 •	Launch of 5th generation Azera (Grandeur) 
	 •	Launch of production at the Russia plant HMMR in 
		S  aint 	Petersburg 
	 •	Signing of deal to become the first official car 
		  partner of the International Cricket Council (ICC) 
		  from 2011 to 2015 
	 •	World premiere of i40 wagon 
	 •	ix20 awarded highest five-star Euro NCAP rating  
	 •	Launch of construction of Brazil plant in Piracicaba  
	 •	Unveiling of D-segment i40 sedan at the 
		  Barcelona Motor Show  
	 •	Hyundai begins sales of Genesis Prada 
	 •	Hyundai exceeds 5 million units in cumulative sales 
		  in Europe 
	 •	Hyundai ranks 11th among Interbrand’s 50 Best 
		G  lobal Green Brands  
	 •	World debut of EON by Indian subsidiary HMIL 
	 •	i40 awarded 2011 EuroCarBody Golden Award 
	 •	Hyundai exceeds 2 million units in sales in cumulative 
		  exports to Central and South Americas 
	 •	Unveiling of Genesis Coupe 
	 •	Hyundai ranks No. 1 in AutoBild’s Qualitätsreport 
		  for 2nd consecutive year 
	 •	Elantra awarded North American Car of the Year
	 •	Gamma engine selected among Ward’s Auto 10 
		  Best Engines in U.S.

2010	•	Unveiling of hybrid concept car HED-VII at the 
		G  eneva Motor Show 
	 •	Hyundai selected as No. 1 Asian brand in customer 
		  service satisfaction and No. 1 in durability for 3rd 
		  consecutive year by J.D. Power 
	 •	World premiere of Sonata Hybrid at the New York 
		  Motor Show 
	 •	Genesis and Tucson (ix35) selected as “safest car” 
		  by U.S. IIHS and No. 1 in U.S. customer satisfaction 
	 •	Sonata exceeds 5 million units in cumulative sales 
	 •	Official sponsor of the 2010 South Africa World Cup  
	 •	President Mong-Koo Chung selected as top CEO in 
		A  sia in the automotive industry 
	 •	World premiere of eco-friendly electric car BlueOn 
	 •	Completion of Russia plant 
	 •	World premiere of small minivan ix20 at the Paris 
		  Motor Show 
	 •	Debut of the independently-developed Nu•Tau 
		GD  i engine, RWD 8-speed automatic transmission 
	 •	Official car sponsor of G20 Summit  
	 •	Development of Korea’s first CNG hybrid bus Blue City 
	 •	Tau engine selected among Ward’s Auto 10 Best 
		E  ngines in U.S. for 3rd consecutive year  
	 •	Hyundai exceeds 500,000 units in annual sales in U.S. 
	 •	Development of hydrogen fuel cell vehicle Tucson ix 

2009

2010

2011
2012	•	Launch of New Santa Fe, i40 Saloon, and 
		V  eloster Turbo
	 •	Santa Fe awarded First Prize by New Car Safety 
		E  valuation Board of Korea
	 •	Launch of manufacturing plant in Brazil
	 •	World premiere unveiling of CUV HB20X
	 •	Santa Fe tops in-class residual value ranking at 
		  56.8% in the U.S.
	 •	Tucson ix fuel cell model delivered to Denmark
	 •	Hydrogen fuel cell car exported to Norway
	 •	Sonata Hybrid tops U.S. consumer satisfaction 
		  survey
	 •	President Mong-Koo Chung named 2011 Top 
		  Manager in the World by the authoritative Italian 
		  car magazine, Interautonews
	 •	World premiere of the electric concept car i-oniq 
		  at the Geneva Motor Show
	 •	Hyundai selected as the most fuel efficient and 
		  least CO₂ emitting brand by the Environment 
		P  rotection Agency of the U.S.
	 •	Sonata selected as 2012 Top Picks in the medium-
		  sized car segment by Consumer Reports magazine
	 •	Azera (Grandeur) selected as top residual value 
		  retainer after three years of ownership in the 
		  Full Size Segment by ALG
	 •	Solaris (Accent) awarded ‘Best New Car in 
		  2012’ and ‘Best Small Car in 2012’ awards in Russia
	 •	Hyundai launched ‘live brilliant’ campaign
	 •	Genesis tops J.D. Power’s Vehicle Dependability 
		S  tudy (VDS) in the premium car segment in the U.S.
	 •	Elantra (Avante) awarded North American Car of  
		  the Year
	 •	Hyundai ranks No.1 in J.D. Power’s Customer 
		  Retention Award

2012

2006	•	Hyundai Motor Group exceeds KW 1 trillion in sales 
	 •	Hyundai Motor Group selected as the top Chinese 
		  automotive brand 
	 •	Launch of construction of 2nd Hyundai plant in Beijing 
	 •	Hyundai ranks No. 1 in the general brand category 
		  of J.D. Power’s Initial Quality Study (IQS) index 
	 •	Hyundai Motor Group reaches 6th worldwide in 
		  total production 
	 •	Hyundai exceeds 1 million units in cumulative 
		  exports to Central and South Americas 
	 •	Independent development of world-class V6 diesel 
		S  -engine 
  	 •	Unveiling of concept cars Hellion, Arnejs, Genus, Talus 
	 •	Hyundai selected among 100 Best Global Brands 
		  for 2nd consecutive year
2007	•	Verna awarded Best Car of the Year by the Indian 
		  auto magazine Overdrive
 	 •	Unveiling of concept cars HED-IV (QarmaQ), 
		  HND-III (Veloster) 
 	 •	Azera (Grandeur) ranks No. 1 in J.D. Power’s customer 
		  satisfaction survey for 2nd consecutive year
 	 •	Hyundai exceeds 5 million units in cumulative sales 
		  in U.S.; completion of Brazil plant CKD 
 	 •	Unveiling of the 3rd generation fuel cell concept 
		  car i-Blue at the Frankfurt Motor Show 
 	 •	Launch of the next-generation compact car i10 by 
		  Hyundai Motor India Limited (HMIL) 
 	 •	i30 selected as Australia’s Best Car of the Year 
 	 •	Launch of Korea’s first global CSR website
 	 •	Hyundai awarded President’s Medal by Korean 
		  government for environmental management

2008	•	Launch of Genesis, Genesis Coupe, i30cw  
 	 •	Hyundai Beijing breaks record of 1 million units in 
		  cumulative production in the shortest time 
 	 •	World premiere of the eco-friendly concept car 
		  i-Mode at the Geneva Motor Show  
 	 •	Completion of the 2nd plant in Beijing with annual 
		  production capacity of 3 million units 
 	 •	Hyundai achieves No. 1 in National Customer 
		S  atisfaction Index for 8th consecutive year 
 	 •	Development of next-generation eco-friendly 
		  passenger diesel R-engine
 	 •	Tau engine selected among Ward’s Auto 10 Best 
		E  ngines in U.S.

Introduction of Hyundai Motor 
Company’s state-of-the-art 
concept cars in world-class 
motor shows
Presentation of innovative concept cars such as 
i-Blue and i-Mode with 3rd-geneneration fuel cell 
technologies.

2006~2007

2008

New brand slogan of 
Hyundai Motor Company
New brand slogan, ‘New Thinking. New Possibilities.’ 
embodies the new direction and determination of 
Hyundai Motor Company.

Launch of Brazil Factory
From factory opening to mass-manufacturing three 
models simultaneously in record time, Hyundai’s new 
Brazil factory has been achieving notable success 
already with the strategic compact car model, HB20, 
winning the ‘Car of the Year, Brazil’ award.

Development of hydrogen 
fuel cell car, Tucson ix 
Hyundai Motor Company has completed develop-
ment of the next generation eco-friendly Fuel Cell 
Electric Vehicle (FCEV), Tucson ix. Its hydrogen 
fuel cell system has world-leading efficiency and 
performance, and is built with more than 90% of 
domestic components.

2006~2012 
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From outstanding values

best-selling cars loved 
		  by people worldwide

up to Hyundai’s eco-friendly concept cars

and the development of 
        state-of-the-art technologies...

Working toward realizing 
       the dream of 
               zero CO2 emissions.

and chosen as ‘Car of the Year’ in various countries,

to high performance engines,



best value

Best Qualities and Values Only by Hyundai Motor Company
Hyundai’s brand image has grown from ‘dependable quality’ to ‘providing utmost satisfaction.’ 
In 2012, the Hyundai brand attained the rank of 53rd (7th among car companies) among the 
top 100 global brands by Interbrand reflecting a 24% rise in brand value from the previous year 
($7,473 million). Centennial (Equus) winning awards such as ‘Most Valuable Car’ of the Total 
Value Awards (Strategic Vision) and the Genesis winning the ‘Top Picks’ award in the mid-sized 
car segment (Consumer Reports) confirm the premium status of the Hyundai brand. In addition, 
the new Santa Fe won the ‘ALG Residual Value Award’ proving the high satisfaction level of 
the quality of Hyundai cars. Hyundai’s unique combination of the best quality and values will 
continue into the future.

Blind Spot Detection

All Around View 
        Monitor System

Drive Mode 

Head-Up Display

Smart Cruise Control

Lane Keeping Assist System
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Average Speed of 100m Sprint World 
Record Holder: 10.43 metres/sec

Average Heart Rate of World Champion
Marathoner: 38 beats/min

1.6 Gamma GDi Engine
Max. Power: 140 ps/6,300 rpm

1.6 Gamma GDi Engine
Max. Torque: 17.1 kg.m/4,850 rpm

Tau Engine and Gamma Engine, listed in ‘10 Best Engines in the World’ 
by Ward’s AutoWorld Magazine
Hyundai Motor Company is already a leader in automotive engine technologies. Hyundai’s 
Tau engine, primarily powering large-sized cars, has won a place in Ward’s ‘10 Best Engines 
in the World’ for three consecutive years up to 2011. Hyundai’s 1.6 Gamma GDi engine also 
earned a place for compact-sized cars in 2012. Hyundai’s comprehensive world-class portfolio 
of large to small engines testifies to the engineering prowess of Hyundai Motor Company. 
With passion for challenge, Hyundai will continue to develop innovative engine technologies 
that will lead to the ultimate dream engine. •Tau Engine

25Blue Waves in Hyundai
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Hyundai Elantra (Avante) Racing toward 
a Million sales in 2013, and Hyundai Sonata, 
the best-selling customer favorite.

Best-Selling Cars

Elantra (Avante), racing toward 
a million in sales 

Elantra, first introduced in 1990, is now in its fifth 
generation, and has accumulated sales of eight 
million units. In 2013, it aims to earn the title of 
‘million seller’ by achieving sales of one million 
cars a year. The secret to its popularity is its 
economic value and efficiency, which appeal to 
a wide range of countries and age groups. Soon, 
Elantra will be able to replace its reputation of 
being a ‘people’s car’ with that of a ‘global car.’

Sonata tops VDS in mid-sized car 
segment in 2013
In 2013, J.D. Power awarded Hyundai Sonata 
the top place in the Vehicle Dependability Study 
(VDS) in the mid-sized car segment. This award
reflects the overall quality of a vehicle by mea-
suring the dissatisfaction rate per 100 vehicles 
three years after purchase based on a detailed 
list of 202 items, including engine, transmissions, 
driving, and steering performances.

Elantra (Avante), Car of the year 
in several countries

In 2012, Elantra had the honor of receiving 
‘North American Car of the Year,’ ‘Canadian 
Car of the Year,’ and various other ‘Car of the 
Year’ awards from countries including the Phil-
ippines, South Africa, and Nigeria. This would not 
have been possible without the support of our 
customers and their love for our Elantra. We will 
repay them by delivering improvements upon 
improvements for future Elantra models.

Awards demonstrating Customer satisfaction 
in Quality
Total Value Awards of the American auto analysis specialist Strategic 
Vision assess the overall value of newly-purchased vehicles with 
respect to consumer satisfaction in terms of dependability, resale 
value, warranty policies, etc. Hyundai Sonata and Elantra (Avante) 
topped the assessments in the mid-sized and compact-sized car 
segments respectively.

Blue Waves in Hyundai
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Best Loved Cars’ by Hyundai that have touched 
the hearts of customers worldwide.
‘

CARS LOVED BY THE WOLRD

The meaning of 
the Consumer Satisfaction Awards

Each and every year, many new and facelift 
car models flood the global automotive market. 
And customers judge new models with ever 
more stringent criteria. That is why the vari-
ous automotive awards, which reflect the 
judgement of customers, have special meaning. 
These awards provide valuable information 
about how much the car affects the lives of 
customers. In that regard, 2012 was a very 

prolific year for Hyundai as customers’ posi-
tive views of Hyundai cars came to light with 
numerous awards.

The reason why Hyundai has so many 
Car of the Year awards under its belt

Modern Premium, Hyundai Motor Company’s 
brand direction, underlies Hyundai’s efforts to 
provide premium values to as many customers 
as possible. To achieve this aim of satisfying the 
needs of customers, Hyundai Motor Company 

strives for ever more attractive price points and 
impeccable quality. That so many Hyundai car 
models have won the Car of the Year 2012 awards 
from such a variety of countries, including the 
U.S., Australia, Chile, and Brazil is a testament to 
our efforts and our will to march forward with 
the Modern Premium ideal.

Veloster, unique design and 
unique performance

The Veloster embodies Hyundai’s imagination. 
It shows off innovative and novel concepts such 
as the asymmetric door configuration that 
transcends its class. Veloster was recognized 
for its creative design and overall excellence 
with numerous awards, including Canadian Car 
of the Year in 2011 and North America’s Urban 
Car of the Year in 2012.

The New Santa Fe, Now with more urban charm

The New Santa Fe is the first model revamp from the original seven years 
ago. It has captured the hearts of the global customers with a new design 
reflecting the new Hyundai family look and improved performance. 
As proof, Santa Fe won the Car of the Year award in Canada, Chile, and 
Australia and top places in ALG’s Residual Value Award and the IIHS’s 
Top Safety Pick in 2012, etc. The Santa Fe will continue to awe and 
inspire Hyundai customers worldwide. 

i30, tailor-made for Europeans

Hyundai i30 was born with the kind of design 
rationality and practicality favored by Euro-
pean lifestyle. It won the Car of the Year 2012 
awards in England, Chile, Scotland, and Aus-
tralia. In safety evaluations, i30 earned five 
stars in the Euro NCAP and Australia’s ANCAP 
safety ratings, demonstrating the high per-
formance and universal appeal of i30.

centennial (Equus), Hyundai’s flagship sedan

As the flagship sedan of Hyundai Motor Company, Centennial carries all 
the state-of-the-art convenience features, high performance engine, 
and a premium design. Centennial has proven its own value by winning 
first place in J.D. Power’s Automotive Performance, Execution and Lay-
out Study (APEAL) in the luxury car segment and the Top Safety Pick 
by America’s Insurance Institute for Highway Safety (IIHS). Also in 2012, 
Centennial attained first place in Strategic Vision’s Total Value Awards 
assessment, firmly solidifying its reputation for prestige.

Azera (grandeur), from premium 
sedan of Korea to premium sedan 
of the world

Azera has been recognized for its premium 
design with the Good Design Award in the U.S. 
As a back-to-back winner of the ALG Residual 
Value Award and the IIHS’s Top Safety Pick 
award, Azera has proven its steadfast quality 
and safety.

Genesis, redefining the standard of premium sedans

Hyundai Genesis has expanded the premium image of Hyundai cars 
with numerous, outstanding achievements. Starting with winning the 
title of North America Car of the Year in 2009, it went on to win the top 
spot in Strategic Vision’s Total Quality Index (TQI) in the near-luxury 
car segment in 2010 and also the Best Value Luxury Sedan award by 
Consumer Reports in 2011. In 2012, Genesis won the Top Picks award 
by Consumer Reports and Most Dependable Mid-sized Premium Car 
award by J.D. Power.

Blue Waves in Hyundai



ANNUAL REPORT 201230 State-of-the-art Technologies

State-of-the-art Technologies for the Best Driving Experience
Lighter car frame created by incorporating new types of materials, best possible aerodynamic 
drag coefficient attained by optimal shape, a safety system that protects the passengers 
under all circumstances, eight-speed RWD auto transmission that maximizes driving perfor-
mance.... The list goes on, but there is one ultimate goal that drives the efforts put into devel-
oping the most cutting-edge technologies: to create the best driving experience ever. Hyundai 
Motor Company will be the first to make this dream a reality through our continued efforts 
and passion for innovative ideas and overcoming challenges. 

Reduction in Aerodynamic 
Drag Coefficient

Effective Body Temperature 
Retention Limit: Approximately 40°C

Average Weight of 
a Single Feather: 0.56699g

Average Number of Feathers: 
900~25,000 Pieces

Seats with 
Individual Heating 
and Ventilation

Genesis’ Aerodynamic Drag 
Coefficient: 0.27Cd

New Santa Fe, Weight Reduction 
from Previous Model: 6.3% (106kg)

State-of-the-art Airbags 
Protecting against 
Full-frontal Collisions
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Concept Cars

HED-7 (Europe) HND-6: Blue2 (Namyang)

HCD-12: Curb (U.S.) HND-7: Hexa Space (Namyang)

HED-8: i-oniq (Europe)

HCD-14: Genesis (U.S.)HED-2: GENUS (Europe)

i-Blue (Japan) HED-5: i-Mode (Europe)HCD-10: Hellion (U.S.)

HND-3: Veloster (Namyang) HCD-11: Nuvis (U.S.)

HED-4: QarmarQ (Europe) HND-5: ix-Metro (Namyang)

HND-4: Blue-Will (Namyang)

HED-6: ix-onic (Europe)

Meeting the Cars of the Future Today
Hyundai concept cars are born with names reflecting their birthplaces: HED for Europe Design Centre, HCD 
for California Design Centre, and HND for Namyang Design Centre. These concept cars incorporate different 
regional characteristics and needs, but there is one common underlying theme consisting of two elements: 
‘eco-friendly’ and ‘smart.’ At this very moment, various concept cars by Hyundai are being showcased in 
prestigious motor shows worldwide demonstrating Hyundai’s futuristic technologies.

HND-9: Venace (Namyang)

Blue Waves in Hyundai
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‘�Blue Drive,’ our Strategy for Green Technology, 
spearheads the development of low-pollution, 
highly fuel-efficient cars.

Sonata Hybrid 
The very first hybrid model by Hyundai that was mass 
produced and exported overseas. High driving performance 
with high fuel economy achieved by a dedicated hybrid 
engine, six-speed auto transmission, parallel hybrid system, 
and the world’s first use of lithium-ion polymer battery 
with 4-way safety design.

Tucson ix Hydrogen Fuel Cell Vehicle 
A car with a fuel economy of 102 km/ℓ (Urban Dynamometer Driving 
Schedule or UDDS), a driving distance of up to 635 km on a single 
charge (UDDS), top speed of 160 km/h, and ignition-start capability 
at -25°C.  Improved fuel economy achieved through 20 percent 
reduction in overall volume.

Blueon Electric Vehicles
Using lithium-ion polymer battery along with advanced electric 

powertrain components, BlueOn EVs achieve a driving distance of 
140 km per charge, top speed of 130 km/h, and zero-to-100 km/h 

acceleration performance of 15.7 seconds. In addition, the high-
voltage components implemented with comprehensive safety design 

features ensure safety and reliability at the same time.

Avante Hybrid
The car with the world’s first LPi hybrid system devel-

oped by Hyundai, combining impressive fuel economy 
with high performance by alternating powertrain 

depending on specific driving conditions. Released in 
Korea in 2009, it led the market of eco-friendly cars.

Enhancing Overall Efficiency

Hyundai uses three methods to enhance the fuel economy of new cars: 
(1) maximization of fuel efficiency in powertrain, (2) minimization of the 
loss of energy, and (3) use of recycled energy sources. Some examples 
include the development of the Double-Clutch Transmission (DCT), used 
in Veloster with 5-6 percent better fuel economy than the conventional 
automatic transmission model, and the Continuously Variable Transmission 
(CVT). 

1 Weight Reduction2
Hyundai makes lighter cars by using new materials and new production 
techniques. Replacing steel materials with aluminum, enhancing tensile 
strength, and the use of magnesium carbon fiber are just some of Hyundai’s 
innovative methods of making lightweight materials. Also, reducing the 
thickness of steel-based components by up to 30 percent, implementing 
hollow inner structures, and developing Multi-Material Mix car bodies are 
some examples of improved production techniques for weight reduction.

Meeting various fuel economy regulations

One way to develop green technology is to continuously strive to meet the 
ever more stringent fuel economy requirements legislated by different 
countries. To this end, Hyundai has been producing cars with remarkable 
fuel economy. In 2011, in addition to the launch of the new Accent, Hyundai 
introduced to the U.S. fuel efficient models such as the Elantra (Avante), 
Veloster, and Sonata Hybrid. In Europe, Hyundai sells low CO₂ emission and 
clean diesel models ranging from compact-to medium-sized sedans in-
cluding i20, i30, and i40, demonstrating Hyundai’s commitment to a clean 
environment.

3 Utilizing Alternative Fuel Sources

Hyundai is developing engines and car models that can utilize diverse 
types of alternative fuels such as biofuels. In Brazil and North America, 
where there is a regular supply of ethanol as a fuel source, the sales of 
Flexible Fuel Vehicles (FFV) that use both ethanol and gasoline are on the 
rise. In Europe where diesel cars are preferred, Hyundai cars that can 
use BD5 fuel, a mixture of conventional diesel with 5 percent bio-diesel, 
are promoted. Also, in India, where Compressed Natural Gas (CNG) is 
relatively abundant, Hyundai has released cars utilizing CNG as well as 
a bi-fuel model, i10, that can use both gasoline and LPG.

4

GREEN AUTOMOTIVE TECHNOLOGIES
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Hybrid Cars with Superior Power and 
Lower Fuel Consumption
 
Development of LPi and Gasoline Hybrid Systems
Since Hyundai’s first hybrid concept car, FGV-1, 
in 1995, Hyundai has been developing several 
hybrid vehicles such as Click Hybrid in 2004 
and Verna Hybrid in 2005. In 2009, Avante LPi 
Hybrid, with the world’s first LPi hybrid system, 
was launched in the Korean market, and soon 
the Sonata gasoline hybrid model followed suit 
and was launched in the U.S. market in 2011. 
The ‘Parallel Hybrid System’ and the lithium-
ion polymer battery pack found in the Sonata 
gasoline hybrid model were the first of their 
kind and showed both superior performance and 
high fuel economy. The 2013 model, with 40 mpg 
on highway and 36 mpg in city driving, has 

in September 2010 developed with the experi-
ences it acquired from producing previous 
electric vehicles starting from Sonata in 1991. 
The BlueOn electric vehicle can go 140 km on 
a single charge and has a maximum speed of 
130 km/h and a zero-to-100 km/h acceleration 
of 15.7 seconds. In addition, the key parts are 
all produced in Korea, laying foundation for 
future technological development of electric 
vehicles. 
 
Developing Near Mid-sized Electric Vehicle
In response to a task given by the Korean 
government under the national policy of Green 
Transport Systems based on Next Generation 
Electric Cars, Hyundai is pushing ahead with 
the plan to develop a near mid-sized electric 
car by 2016, which can be driven over 200 km on 

Zero CO2 emissions is a dream every car company should ultimately aspire 
to fulfill, because our future depends on it. Hyundai has come a step closer 
to this dream with the Blue Drive strategy which aims to improve the fuel 
economy of mass production models and to develop a variety of new eco-
friendly models.

already won numerous awards, demonstrating 
high customer satisfaction.  
 
Plug-in Hybrid   
The plug-in hybrid technology to be imple-
mented into mid-sized production cars from 
2015 enables powering of next generation 
hybrid vehicles by simply plugging them into 
electric power outlets. The chief characteristic 
of this vehicle is its ability to run on battery 
power when there is enough of it left, but once 
below a certain level, both the electric motor 
and conventional engine run together. 

From Conception to Commercialization
 
BlueOn Electric Vehicle   
Hyundai debuted the BlueOn electric vehicle 

Participation in European Green Projects
From 2011, Hyundai has been participating in 
various European regional environmental proj-
ects, providing demonstration hydrogen fuel 
cell vehicles to four North European countries, 
entering into Germany’s Clean Energy Partner
ship (CEP) and signing an MOU on supplying 
vehicles to the Copenhagen municipal govern-
ment in Denmark. In addition, Hyundai was 
selected by the E.U. as the exclusive provider 
of hydrogen fuel cell vehicles for test driving 
by European Parliament Commissioners and 
E.U. officials, and was once again selected as 

a single charge, has a zero-to-100 km/h accel-
eration in 11.5 seconds, and which can be fully 
charged within five hours and speed charged 
in less than 23 minutes. 

Hydrogen Fuel Cell Vehicles - 
Combining Zero Pollutant Emissions 
and Good Driving Performance
 
Exploring the Possibility of Mass Production 
and Demonstration Operations   
Hydrogen fuel cell vehicles are similar to electric 
vehicles in that they emit no harmful substances 
whatsoever. However, they provide higher driv-
ing performance. Hyundai has applied its hydro-
gen fuel cell technology to SUV vehicles, which 
achieve about 3.75 times better fuel economy 
than gasoline models. In addition, by developing 
the technique of stamping thin sheets of stain-
less steel to produce fuel cells, Hyundai has 
proven the possibility for cost-effective mass 
production by cutting the fuel cell stack price 
by a sixth. The Tucson ix hydrogen fuel cell 
vehicle can travel up to 635 km (UDDS) on one 
charge, boasts a fuel efficiency of 30.2 km/ℓ 
(UDDS) and a top speed of 160 km/h, and it can 
be started at -25℃. From 2009 to 2011, 48 of 
them were used in Seoul and the surrounding 
metropolitan area for road testing.   
 

GREEN AUTOMOTIVE TECHNOLOGIES

ZERO CO2 Emissions, Hyundai’s dream

the provider of demonstration vehicles in two 
Northern European countries (Denmark, 
Norway). Third-generation Tucson ix hydrogen 
fuel cell vehicles were given to the Danish 
government and are currently being tested in 
a real-world environment. Test drive of 
Hyundai vehicles in a Northern European 
country with an advanced hydrogen fuel cell 
infrastructure has served as an occasion to 
promote the company’s eco-friendly technol-
ogy to the European market and to establish 
a foothold in the region’s hydrogen fuel cell 
vehicle market.

Hybrid car development and future plans

1995 2000 2004 2005 2009 2011 2015

First HEV 
concept car
developed

County HEV 
developed

Click HEV 
test drive

Verna HEV 
test drive

Elantra LPi HEV 
mass production

Sonata HEV 
mass production

Mass production
of plug-in hybrids

1st Stage (1995~2004)

2nd Stage (2005~09)

Ensuring mass production
technologies (test production)

Production system 
constructed (key parts 
produced in Korea)

3rd Stage (2010~)

Model diversification
(expansion of exports)

Roadmap for development of hydrogen fuel cell vehicles

2000 2003 2004 2006 2007 2009~2010 2011 2012

Participation 
in California 
fuel cell 
partnership 
(Santa Fe fuel 
cell vehicle)

Independent 
development 
of fuel cell 
hybrid vehicle

Domestic 
monitoring 
project / 
mounting of 
proprietary 
fuel cell 
system

U.S. Department of Energy test operation 
(Tucson fuel cell vehicle)

Independent development of fuel cell bus Test distribution in Northern
Europe (4 countries)

Small-scale 
production of
fuel cell vehicles

1st Stage (~2006)

2nd Stage (2007~09)

3rd Stage (2009~12)Basic technology research

Prototype development

Initial small-scale application

Blue Waves in Hyundai
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At the centre of our ‘Customer First’ principle is 
Hyundai’s devotion to quality and service 
that connects with people on an emotional level.

The foremost contributor to the success of Hyundai Motor Company today 
is its devotion to quality. In addition, it is Hyundai’s genuine attention to 
detail and devotion to customer satisfaction that enabled Hyundai to grow 
into a premium brand. We will continue to pass on our devotion to each and 
every one of our customers by providing the best quality and services that 
transcend expectations.

1. �‘Home-to-Home’ poster
2. Award ceremony of the 9th Hyundai Motor World Skill Olympics
3. Global Service Support Centre
4. ‘Before Service’ that proactively helps customers

4

1
2

3

Quality management, the first step in 
becoming the most desired brand
The philosophy of Hyundai Motor Company is 
to offer the best quality possible as a promise 
to our customers. In order to keep this promise, 
Hyundai is determined to become the most 
desired brand by continued innovations and 
propagation of a high quality image. We are not 
content with recent gains in quality measures, 
and will continue to pursue the best quality 
through a company-wide effort for zero 
defects and enhancement of the premium feel. 
Through this devotion to quality, Hyundai Motor 
Company will march forward to become one of 
the premier companies in the world.

Maximizing Customer Satisfaction 
through Special Services that Surpass 
expectations
Hyundai Motor Company touches the hearts of 
customers with diverse services that go beyond 
their expectations through the company’s 
state-of-the-art global service network. 
The Before Service program, introduced in the 

industry for the first time by Hyundai Motor 
Company, ensures the safety of Hyundai cars by 
providing free inspection services to 4 million 
customers worldwide. Also, in order to maximize 
the convenience of customers who wish to have 
their Hyundai cars serviced, we have expanded 
the Home-to-Home Service, which provides 
pick-up and delivery services to customers at 
the time and place of their choice for extra 
convenience. Additionally, we have overhauled 
the Hyundai Customer Care Centre (H.C.C.C.) 
process in order to listen and respond to cus-
tomers’ demands better. As a result of this, we 
have initiated several highly regarded service 
offerings such as car renting to customers 
whose cars are in prolonged service care and 
other diverse location-specific service programs. 

Offering highest quality services 
through expert knowledge and 
true devotion
Hyundai Motor Company strives to provide 
satisfaction to customers by training first-
class service personnel and state-of-the-art 

remote technical support services. In order to 
enhance vehicle maintenance capability, the 
most basic form of service, we operate a Global 
Service Support Centre (G.S.S.C.) that supports 
perfect maintenance with remote diagnosis 
capability for solving various types of difficult 
problems. Since 1995, the company has been 
holding a bi-annual maintenance service com-
petition among our global mechanics in order 
to enhance their skills, and in 2012, we held the 
first Global Service Advisor Championship to 
enhance the expertise of our service advisors, 
who are at the forefront of customer relations. 
Also, in 2013, we are launching an all-out work-
shop automation that uses a comprehensive 
digital operating system that takes care of 
all the processes to maximize customer trust 
and operating efficiency. All of this is a mani-
festation of our ‘Customer First’ management 
principle.

Blue Waves in the World
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4 5
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3. Visual Reality Driving Simulator
4. �High temperature testing laboratory
5. �Collision test

R&D networks

1 2

1. Namyang Technical Research Centre
2. �Mabuk Environmental Technology Centre

Technical Research and Design Centres with 
first class talent and state-of-the-art facilities 
to develop locally tailored technologies 
to ensure future competitiveness.

One of the essential competitive assets of a global company is the ability 
to capture the needs of the local customers as well as trends in the market 
and incorporate them into products quickly. Hyundai Motor Company’s 
technical research and design centres are situated in strategic locations 
worldwide. They contribute to attracting new customers by analyzing 
future trends in the automotive industry, and develop car models tailored 
to the needs of the specific regions. Hyundai does not spare resources 
when it comes to developing new technologies that will, in the future, lead 
to better automotive experiences by customers worldwide.

+10%

China Technical Research Centre
The Technical Research Centre located in 
Haejung district in Beijing, China, serves as the 
Technical Research Centre for the Chinese 
market, which is rapidly emerging as the biggest 
automotive market in the world. The research 
centre not only develops high quality cars tai-
lored to local needs, but also strengthens the 
overall competitiveness of the Hyundai brand 
by developing eco-friendly technologies.

Japan Technical Research Centre
Located in Yokohama, the Japan Technical 
Research Centre concentrates on developing 
cutting-edge electronic and hybrid technologies. 

Europe Technical Research Centre
Located near Frankfurt, Germany, the Europe 
Technical Research Centre situated on a land 
area of 33,058 square metres is a high-tech 
multifunctional building that includes engineer-
ing centres for developing quality automobiles 
as well as engines that meet European environ-
mental regulations.

India Technical Research Centre
Located in Hyderabad, India’s ‘IT city,’ the India 
Technical Research Centre actively supports the 
design and analytic research of automobiles as 
well as the development of products suited to 
the local market.

U.S. Technical Research Centre
With headquarters in Ann Arbor, Michigan, and 
a Technical Research Centre and proving ground 
in California, the U.S. Technical Research Centre 
is a cutting-edge institute that oversees auto-
motive research and development focused on 
meeting American driving expectations.

Investment spending in R&D compared 
to previous year (projected) 

(projected) 

Annual R&D investment spending
*Unit: KW 100 million

analytical technologies as well as studies in the 
fields of environment and energy, intelligent 
safety, and human engineering for the purpose 
of developing new frontiers for future growth.

Mabuk Environmental 
Technology Centre, Korea
The Mabuk Environmental Technology Centre in 
Yongin City, Gyeonggi Province, is pushing for-
ward the research of technologies that will lead 
the eco-friendly automobile industry. Projects 
include the development of next-generation 
eco-friendly vehicles, including hydrogen fuel 
cell cars, automotive recycling technologies, and 
eco-friendly clean production technologies.

Technical Research Centres, the base camp for global leadership

Namyang Technical Research Centre, Korea
Hyundai’s Namyang Technical Research Centre 
in Hwaseong City, Gyeonggi Province, is a world-
class integrated research complex equipped 
with a planning centre, design centre, power-
train centre, wide tunnel facilities, collision 
testing facilities, and a comprehensive proving 
ground. Over 10,000 researchers are working 
to develop the world’s best vehicles in perfor-
mance, quality, and eco-friendliness.

Korea Central Research Institute
The Korea Central Research Institute in Uiwang 
City, Gyeonggi Province, focuses on fundamen-
tal research in cutting-edge materials and new 
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Design Centres, 
Creators of Global Trends

Namyang Design Centre
With a video evaluation area, interior evaluation 
area, CAVE system, supercomputers, and other 
cutting-edge design facilities, over 400 top 
designers create global trends at this centre 
through vehicle interior and exterior styling, 
computer-assisted digital simulations, and 
production of new colours for coating Hyundai 
vehicles.

U.S. Design Centre
Located in Irvine, California, the U.S. Design 
Centre sprawls across 33,058 square metres 
where top designers gather to swiftly analyze 
market preferences and create designs that 
cater to the tastes of local customers.

Europe Design Centre
In collaboration with the Europe Technical 
Research Centre in Frankfurt, Germany, this 
centre plays a central role in the development 
of designs that are suited to the needs and 
lifestyles of European customers as well as 
the development of quality vehicles.

Proving Grounds, ensuring strict 
testing with cutting-edge equipment

Ulsan Proving Ground, Korea
The comprehensive proving ground in Ulsan, 
the first of its kind in Korea, has 19 tracks 
and high speed circuits on an area of 660,000 
square metres. 

Namyang Technical Research Centre 
Proving Ground, Korea
The Namyang Technical Research Centre prov-
ing ground is a facility of world-class scale with 
34 tracks, including Belgian, low friction routes, 
and a proving road totaling 70 km including a 
high speed circuit track spread over a 1,650,000 
square metre area. 

California Proving Ground, U.S.
The California proving ground is 10 times the 
size of the Namyang facility, sprawling over 
17,520,740 square metres with more than 
116 km of track, located in the Mohave Desert. 
The largest high speed circuit has a 10.4 km 
long elliptical thee-lane track, on which cars 
can be driven at speeds of up to 250 km/h. 
It is used for various high speed and durability 
tests including maximum speed testing.

1. �U.S. Design Centre
2. �Mock-up of the exterior of a concept car
3. Namyang Technical Research Centre proving ground
4. California proving ground, U.S.

2

1

3
4

A Global Sales Network Reaching the Four Corners of the World

Hyundai introduces a diverse product lineup armed with world-class competitiveness to customers 
in 200 countries through some 6,000 dealers and overseas regional sales and production subsid-
iaries. In addition, by establishing production bases in the central areas of each region, Hyundai 
actively targets the local markets. Hyundai has been responding to the needs of each market by op-
erating production facilities in the emerging markets of India and China (both have three factories), 
Turkey, the Czech Republic, and Russia. Hyundai will expand its global market presence by continuing 
to establish and strengthen the company’s R&D, sales, and production networks.

4.41million

Offering ‘Modern Premium’ 
to customers by strengthening 
its sales network.
Hyundai Motor Company strives to strengthen its global sales network in 
addition to producing region-specific models. In order to expand the sales 
of premium luxury cars such as Centennial (Equus) and Genesis, Hyundai 
has opened showroom spaces in key commercial cities, including New York, 
London, Beijing, and Moscow. Also, since 2009, Hyundai has been remodeling 
dealer showrooms worldwide based on the new company design standard 
and has implemented several education programs such as the Total Dealer 
Education Program. To enhance customer experiences at every contact 
point, Hyundai will continue the process of opening up more direct retail 
shops and upgrading existing dealerships.

1. Europe-specific model, ix20 
2. Brazil-specific model, HB20
3. India-specific model, EON

1
2
3

Domestic sales
*Unit : 1,000 vehicles

Oversea sales
*Unit : 1,000 vehicles

Total sales

Blue Waves in the World
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Elevating Customer Satisfaction  
with Cars developed 
and produced to meet Local Needs
Hyundai Motor Company is strategically establishing state-of-the-art 
global production systems around the world to accurately understand and 
swiftly reflect the lifestyles and preferences of local customers. This not 
only enhances customer satisfaction, but also contributes to regional 
development. Hyundai’s localization strategy of producing and supplying 
high quality cars in physical proximity to the target market will continue 
on into the future.

+8 %
1. Asan factory
2. �Czech factory
3. Turkey factory
4. Russia factory

3

1

4

2

base for expanding into markets not only in 
Europe, but also in the Middle East, Australia, 
and South Africa.

Turkey Factory, Bridge into 
the European Market
The Turkey factory, which is expanding its 
annual production capacity from 100,000 units 
to 200,000 units, is in a strategic location 
that links Europe, Africa, and the Middle East. 
Through localized manufacturing of i20 and 
new compact models to come, the plant con-
tributes greatly to the expansion of exports 
in the region.

Brazil Factory, the New Standard-bearer 
of the Brazilian Market
The Brazil factory, which began mass production 
in September 2012 and selling cars from October, 
is setting a new standard in the compact car 
segment of Brazil’s automotive market offering 
innovative styling, high performance, and five 
years of unlimited warranty. The factory 
expanded its model offerings from one hatch-
back model in 2012 to a cross-over model in 
February 2013, and a sedan model in March. 
Such record time expansion of new models 

American Car of the Year. After reaching the 
300,000 unit threshold in 2010, the Alabama 
factory in 2011 surpassed 1 million units in 
cumulative production for the Sonata model, 
and in 2012, set an annual production record 
of 361,348 units with a cumulative production 
figure of 2 million units, proving its critical 
role in Hyundai’s global success.

China Factories, Optimized Production Systems 
to Prepare for the Chinese Market
In 2012, the Chinese factories recorded 856,000 
units in production and sales, making China 
the biggest market for Hyundai. Currently, the 
first and second factories in Beijing produce 
300,000 units each, and to keep pace with the 
steadily growing Chinese market, in July 2012, 
a third factory with an annual capacity of 
400,000 units began operations, bringing the 
total Chinese production capacity to 1 million 
vehicles per year and serving as a firm foot-
hold for Hyundai’s long-term expansion into 
the Chinese automotive market.

India Factories, World-class Centre for the 
Production and Sales of Compact Cars
Hyundai’s Indian factories are comprehensive 

production facilities that can independently 
handle functions ranging from R&D to testing, 
manufacturing, and sales of products adapted 
to local needs. A second factory was built in 
2008, raising the annual capacity to 600,000 
units. India is the production base for the 
exclusive overseas small-sized models EON, 
i10, and the i20 targeting the European 
market, which are exported to 120 countries 
around the world. Through a variety of 
programs aimed at raising Hyundai’s presence 
in India such as sponsoring the International 
Cricket Council (ICC) World Cup and strict 
adherence to the policy of localization, the 
factories in India achieved the remarkable feat 
of producing 641,281 vehicles and selling 
638,775 in 2012.

Czech Factory, Expanding Market Share in 
Europe through Superior Quality
The Czech factory produces 300,000 units of 
high quality cars, contributing to the dynamic 
expansion of Hyundai’s market share in Europe. 
As a special note, i30 produced in this factory 
was nominated for Car of the Year, Europe 
proving the superior build-quality of Hyundai 
cars. The Czech factory now serves as the 

World’s Best Working Environment, 
right Here in Korea 

Ulsan Factory, the World’s Largest 
Single Factory 
Ulsan is Hyundai’s main factory with an annual 
capacity of 1.5 million units, made up of five 
independent manufacturing facilities on a 
5,050,000 square metre site where over 34,000 
employees produce an average of 6,000 vehicles 
per day. In addition, it has a dedicated pier 
where three 50,000 ton ships can dock at once. 
With some 590,000 planted trees and state-
of-the-art environmental protection facilities, 
it is widely known to locals as the ‘forest 
factory.’ 

Asan Factory, Where Good Working 
Conditions Translate to Good Cars
Asan is a fully self-sufficient factory that 
produces 300,000 units of mid- and large-
sized cars annually for strategic export. With 
a bright and pleasant working environment 
centred on people and nature, this factory 
proves that the quality of the working environ-
ment translates directly to the quality of the 
products.

Jeonju Factory, the World’s Biggest 
Production Centre for Commercial Vehicles
The Jeonju factory, with an annual production 
capacity of 100,000 vehicles, is a plant special-
izing in commercial vehicles. It produces trucks 
that weigh 2.5 tons or more, mid- and large-
sized buses seating 25 passengers or more, 
and specially equipped vehicles.

Local Factories operating 
in the Major Centres of the World

Alabama Factory, Playing a Leading Role in 
Opening Up the U.S. Market
Inaugurated in May 2005 in the heart of the 
U.S. market, the biggest battleground of global 
automakers, the Alabama factory boasts im-
proved productivity and quality. After reaching 
the 10th place among 37 North American fac-
tories in its first year of operations, the press 
factory, for four years in a row since 2009, 
and the engine factory and the Sonata model 
factory, for three years in a row since 2010, 
have topped Harbor Report’s North American 
automaker productivity survey. Elantra, one of 
the models produced in Alabama, received the 
honor of being selected as the 2012 North 

exemplifies Hyundai’s Modern Premium 
through which  the Brazil factory contributes 
to make Hyundai one of the most loved auto-
motive brands in the world.

Russia Factory, the Fastest Growing Car 
Plant in Russia
Hyundai Motor Manufacturing Russia plant, 
which began operations in January 2011 with 
an annual production capacity of 150,000 units 
to mass-produce the Solaris (Accent) model, 
has now increased its capacity to 200,000 units 
to meet ever increasing demands. In 2012, the 
factory emerged as the largest car manufac-
turing plant in the northwest region of Russia, 
operating 10 percent above its stated capacity. 
Also, with respect to production efficiency 
and quality, it was recognized in 2012 as the 
best plant within Hyundai Motor Company. 
At present, this factory produces four models 
specifically developed to meet the needs and 
demands of Russian customers. The Solaris 
(Accent) model, in particular, has sold more 
than 200,000 units in the past two years to be-
come the most loved foreign brand car in the 
country, and was also chosen as the Russia 
Car of the Year recipient in 2012.

2012 productions (Korea factories) 2012 productions (overseas factories)
*Unit : 1,000 vehicles *Unit : 1,000 vehicles

Units produced compared 
to the previous year
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worldwide network

Hyundai Motor India Limited (HMI)
India Technical Centre

Asia-Pacific Regional Headquarters
Asia-Pacific Regional Commercial Headquarters

Beijing Hyundai Motor Company (BHMC)
Hyundai Motor Technical China

Hyundai Motor Japan (HMJ)

Hyundai Motor Group China (HMGC)

Global Support Centre (China)

Hyundai Motor Japan Technical Centre

Hyundai Motor Company 
Australia (HMCA)

Africa Regional Headquarters

Middle East Regional Headquarters
Africa & Middle East Regional 
Headquarters for commercial vehicles

Hyundai Assan Otomotiv San 
ve Tic. A.Ş. (HAOS)

Regional Production Companies

Sales Companies

Production/Sales Companies
middle east
&
africa 4Other

Regional Headquarters

Research Centres

TOTAL FACILITies

Regional Production Companies

Sales Companies

Production/Sales Companies

Other

Regional Headquarters

Research Centres

asia 
&
pacific 11TOTAL FACILITies
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Hyundai Auto Canada (HAC)

Hyundai Translead (HT)
Hyundai Motor America (HMA)

Central & South America Regional Headquarters

Hyundai America Technical Centre Inc. (HATCI)
Hyundai Motor Manufacturing Alabama (HMMA)

Hyundai de Mexico (HYMEX)

Hyundai U.S. Design Centre

Hyundai Motor Brasil (HMB)

worldwide network

Hyundai Motor CIS (HMCIS)

Hyundai Motor Norway AS (HMN)
Hyundai Motor Poland (HMP)

Hyundai Motor Europe Technical Centre GmbH (HMETC)
Hyundai Motor Europe GmbH (HME)

Hyundai Motor Manufacturing Russia LLC (HMMR)

Eastern Europe Regional Headquarters for commercial vehicles
Eastern Europe Regional Headquarters

Hyundai Motor Espana, S.L. (HMES)

Hyundai Motor Company Italy (HMCI)

Hyundai Motor Czech s.r.o. (HMCZ)
Hyundai Motor Manufacturing Czech s.r.o. (HMMC)

Hyundai Motor United Kingdom, Ltd. (HMUK)

Hyundai Motor Deutschland GmbH (HMD)

Hyundai Motor France SAS (HMF)

Hyundai Motor Sport GmbH (HMSG)

Regional Production Companies

Sales Companies

Production/Sales Companies

Other

Regional Headquarters

Research Centres

north america
central &
south america10TOTAL FACILITies

EUROpe

16TOTAL FACILITies

Regional Production Companies

Sales Companies

Production/Sales Companies

Other

Regional Headquarters

Research Centres

CV Latin America & Caribbean 
Regional Headquarters
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As a global player, Hyundai Motor Company will go where people of the 
world gather together and grow closer to one another. That is why we 
sponsor diverse sports such as football, golf, cricket, and ski jumping. 
Going beyond sports, we also support diverse art performances, new 
media events, and motor shows. Through our contribution and support, 
we wish to enrich the lives of our customers and to inspire them.

GLOBAL MARKETING

Supporting the Passion of People worldwide 
with Diverse Sports Sponsorships. 
Meeting Customers in New Places and in New Ways. 

customer base. From 2011, Hyundai has been 
sponsoring the Hyundai Tournament of Cham-
pions, which is a U.S. PGA-affiliated preseason 
competition where the previous year’s winners 
of the PGA Tour compete against one another. 
Starting with the India Cricket World Cup in 2011, 
we have continued to support the International 
Cricket Council (ICC) by sponsoring Sri Lanka 
World T20 and Australia Under-19 Champion-
ship in 2012, India Women’s Cricket World Cup 
in 2013, and also the Wales Champions Trophy 
in the U.K. in 2013. In addition, Hyundai began 
to support ski jumping by sponsoring the 2012 
Ski Flying Championships and participating in 
the 2012-2013 Ski Jumping World Cup season. 
Hyundai will continue its support by sponsoring 
the 2013 Nordic Championships and participating 
again in the 2013-2014 Ski Jumping World Cup 
season. Through these activities, Hyundai Motor 
Company will actively promote its esteemed 
SUV models.

Sponsoring international 
football events   
Hyundai began to forge connections with the 
European football league UEFA and the inter-
national football league FIFA in 1999. Starting 
with the 2002 Korea-Japan World Cup, it went 
on to officially sponsor the 2006 Germany 
World Cup, Euro 2008, and the 2010 South 
Africa World Cup. Following our participation 
in Euro 2012, this year we will participate in 
the Confederations Cup to be held in Brazil. 
We will support fun events for audiences such 
as street cheering. In addition, we will run a 
nationwide road show program featuring the 
popular Goodwill Ball.

Diversifying sports sponsorships: 
from golf, cricket to ski jumping   
Recently, Hyundai Motor Company has expand-
ed its sports sponsorships to include golf, 
cricket, and ski jumping in order to broaden the 

Blue Waves in the World



ANNUAL REPORT 201254 55GLOBAL MARKETING

Motor Shows, Automotive Festivals 
for Car-loving Customers  
In 2012, Hyundai Motor Company participated in 
major international motor shows not only in 
Europe, America, and China, but also in key 
emerging markets. Through these shows, Hyundai 
changed the way people look at the company’s 
cars by innovatively communicating the Modern 
Premium brand image that Hyundai aspires to. 
For example, the novel booth designs presented 
at the motor shows in Paris and Geneva ex-
pressed the new brand identity of Hyundai in 
a clear and creative fashion. Also, the premiere 
launches of Hyundai’s new mass-market model 
i20 World Rally Car and the ix35 hydrogen fuel 
cell vehicle showcased to the world the compa-
ny’s ‘New Thinking. New Possibilities.’ approach 
unique to Hyundai. The participation in the San 
Paulo Motor Show in Brazil marked the launch 
of a new factory in Brazil and Hyundai’s strong 
commitment to the Brazilian market as the of-
ficial sponsor of 2014 Brazil World Cup. Global 
motor shows also served as venues to meet 

and engage with customers by displaying new 
car models and concept cars, projecting brand 
images in creative brand rooms and interactive 
presentations, and holding compelling events 
such as robot-arm performances. As a leading 
automotive company, Hyundai will continue to 
strive to connect with customers worldwide.

Every Second is a ‘Brilliant Moment’ 
from Hyundai
In 2013, Hyundai Motor Company’s plan is to 
introduce various interactive presentations 
that combine new ideas and IT technologies 
together to enhance the experience of our 
brand by customers. The first venue was the 
2013 Consumer Electronics Show (CES) where 
Hyundai showcased its information technology 
with a cockpit containing the 3rd generation 
‘Blue Link’ telematics system. And at the Seoul 
Motor Show, Hyundai plans to unveil, for the 
first time, the 3rd generation of ‘MyBaby,’ 
which embodies future transportation concepts. 
Unlike the previous generations focused on 

visual designs, this model maximizes the experi-
ence aspect and will demonstrate the creative 
capacity of Hyundai to imagine the future. 
Hyundai Motor Company will continue to focus 
on providing new kinds of experiences to our 
customers using creative and novel exhibition 
techniques to deliver brilliant moments.

Hyundai and New Media
As customers’ lifestyle trends change rapidly, 
Hyundai Motor Company is actively seeking 
for new ways to connect with people through 
new media. 
As a part of the campaign to promote the New 
Santa Fe, a teaser trailer of the ad movie, The 
Chaser, was released on Facebook. The Chaser 
was produced as an interactive 360-degree 
Virtual Reality (VR) movie so that users could 
not only watch the video, but also have an in-
teractive 360-degree view of the car’s interior 
space. This movie also featured an engaging 
007-like storyline that, along with the interac-
tive technology, made a lasting impression on 

viewers. 
In addition, in 2011, Hyundai Motor Company, 
with the partnership of Microsoft Advertising, 
introduced the New Thinker’s Index campaign 
that offered revolutionary bi-directional digital 
content experiences. In this campaign, various 
intellectual aptitudes including those required 
in learning vocabulary and mathematics were 
presented to the user with videos featuring 22 
celebrities. The users then participated in an 
interactive bi-directional online quiz, and the 
result told them which celebrity had the most 
similar intellectual aptitude as them. 
Make a Pledge was a EURO 2012 fundraising 
campaign where five Team Hyundai players 
and their fans were asked to pledge for their 
countries to win the tournament, and Hyundai 
promised to donate a euro for every pledge to 
the youth football club Street Football World. 
This campaign resulted in the donation of a 
total of 25,000 euros and fulfilled Hyundai’s 
mission of contributing to the society and 
enhancing its brand image at the same time.

Spreading Brand Values through 
Cultural Marketing 
Good cultural content is an effective way to 
get customers to experience the brand values 
of Hyundai Motor Company. From 2010 to 
2012, Hyundai sponsored Seoul Philharmonic 
Orchestra’s performances, led by Maestro 
Chung Myung-Hoon, in select cities in Europe 
and America. Through these performances, 
Hyundai customers will come to remember 
Hyundai, not only as a car manufacturer, but 
as a lifestyle brand.

1. 2012 Paris Motor Show
2. 2012 San Paulo Motor Show
3. �2012 Geneva Motor Show
4. 2013 CES (Consumer Electronics Show)

2

43

1

5. �‘The Chaser’ campaign for Santa Fe
6. http://www.facebook.com/Hyundaiworldwide
7. ‘New Thinker’s Index’ campaign
8. Seoul Philharmonic Orchestra

6

5

7
8
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With the plan to participate in the 2014 WRC, 
Hyundai has already developed and presented 
an i20-based rally car model at the Paris Motor 
Show and established Hyundai Motor Sports 
GmbH in Bayern, Germany to direct the affairs 
related to car development, testing, team forma-
tion, and operations. The i20 is Hyundai’s stra-
tegic model for the European market, which 
meets all the specifications laid out by the WRC. 
The i20 Rally Car based on this production 
model features best-in-class powertrain per-
formance with a 1,600 cc engine with turbo-

WRC is a competition where mainstream car companies compete with mass 
production cars converted into racing cars. It is one of two most important 
car racing competitions along with Formula 1. Because the races span 13 
countries, starting in Monaco (the Monte Carlo Race), the championship is 
an important opportunity to promote global brand recognition and boost 
sales.

World Rally Championship (WRC)

charger producing 300 ps, special 6-speed race 
optimized transmission and 4-wheel drive 
system, and also features a special suspension 
system that provides optimal drive performance 
in any road surface conditions. The engineers 
from Namyang Technical Research Centre and 
Europe’s rally car specialists banded together 
to develop extreme durability with best 
performance and enhanced aerodynamics. By 
participating in the WRC, Hyundai expects to 
enhance its brand image of not only high quality, 
but also high performance.

global marketing

2

3
1

1. i20 Rally Car with 4-wheel drive system
2. Racing team director, Michel Nandan
3. Drive test of i20 Rally Car

i20 Rally Car for the World Rally Championship

Blue Waves in the World
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Safe Move                                                        

Hyundai is spreading a culture of traffic safety through 
its Safe Move campaign under the motto ‘Making Safe 
Streets Together.’ It incorporates such initiatives as 
organizing car accident prevention classes for children, 
implementing preventive measures against car crashes, 
and supporting car accident victims.

Social contribution symbol and slogan

As the slogan that expresses Hyundai’s entire social 
contribution philosophy, ‘world’ represents the hopes 
and dreams of the world, ‘moving’ represents the desire 
for continuous change and development, and ‘together’ 
represents the harmonious partnership with society. 
As of now, it has been translated and produced into 
23 languages in order to strengthen the resolve of the 
Hyundai Motor Company to make “Moving the World 
Together” a reality.

Corporate social responsibility programs

Hyundai will do its best to touch people’s hearts 
with its corporate social responsibility programs 
all around the world

The role of Hyundai Motor Company as a global automotive leader is not 
only to develop cars of best quality and eco-friendliness, but also to 
study ways to improve the overall well-being of the people in our society. 
Hyundai will strive to do its best to facilitate the well-being of our global 
society by contributing in the ways that best match the character and 
strengths of Hyundai Motor Company.

Blue Waves in the World
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Hyundai’s efforts to promote 
Traffic Safety for Kids
In 2012, Hyundai Motor Company concentrated 
on the Safe Move campaign of its four ‘Move’ 
corporate social responsibility (CSR) programs. 
Under the motto ‘Making Safe Streets Together,’ 
Safe Move’s first and foremost task was to es-
tablish a culture of traffic safety among children. 
To achieve this goal, Hyundai produced the 
Robo-car Poli Road Safety Season 1 animation 
based on the popular cartoon character Robo-
car Poli. This animation, which communicates 
essential road safety information to children, 
has succeeded in educating many children in a 
fun and easy-to-understand method. A second 
season has also been produced, this time in 
collaboration with the National Police Agency 
of Korea. Hyundai continues its effort to 
educate children on road safety by supporting 
character-licensing fairs and running special 
exhibition centres related to safety education. 
In addition, Hyundai also works to support 
children who have been orphaned by car 
accidents with its Three-leaf Clover Worldwide 
program. The program aims to grant the wishes 

of orphaned children in order to inspire them 
with a renewed sense of hope.
 
Hyundai investing in children 
for a better future
Hyundai Motor Company ran a mentoring pro-
gram for orphaned children with the participa-
tion of more than 10,000 company employees. 
The program, which aims to give orphaned 
children motivation and hope for a better 
future, gave 530 boys and girls recommended 
by local schools, welfare centres, and NGO 
organizations, the opportunity to visit Yeosu 
Expo 2012, participate in career counseling, 
and receive house refurbishment for better 
living conditions. Globally, Hyundai opened a 
mechanics training school called the Hyundai-
Koica Dream Centre in Ghana. By training 
young people with useful skills, this school 
helps them get better jobs. Hyundai will 
continue to expand these types of technical 
schools into other African and Asian countries. 
Hyundai believes that its specialty in the 
automotive industry can prove to be beneficial 
in training future technicians.

Volunteer activities
The year 2012 was when Hyundai Motor 
Company’s volunteer programs developed into 
a more mature form. Volunteer activities by 
company employees took on many shapes and 
forms but were united under the overall goal 
of delivering real benefits to people in need. 
The company set up the H-Volunteer Designer 
system that actively aids and facilitates the 
volunteering activities of employees to further 
encourage volunteerism among Hyundai 
employees. This systems allows employees to 
‘design’ their own activity plans and goals. 
In 2012, H-Volunteer Designers participated in 
a wide range of activities, including teaching 
the Korean alphabet Hangul to foreign workers 
and taking portrait photos of the elderly for 
them to use at their funerals when they pass 
away, as it is customary in Korea. 
Also, through the ‘One Village per Company’ 
program, employee volunteers helped improve 
the living conditions of rural villages by making 
flower beds for local schools or tearing down 
safety-hazard facilities in abandoned schools. 
Through these activities, Hyundai strove to 

give real, practical benefits to people living in 
rural villages and fulfill its social responsibili-
ties as a global corporation.

Moving the world together  
with mid-to long-term plans for 
Social contribution 
Hyundai Motor Company’s main focus in 2013 
for social contribution is to first establish a 
mid-to long-term strategy and plan and to 
start implementation right away. The theme of 
these programs is Safe Move (traffic safety), 
and various programs will be developed in 
accordance to this plan. One domestic program 
is the prevention of traffic accidents involving 
children through after-school education 
sessions utilizing the Robo-Car Poli traffic 
safety animations. Hyundai will also qualitatively 
expand the successful Three-leaf Clover 
Worldwide program, adding a mentoring pro-
gram that can continue to support orphaned 
children for a longer period of time.

1. Finding Three-leafed Clover safety camp 
2. Dream Together mentoring program
3. Opening ceremony of Hyundai-Koica Dream 
     Centre in Ghana

2

1

3

4. �‘One Village per Company’ program: 
     painting on the wall of a storage building
5. �‘One Village per Company’ program: 
     making flowerbeds in a local school
6. Signing contract to produce Traffic Safety 
     with Robo-car Poli Season 2

5

4

6
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HYUNDAI, WITH YOU NOW AND ALWAYS
Hyundai’s endless efforts to become “the best-loved automotive brand by customers” have been translated into cars that carry many 
different names, which have been accompanying the lives of customers and receiving their love from all over the world: for some, Hyundai 
is a source of pride; for others, it stands for style or is synonymous with eco-friendliness. Hyundai will continue to be a “lifetime partner” 
of customers in the future, standing by their side every moment of their lives.
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HMC has Board of Directors and two subcommittees including Audit Committee and External Director Candidate Recommendation Committee 
under the Board of Direcotrs. Additionally, an independent Ethics Committee was established in 2007.

The Board of Directors

The BOD makes decisions on matters stipulated by law and the Articles of Incorporation, as well as issues delegated to it through shareholders’ 
meetings. The BOD sets guidelines for the company’s management and makes important decisions related to the execution of projects. The BOD 
supervises the work of executives and management. The BOD consists of four internal and five external directors. The BOD convenes regular 
board meetings as well as extraordinary meetings whenever necessary.

The Audit Committee and the External Director Candidate Recommendation Committee

The Audit Committee consists of four external directors. Its duties include auditing the company’s management and accounting, requesting 
business reports from executives, and monitoring the company’s financial status. The Audit Committee can raise discussions on matters re-
lated to general shareholder meetings, directors and the BOD, and auditing issues. Internal systems to enable members’ access to management 
information necessary for proper auditing are in place.

The External Director Candidate Recommendation Committee consists of 2 internal directors and 3 external directors. All external directors are ap-
pointed after being recommended by the Recommendation Committee. Compensation for directors was capped at KRW 15 billion at the 2012 
General Shareholders Meeting. Total compensation for internal and external directors from 1 January to 31 December 2012 amounted to KRW 9.6 
billion. Average compensation for internal directors was KRW 2.3 billion and KRW 84 million for external directors.

Key Activities of the BOD in 2012

Meetings Date Agenda Resolution

1st General Jan. 26. 2012 •Approval of financial statements for the 44th fiscal year and 8 other items Original Draft Passed

Extraordinary Feb. 22. 2012 •Approval of agenda items for the 44th General Shareholders' meeting and 1 other item Original Draft Passed

Extraordinary Mar. 16. 2012 •Approval of an appointment of the President and CEO and 7 other items Original Draft Passed

2nd General Apr. 26. 2012 •Approval of an appointment of the compliance officer and 3 other items Original Draft Passed

Extraordinary Jun. 25. 2012 •Approval of a transaction with a company featuring the same major shareholder Original Draft Passed

3rd General Jul. 26. 2012 •�Approval of a transaction with a company featuring the same major shareholder and 2 other items Original Draft Passed

Extraordinary Sep. 15. 2012 •Approval of a transaction with a part-material investment related subsidiary and 1 other item Original Draft Passed

4th General Oct. 25. 2012 •�Approval of a transaction with a company featuring the same major shareholder and 2 other items Original Draft Passed

* �Detailed information can be found at HMC’s homepage (http://pr.hyundai.com) or the FSS’s electronic disclosure system (http://dart.fss.co.kr).

Key Activities of the Audit Committee in 2012

Meetings Date Agenda Resolution

1st General Jan. 26. 2012 •Approval of financial statements for the 44th fiscal year and 2 other items Original draft passed

Extraordinary Feb. 22. 2012 •Approval of agenda items for the 44th General Shareholders' meeting Original draft passed

Extraordinary Mar. 16. 2012 •Approval of an appointment of the Chairman of the Audit Committee Original draft passed

2nd General Apr. 26. 2012 - - 

3rd General Jul. 26. 2012 - -

4th General Oct. 25. 2012 - -

* Detailed information can be found at the FSS’s electronic disclosure system (http://dart.fss.co.kr).

Board of Directors

Audit Committee
External Director Candidate
Recommendation Committee Ethics Committee

Corporate Governance 
and Board of Directors

BOD Members (as of end April 2013)

Joint Positions Held

Name Title/Affiliation
External Director 

Candidate 
Recommendation 

Committee
Audit Committee Ethics Committee

Internal

Chung, Mong-Koo Chairman & CEO ○ - -

Choong Ho Kim President & CEO ○ - ○

Gap Han Yoon President & CEO - - -

Eui Sun Chung Vice Chairman - - -

External

Il Hyung Kang Representative Tax Accountant, 
Daeun Tax Corporation ○ ○ -

Se Bin Oh Lawyer, Dong In Law Group ○ ○ ○

Young Chul Yim Lawyer, Shin & Kim - ○ ○

Sung Il Nam Professor of Economics, Sogang University ○ ○ -

You Jae Yi Professor of Business Administration, 
Seoul National University - - ○

* �Detailed information on the directors can be found at HMC’s homepage (Korean: http://pr.hyundai.com; English: http://worldwide.hyundai.com/worldwide_index.html) 
or the Financial Supervisory Service(FSS)’s electronic disclosure system (http://dart.fss.co.kr).

Corporate Governance and Board of Directors
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The Ethics Committee

Hyundai Motor Company established the Ethics Committee in 2007 to improve transparency of internal transactions and to ensure ethical man-
agement of the company. Ethical management and internal transaction restrictions were further reinforced in 2012 when the Committee was 
reorganized as a sub-committee of the BOD. The Ethics Committee consists of three external directors and one internal director. The chair-
manship is held by an external director. Key agenda items in 2011 dealt with insider trading with subsidiaries and social contribution activities.
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and Board of Directors
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Corporate Governance and Board of Directors

Key Activities of the Ethics Committee in 2012

Meetings Date Agenda Resolution

1st General Jan. 26. 2012 •Review of 2012 social contribution plans and 2 other items Original draft passed

2nd General Apr. 16. 2012 •Approval of an amendment to the Work Ethics Code Original draft passed

3rd General Jul. 26. 2012 - -

4th General Oct. 25. 2012 •�Approval of a transaction with a company featuring the same major shareholder and 1 other item Original draft passed

* Detailed information can be found at the FSS’s electronic disclosure system (http://dart.fss.co.kr).
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To the Shareholders and Board of Directors of
Hyundai Motor Company:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Hyundai Motor Company (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries. The fi-
nancial statements consist of the consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and the related 
consolidated statements of income, consolidated statements of comprehensive income, consolidated statements of changes in shareholders’ equity 
and consolidated statements of cash flows, all expressed in Korean won, for the years then ended, respectively. The Company’s management is 
responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements and our responsibility is to express an opinion on 
these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries, including Hyundai 
Capital Services, Inc., whose statements reflect 42.3% and 43.5% of the consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, 
and 49.9% and 44.4% of the consolidated total sales for the years then ended, respectively. Those statements were audited by other auditors 
whose reports have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for those entities, is based solely on the 
reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Those standards require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. An audit also 
includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall consolidated 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position of the Company and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and the results of its opera-
tions and its cash flows for the years then ended, respectively, in conformity with Korean International Financial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”).

Accounting principles and auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries. The accompanying consolidated financial 
statements are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and 
practices generally accepted in countries other than the Republic of Korea. In addition, the procedures and practices utilized in the Republic of 
Korea to audit such financial statements may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries. Accordingly, this report and the 
accompanying consolidated financial statements are for use by those knowledgeable about Korean accounting procedures and auditing standards 
and their application in practice.

Notice to Readers

This report is effective as of March 7, 2013, the auditors’ report date. Certain subsequent events or circumstances may have occurred between 
the auditors’ report date and the time the auditors’ report is read. Such events or circumstances could significantly affect the accompanying 
financial statements and may result in modifications to the auditors’ report.

March 7, 2013

English Translation of a Report Originally Issued in Korean
Independent Auditors’ Report

The accompanying consolidated financial statements including all footnote disclosures were prepared by and are the responsibility of the Group.

Choong Ho Kim
CEO, HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY

HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY AND ITS SUBSIDIARIES (the “Group”)

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In millions of Korean Won

Assets December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 19) ￦ 6,759,338 ￦ 6,231,946

Short-term financial instruments (Note 19) 12,384,057 9,182,575

Trade notes and accounts receivable (Note 3,19) 3,686,824 3,845,517

Other receivables (Note 4,19) 2,304,410 2,240,482

Other financial assets (Note 5,19) 109,299 356,444

Inventories (Note 6) 6,772,864 6,237,752

Other assets (Note 7,19) 1,905,445 1,137,862

Current tax assets 34,575 36,084

Financial services receivables (Note 13,19) 20,867,467 19,657,688

Non-current assets held for sale (Note 8) 23,307 	 -

Total current assets 54,847,586 	 48,926,350

Non-current assets:

Long-term financial instruments (Note 19) 1,359 211,540

Long-term trade notes and accounts receivable (Note 3,19) 43,801 76,843

Other receivables (Note 4,19) 1,036,609 987,207

Other financial assets (Note 5,19) 1,594,464 1,897,943

Other assets (Note 7,19) 44,424 1,288

Property, plant and equipment (Note 9) 20,739,858 19,548,048

Investment property (Note 10) 282,832 282,427

Intangible assets (Note 11) 2,883,218 2,660,109

Investments in joint ventures and associates (Note 12) 13,117,731 11,709,238

Deferred tax assets (Note 32) 489,080 458,287

Financial services receivables (Note 13,19) 18,626,764 17,452,441

Operating lease assets (Note 14) 	 7,830,088 5,268,254

Total non-current assets 	 66,690,228 	 60,553,625

Total assets ￦ 121,537,814 ￦ 109,479,975

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

In millions of Korean Won

liabilities and shareholders’ equity December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Current liabilities:

Trade notes and accounts payable (Note 19) ￦ 6,841,326 ￦ 6,666,406

Other payables (Note 19) 4,542,007 3,752,684

Short-term borrowings (Note 15,19) 6,781,749 7,880,014

Current portion of long-term debt and debentures (Note 15,19) 7,912,341 8,320,194

Income tax payable 550,847 925,519

Provisions (Note 16) 1,768,014 1,686,161

Other financial liabilities (Note 17,19) 148,311 455,914

Other liabilities (Note 18,19) 	 4,291,104 3,476,616

Total current liabilities 	 32,835,699 33,163,508

Non-current liabilities:

Long-term other payables (Note 19) 8,271 29,471

Debentures (Note 15,19) 26,370,689 23,654,325

Long-term debt (Note 15,19) 4,142,473 3,484,127

Defined benefit obligations (Note 33) 821,749 648,639

Provisions (Note 16) 5,240,744 4,960,992

Other financial liabilities (Note 17,19) 356,193 200,197

Other liabilities (Note 18,19) 1,482,358 1,537,003

Deferred tax liabilities (Note 32) 	 2,362,063 1,474,011

Total non-current liabilities 	 40,784,540 35,988,765

Total liabilities 	 73,620,239 69,152,273

Shareholders’ equity:

Capital stock (Note 20) 1,488,993 1,488,993

Capital surplus (Note 21) 4,158,988 4,114,010

Other capital items (Note 22) (1,128,779) (1,128,779)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (Note 23) (473,373) 375,281

Retained earnings (Note 24) 	 39,993,230 32,263,528

Equity attributable to the owners of the Parent Company 	 44,039,059 37,113,033

Non-controlling interests 	 3,878,516 3,214,669

Total shareholders’ equity 	 47,917,575 40,327,702

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity ￦ 121,537,814 ￦ 109,479,975

Continued
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In millions of Korean Won, except per share amounts

2012 2011

Sales (Note 25,38) ￦ 84,469,721 ￦ 77,797,895

Cost of sales (Note 30) 64,972,145 58,902,023

Gross profit 19,497,576 18,895,872

Selling and administrative expenses (Note 26,30) 11,060,629 10,867,043

Operating income 8,436,947 8,028,829

Gain on investments in joint ventures and associates, net (Note 27) 2,579,906 2,403,753

Finance income (Note 28) 969,726 747,546

Finance expenses (Note 28) 624,473 779,666

Other income (Note 29) 1,231,360 1,030,593

Other expenses (Note 29,30) 988,336 983,945

Income before income tax 11,605,130 10,447,110

Income tax expense (Note 32) 2,548,853 2,342,247

Profit for the year ￦ 9,056,277 ￦ 8,104,863

Profit attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company 8,561,825 7,655,871

Non-controlling interests 494,452 448,992

Earnings per share attributable to the owners of the Parent 
Company: (Note 31)

Basic earnings per common share ￦ 31,515 ￦ 28,200

Diluted earnings per common share ￦ 31,515 ￦ 28,200

In millions of Korean Won

2012 2011

Profit for the year ￦ 9,056,277 ￦ 8,104,863

Other comprehensive income (expenses):

Loss on valuation of available-for-sale financial assets, net (80,693) (91,860)

Gain on valuation of cash flow hedge derivatives, net 55,471 4,004

Changes in valuation of equity-accounted investees, net (293,487) 158,977

Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligations, net (247,197) (175,500)

Loss on foreign operations translation, net (636,824) (147,280)

Total other comprehensive expenses (1,202,730) (251,659)

Total comprehensive income ￦ 7,853,547 ￦ 7,853,204

Comprehensive income attributable to:

Owners of the Parent Company 7,378,454 7,415,551

Non-controlling interests 	 475,093 437,653

Total comprehensive income ￦ 7,853,547 ￦ 7,853,204

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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In millions of Korean Won

Capital 
stock

Capital 
surplus

Other 
capital items

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Retained
earnings Total

Non-
controlling 
interests

Total 
equity

Balance at 
January 1, 2011 ￦ 1,488,993 ￦ 3,900,935 ￦ (918,214) ￦ 409,914 ￦ 25,216,163 ￦ 30,097,791 ￦ 2,790,182 ￦ 32,887,973

Comprehensive income:

Profit for the year - - - - 7,655,871 7,655,871 448,992 8,104,863

Loss on valuation of 	
available-for-sale 	
financial assets, net

- - - (91,493) - (91,493) (367) (91,860)

Gain on valuation of 
cash flow hedge 	
derivatives, net

- - - 2,891 - 2,891 1,113 4,004

Changes in valuation 
of equity-accounted 	
investees, net

- - - 199,216 (40,249) 158,967 10 158,977

Actuarial loss
on defined benefit
obligations, net

- - - - (165,438) (165,438) (10,062) (175,500)

Loss on foreign 	
operations 	
translation, net

- - - (145,247) - (145,247) (2,033) (147,280)

Total comprehensive
income - - - (34,633) 7,450,184 7,415,551 437,653 7,853,204

Transactions with 	
owners, recorded 
directly in equity:

Payment of 
cash dividends - - - - (412,227) (412,227) (45,423) (457,650)

Purchase of 
treasury stock - - (400,137) - - (400,137) - (400,137)

Disposal of 
treasury stock - 194,959 189,572 - - 384,531 - 384,531

Increase in 
subsidiaries’ stock - - - - - - 12,871 12,871

Disposal of 	
subsidiaries’ stock - 18,116 - - - 18,116 - 18,116

Other - - - - 9,408 9,408 19,386 28,794

Total transactions with 	
owners, recorded 
directly in equity

- 213,075 (210,565) - (402,819) (400,309) (13,166) (413,475)

Balance at 
December 31, 2011 ￦ 1,488,993 ￦ 4,114,010 ￦ (1,128,779) ￦ 375,281 ￦ 32,263,528 ￦ 37,113,033 ￦ 3,214,669 ￦ 40,327,702

In millions of Korean Won

Capital 
stock

Capital 
surplus

Other 
capital items

Accumulated 
other 

comprehensive 
income

Retained
earnings Total

Non-
controlling 
interests

Total 
equity

Balance at 
January 1, 2012 ￦ 1,488,993 ￦ 4,114,010 ￦ (1,128,779) ￦ 375,281 ￦ 32,263,528 ￦ 37,113,033 ￦ 3,214,669 ￦ 40,327,702

Comprehensive income:

Profit for the year - - - - 8,561,825 8,561,825 494,452 9,056,277

Gain (Loss) on 	
valuation of 	
available-for-sale 	
financial assets, net

- - - (81,330) - (81,330) 637 (80,693)

Gain on valuation of 
cash flow hedge 	
derivatives, net

- - - 29,746 - 29,746 25,725 55,471

Changes in valuation 
of equity-accounted 	
investees, net

- - - (189,602) (102,759) (292,361) (1,126) (293,487)

Actuarial loss
on defined benefit
obligations, net

- - - - (231,958) (231,958) (15,239) (247,197)

Loss on foreign 	
operations 	
translation, net

- - - (607,468) - (607,468) (29,356) (636,824)

Total comprehensive
income - - - (848,654) 8,227,108 7,378,454 475,093 7,853,547

Transactions with 	
owners, recorded 
directly in equity:

Payment of 
cash dividends - - - - (480,105) (480,105) (43,262) (523,367)

Increase in 	
subsidiaries’ stock - 42,866 - - - 42,866 232,050 274,916

Disposal of 	
subsidiaries’ stock - 2,112 - - - 2,112 (10) 2,102

Other - - - - (17,301) (17,301) (24) (17,325)

Total transactions with 	
owners, recorded 
directly in equity

- 44,978 - - (497,406) (452,428) 188,754 (263,674)

Balance at 
December 31, 2012 ￦ 1,488,993 ￦ 4,158,988 ￦ (1,128,779) ￦ (473,373) ￦ 39,993,230 ￦ 44,039,059 ￦ 3,878,516 ￦ 47,917,575

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Continued

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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In millions of Korean Won

2012 2011

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash generated from operations: (Note 34)

Profit for the year ￦ 9,056,277 ￦ 8,104,863

Adjustments 7,123,391 6,918,040

Changes in operating assets and liabilities (8,311,579) (8,596,090)

7,868,089 6,426,813

Interest received 617,736 550,026

Interest paid (1,660,401) (1,722,736)

Dividend received 744,132 605,273

Income tax paid (2,229,870) (1,727,257)

Net cash provided by operating activities 5,339,686 4,132,119

Cash flows from investing activities:

Purchase of short-term financial instruments, net (1,900,099) (337,862)

Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets 448,109 764,699

Proceeds from disposal of other receivables 93,261 412,462

Proceeds from withdrawal of long-term financial instruments - 5

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 69,230 108,727

Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets 1,935 11,047

Proceeds from disposal of investments in joint ventures and associates 241,806 355,584

Acquisition of other financial assets (539,551) (764,965)

Acquisition of other receivables (97,098) (394,144)

Purchase of long-term financial instruments (1,160,000) (500,000)

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (3,000,038) (2,899,177)

Acquisition of intangible assets (798,607) (763,234)

Acquisition of investments in subsidiaries (290,989) -

Acquisition of investments in joint ventures and associates (275,104) (3,105,180)

Other cash receipts (payments) from investing activities, net 8,012 (4,057)

Net cash used in investing activities (7,199,133) (7,116,095)

In millions of Korean Won

2012 2011

Cash flows from financing activities:

Repayment of short-term borrowings, net ￦ (1,363,213) ￦ (1,084,499)

Proceeds from long-term debt and debentures 23,448,538 15,501,739

Paid in capital increase in subsidiaries 277,476 10,618

Repayment of long-term debt and debentures (18,890,467) (10,436,527)

Repayment of other financial liabilities (341,484) -

Purchase of treasury stock - (400,137)

Dividends paid (523,367) (457,650)

Other cash payments from financing activities, net 	 (34,652) (24,740)

Net cash provided by financing activities 	 2,572,831 3,108,804

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (185,992) (108,697)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 527,392 16,131

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 6,231,946 6,215,815

Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year ￦ 6,759,338 ￦ 6,231,946

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Continued

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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1. GENERAL:

Hyundai Motor Company (the “Company” or “Parent Company”) was incorporated in 1967, under the laws of the Republic of Korea. The Company 
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) manufactures and distributes motor vehicles and parts, operates vehicle financing and credit card processing, 
and manufactures trains.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Korea Exchange since 1974 and the Global Depositary Receipts issued by the Company have 
been listed on the London Stock Exchange and Luxemburg Stock Exchange.

As of December 31, 2012, the major shareholders of the Company are Hyundai MOBIS (20.78%) and Chung, Mong Koo (5.17%).

(1)	Th e Company’s consolidated subsidiaries as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Subsidiaries Nature of business Location Ownership percentage Indirect ownership

Hyundai Capital Services, Inc. Financing Korea 56.47%

Hyundai Card Co., Ltd. (*) ˝ ˝ 31.52%

Hyundai Rotem Company Manufacturing ˝ 57.64%

Hyundai KEFICO Corporation ˝ ˝ 100.00%

Green Air Co., Ltd. ˝ ˝ 51.00% Hyundai Rotem 51.00%

Hyundai Autron Co., Ltd. (Formerly, Hyundai Carnes Co., Ltd.) R&D ˝ 60.00%

Hyundai Partecs Co., Ltd. Manufacturing ˝ 56.00%

Hyundai NGV Tech Co., Ltd. Engineering ˝ 53.66%

Maintrans Co., Ltd. Services ˝ 80.00% Hyundai Rotem 80.00%

Jeonbuk Hyundai Motors FC Co., Ltd. Football Club ˝ 100.00%

Hyundai Motor America (HMA) Sales USA 100.00%

Hyundai Capital America (HCA) Financing ˝ 85.00% HMA 85.00%

Hyundai Motor Manufacturing Alabama, LLC (HMMA) Manufacturing ˝ 100.00% HMA 100.00%

Hyundai Translead, Inc. (HT) ˝ ˝ 100.00%

Stamped Metal American Research Technology, Inc. (SMARTI) Holding company ˝ 72.45% HMA 72.45%

Stamped Metal American Research Technology LLC Manufacturing ˝ 100.00% SMARTI 100.00%

Hyundai America Technical Center Inc. (HATCI) R&D ˝ 100.00%

Rotem USA Corporation Manufacturing ˝ 100.00% Hyundai Rotem 100.00%

Hyundai Auto Canada Corp. (HAC) Sales Canada 100.00% HMA 100.00%

Hyundai Auto Canada Captive Insurance Inc. (HACCI) Insurance ˝ 100.00% HAC 100.00%

Hyundai Motor India Limited (HMI) Manufacturing India 100.00%

Hyundai Motor India Engineering Private Limited (HMIE) R&D ˝ 100.00% HMI 100.00%

Hyundai Capital India Private Limited (HCI) Financing ˝ 100.00% Hyundai Capital 
Services 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Japan Co., Ltd. (HMJ) Sales Japan 100.00%

Subsidiaries Nature of business Location Ownership percentage Indirect ownership

Hyundai Motor Japan R&D Center Inc. (HMJ R&D) R&D ˝ 100.00%

Beijing Jingxian Motor Safeguard Service Co., Ltd. (BJMSS) Sales China 100.00%

Beijing Jingxianronghua Motor Sale Co., Ltd. ˝ ˝ 100.00% BJMSS 100.00%

Beijing Xinhuaxiaqiyuetong Motor Chain Co., Ltd. ˝ ˝ 100.00% BJMSS 100.00%

Beijing Hines Millennium Real Estate Development Real estate development ˝ 99.00% CMEs 99.00%

Rotem Equipments (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Manufacturing China 100.00% Hyundai Rotem 100.00%

KEFICO Automotive Systems (Beijing) Co., Ltd. ˝ ˝ 100.00% Hyundai KEFICO 100.00%

KEFICO VietnamI company Limited ˝ Vietnam 100.00% ˝

Hyundai Motor Company Australia Pty Limited (HMCA) Sales Australia 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Manufacturing Czech, s.r.o. (HMMC) Manufacturing Czech 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Czech s.r.o (HMCZ) Sales ˝ 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Europe GmbH (HME) Marketing and Sales Germany 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Deutschland GmbH (HMD) Sales ˝ 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Europe Technical Center GmbH (HMETC) R&D ˝ 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Sport GmbH (HMSG) Marketing ˝ 100.00% HME 100%

Hyundai Capital Europe GmbH Financing ˝ 100.00% Hyundai Capital Services 
100.00%

Hyundai Motor Manufacturing Rus LLC (HMMR) Manufacturing Russia 70.00%

Hyundai Motor Commonwealth of Independent States B.V 
(HMCIS B.V) Holding company Netherlands 100.00% HMMR 1.4%

Hyundai Motor Commonwealth of Independent States (HMCIS) Sales Russia 100.00% HMCIS B.V 100.00%

Hyundai Capital Services Limited 	Liability Company Financing ˝ 100.00% Hyundai Capital Europe 
100.00%

Hyundai Assan Otomotiv Sanayi Ve Ticaret A.S. (HAOSVT) Manufacturing Turkey 89.29%

Eurotem DEMIRYOLU ARACLARI SAN. VE TIC A.S ˝ ˝ 50.50% Hyundai Rotem 50.50%

Hyundai Motor UK Limited (HMUK) Sales UK 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Company Italy S.r.l (HMCI) ˝ Italy 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Espana. S.L (HMES) ˝ Spain 100.00%

Hyundai Motor France SAS (HMF) ˝ France 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Poland Sp. Zo.O (HMP) ˝ Poland 100.00%

Hyundai Motor Norway AS (HMN) ˝ Norway 100.00%

Hyundai de Mexico, SA DE C.V., (HYMEX) Manufacturing Mexico 99.99% HT 99.99%

Hyundai Motor Hungary (HMH) Sales Hungary 100.00%

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Subsidiaries Nature of business Location Ownership percentage Indirect ownership

Hyundai Motor Brasil Montadora de Automoveis LTDA (HMB) Manufacturing Brazil 100.00%

China Millennium Corporations (CMEs) Holding company Cayman Islands 59.60%

Autopia Thirty-Fifth ~ Thirty-Seventh Asset 
Securitization Specialty Company (*) Financing Korea 0.90% Hyundai Capital Services 

0.90%

Autopia Thirty-Ninth ~ Fortieth Asset 
Securitization Specialty Company (*) ˝ ˝ 0.90% ˝

Autopia Forty-Second ~ Forty-	S eventh Asset Securitization 
Specialty Company (*) ˝ ˝ 0.90% ˝

Autopia Forty-Ninth Asset Securitization SpecialtyCompany (*) ˝ ˝ 0.90% ˝

HB the Third Securitization Specialty Company (*) ˝ ˝ 0.90% ˝

Privia the Second ~ Third Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd. (*) ˝ ˝ 0.90% Hyundai Card 0.90%

Hyundai BC Funding Corporation ˝ USA 100.00% HCA 100.00%

Hyundai CHA Funding Corporation ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai Lease Titling Trust Financing USA 100.00% HCA 100.00%

Hyundai HK Funding, LLC ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai HK Funding One, LLC ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai HK Funding Two, LLC ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai Auto Lease Funding, LLC ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai ABS Funding Corporation ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai Capital Insurance Services, LLC ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

HK Real Properties, LLC ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai Auto Lease Offering, LLC ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai HK Lease, LLC ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai Protection Plan, Inc. Insurance ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai Protection Plan Florida, Inc. ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

Hyundai Capital Insurance Company ˝ ˝ 100.00% ˝

(*) The Group is considered to have substantial control over the entities by virtue of an agreement with other investors or relationship with special purpose entities.

(*1) Based on the subsidiary’s consolidated financial statements.
(*2) Accumulated amounts for the year ended December 31, 2012.

(2)	� Condensed financial information of the Company’s major consolidated subsidiaries as of and for the year 	
ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Name of subsidiaries Assets Liabilities Sales(*2) Net income(*2)

Hyundai Capital Services, Inc. (*1) ￦ 21,907,264 ￦ 18,867,513 ￦ 3,541,681 ￦ 432,014

Hyundai Card Co., Ltd. (*1) 11,252,264 9,059,973 2,525,635 191,329

Hyundai Rotem Company (*1) 3,670,360 2,487,134 3,116,629 99,384

Hyundai KEFICO Corporation (*1) 946,741 631,845 1,524,399 71,950

HCA (*1) 20,262,576 18,485,874 2,817,208 256,454

HMA 6,062,965 3,478,837 17,106,517 469,676

HMMC 2,743,127 1,548,297 5,310,664 399,834

HMMA 2,640,184 1,186,305 6,992,135 420,798

HMI (*1) 2,233,585 1,253,787 5,096,544 226,660

HMCIS 876,788 601,754 3,900,218 219,958

HAC (*1) 895,104 468,638 3,426,476 87,167

HMCA 742,880 590,751 2,325,213 28,334

HAOSVT 767,940 528,930 1,575,678 21,331

HMUK 422,809 378,326 1,290,656 7,418

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(*) Based on the subsidiary’s consolidated financial statements.

Condensed financial information of the Company’s major consolidated subsidiaries as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Name of subsidiaries Assets Liabilities Sales Net income (loss)

Hyundai Capital Services, Inc. (*) ￦ 21,918,910 ￦ 19,262,421 ￦ 3,331,479 ￦ 507,404

Hyundai Card Co., Ltd. (*) 10,851,934 8,855,251 2,408,325 238,648

Hyundai Rotem Company (*) 3,585,340 2,480,259 2,769,856 68,474

HCA (*) 15,788,141 14,368,216 1,481,226 145,639

HMA 5,712,084 3,006,242 14,229,624 494,472

HMMC 2,490,710 1,642,716 4,350,894 207,294

HMMA 2,555,982 1,248,197 6,199,652 314,284

HMI (*) 2,262,319 1,278,787 5,051,549 181,956

HMCIS 1,016,579 954,235 3,373,468 126,317

HAC (*) 790,649 430,263 3,122,086 64,913

HMCA 765,249 551,751 2,197,141 55,811

HAOSVT 672,550 552,360 1,477,433 (18,194)

HMUK 521,556 483,267 955,774 6,189

(3)	�Th e financial statements of all subsidiaries, which are used in the preparation of the consolidated financial 	
statements, are prepared for the same reporting periods as the Company’s.

(4)	 Changes in consolidated subsidiaries

Subsidiaries newly included in or excluded from consolidation for the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Changes Name of subsidiaries Description

Included

Hyundai Motor Deutschland GmbH

Acquisition

Hyundai Motor France SAS

Hyundai Automobiles Services SAS (HAS)

Hyundai Accessories & Parts SARL (HAAP)

GE Capital Korea, Ltd.

Hyundai Protection Plan, Inc.

Privia the Third Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd.

Hyundai Protection Plan Florida, Inc.

Hyundai Capital Insurance Company

Hyundai Capital India Private Limited (HCI)

Hyundai Motor Sport GmbH (HMSG)

Autopia Forty-Ninth Asset Securitization Specialty Company

HB the Third Securitization Specialty Company

Hyundai KEFICO Corporation

Capital reductionKEFICO Automotive Systems (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

KEFICO VIETNAM COMPANY LIMITED

Excluded

Hyundai Automobiles Services SAS

MergerHyundai Accessories & Parts SARL

GE Capital Korea, Ltd.

Privia the First Securitization Specialty Co., Ltd. Dissolution

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

The Company maintains its official accounting records in Korean Won and prepares its consolidated financial statements in conformity with Korean 
statutory requirements and Korean International Financial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS”), in Korean language (Hangul). Accordingly, these con-
solidated financial statements are intended for use by those who are informed about K-IFRS and Korean practices. The accompanying consolidated 
financial statements have been condensed, restructured and translated into English with certain expanded descriptions from Korean language 
consolidated financial statements. Certain information included in Korean language consolidated financial statements, but not required for a fair 
presentation of the Group’s consolidated statements of financial position, income, comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity or cash 
flows, is not presented in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

(1)	 Basis of consolidated financial statements presentation

The Group has prepared the consolidated financial statements in accordance with K-IFRS for the annual periods beginning on January 1, 2011.

The significant accounting policies used for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are summarized below. These accounting 
policies are consistent with those applied to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, except for the adoption 
effect of K-IFRS 1107 and K-IFRS 1001.

1) New standards that have been applied from the year beginning on January 1, 2012 are as follows:

- K-IFRS 1107(Amendment): ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’
The Group discloses the nature of the transferred assets, the nature of the risks and rewards of ownership to which the Group is exposed, the 
carrying amounts of the transferred assets and the associated liabilities and other requirements for each class of transferred financial assets 
that are not derecognized in their entirety in accordance with the amendment to K-IFRS 1107.

- K-IFRS 1001(Amendment): ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
The Group changed the presentation of the operating income by deducting cost of sales and selling and administrative expenses from sales in 
accordance with the amendment to K-IFRS 1001. The Group was required to apply the impact of the amendment retrospectively, and hence the 
consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2011 is restated accordingly.

2) �New standards that have been issued but are not yet effective for the year beginning on January 1, 2012 and that have 
not been applied earlier by the Group are as follows:

- K-IFRS 1001(Amendment): ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’
The amendments to K-IFRS 1001 require that other comprehensive income shall be presented and classified by “items not to be reclassified 
subsequently to profit or loss” and “items to be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss”. The amendments to K-IFRS 1001 are effective for 
annual periods beginning on or after July 1, 2012.

- K-IFRS 1019(Amendment): ‘Employee Benefits’
The amendments to K-IFRS 1019 require the recognition of changes in defined benefit obligations and in fair value of plan assets when they 
occur, and hence eliminate the ‘corridor approach’ permitted under the previous version of K-IFRS 1019 and accelerate the recognition of past 
service costs. Interest income on plan assets is calculated using the rate used to discount the defined benefit obligation. The amendments to 
K-IFRS 1019 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

- K-IFRS 1032(Amendment): ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation’
The amendments to K-IFRS 1032 clarify existing application issue relating to the offset of financial assets and financial liabilities requirements. 
The Group’s right of set-off must not be contingent upon any future events but enforceable anytime during the contract period in all of the 
circumstances; in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the entity or the counterparties as well as in the ordinary course of busi-
ness. The amendments to K-IFRS 1032 are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2014.

- K-IFRS 1107(Amendment): ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures’
The amendments to K-IFRS 1107 require disclosures about offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The amendments to K-IFRS 1107 
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

- K-IFRS 1110(Enactment): ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’
K-IFRS 1110 provides a single basis to determine control with three elements: (a) power over an investee, (b) exposure, or rights, to variable 
returns from its involvement with the investee, and (c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s 
return. K-IFRS 1110 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

- K-IFRS 1111(Enactment): ‘Joint Arrangements’ 
K-IFRS 1111 classifies joint arrangements of which two or more parties have joint control into two types, joint operations and joint ventures 
depending on the rights and obligations of the parties to the arrangements. If the Group is a joint operator, the Group is to recognize assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses proportionally to its investment and if the Group is a joint ventures, the Group is to account for that invest-
ment using the equity method accounting. K-IFRS 1111 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

- K-IFRS 1112(Enactment): ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’
K-IFRS 1112 is the standard which requires disclosures of entities that have an interest in a subsidiary, an associate, a joint arrangement or an 
unconsolidated structured entity. K-IFRS 1112 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

- K-IFRS 1113(Enactment): ‘Fair Value Measurement’
K-IFRS 1113 establishes a single source of guidance for fair value measurements and disclosures about fair value measurements. The standard 
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value, and requires disclosures about fair value measurements. K-IFRS 1113 is 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.

The Group does not anticipate that the standards referred above will have any significant effect on the Group’s consolidated financial statements 
and accompanying notes.

3) Presentation of consolidated financial statements

The Group changed the presentation of operating income in accordance with the amendments to K-IFRS 1001 and restated its accompanying 
consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2011 to provide comparative information for the presentation and disclosure. 
As a result of the change in accounting policies, other income of ￦1,231,360 million and other expenses of ￦988,336 million for the year ended 
December 31, 2012 and other income of ￦1,030,593 million and other expenses of ￦983,945 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, which 
included in the operating income according to the standard before amendments, excluded from the operating income. The operating income for the 
years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 decreased by ￦243,024 million and ￦46,648 million, respectively. In addition, certain cash flows arising 
from investing and financing activities are presented on a net basis in accordance with K-IFRS 1007. The accompanying consolidated statement of 
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2011was restated to provide comparative information. 

Such changes in presentation of consolidated financial statements have no effect on the net assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, profits and 
cash flows for the years then ended.

(2)	Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except otherwise stated in the accounting policies below. 
Historical cost is usually measured at the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the assets.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
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(3)	Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities (including special purpose entities) con-
trolled by the Company (or its subsidiaries). Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits 
from its activities.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
from the effective date of acquisition and up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. When necessary, adjustments are made to the finan-
cial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with those used by the Company. All intra-group transactions, balances, 
income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial 
position within equity, separately from the equity of the owners of the Company. The carrying amount of non-controlling interests consists of the 
amount of those non-controlling interests at the initial recognition and the changes in shares of the non-controlling interests in equity since the 
date of the acquisition. Total comprehensive income is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even if the 
non-controlling interest has a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in subsidiaries, without a loss of control, are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying 
amounts of the Group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. 
Any difference between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is 
recognized directly in equity and attributed to owners of the Group.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair 
value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including good-
will), liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. When assets of the subsidiary are carried at revalued amounts or fair values 
and the related cumulative gain or loss has been recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the amounts previously 
recognized in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the relevant assets 
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred directly to retained earnings as specified by applicable K-IFRSs). The fair value of any investment 
retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting 
under K-IFRS 1039 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement or, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an 
associate or a jointly controlled entity.

(4)	 Business combination

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured 
at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the 
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. The consider-
ation includes any asset or liability resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement and is measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs 
are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group’s previously held equity interest in the 
acquiree is remeasured at its fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, 
is recognized in profit or loss. Prior to the acquisition date, the amount resulting from changes in the value of its equity interest in the acquiree 
that have previously been recognized in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment would be appropriate 
if that interest were directly disposed of.

(5)	Revenue recognition

1) Sale of goods
The Group recognizes revenue from sale of goods when all of the following conditions are satisfied: 
• �the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the amount of revenue can be measured 

reliably;
• it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group

The Group grants award credits which the customers can redeem for awards such as free or discounted goods or services. The fair value of the 
award credits is estimated by considering the fair value of the goods granted, the expected rate and period of collection. The fair value of the con-
sideration received or receivable from the customer is allocated to award credits and sales transaction. The consideration allocated to the award 
credits is deferred and recognized as revenue when the award credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled.

2) Rendering of services
The Group recognizes revenue from rendering of services based on the percentage of completion when the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group.

3) Royalties
The Group recognizes revenue from royalties on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreement.

4) Dividend and interest income
Revenues arising from dividends are recognized when the right to receive payment is established. Interest income is recognized using the effective 
interest method as time passes.

5) Construction contracts
Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, the contract revenue and contract costs associated with the construc-
tion contract are recognized as revenue and expenses, respectively by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of 
reporting period.

The percentage of completion of a contract activity is reliably measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred for work performed to 
date relative to the estimated total contract costs, by surveys of work performed or by completion of a physical proportion of the contract work. 
Variations in contract work, claim and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is 
considered probable. Where the outcome of a construction contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognized to the extent of 
contract costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable. Contract costs are recognized as expenses in the period in which they are incurred. 
When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognized as an expense immediately.

(6) 	Foreign currency translation

The individual financial statements of each entity in the Group are measured and presented in the currency of the primary economic environment 
in which the entity operates (its functional currency).

In preparing the financial statements of the individual entities, transactions occurring in currencies other than their functional currency (foreign 
currencies) are recorded using the exchange rate on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denomi-
nated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the reporting period. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of 
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary items that are measured 
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. Exchange differences 
resulting from settlement of assets or liabilities and translation of monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in profit or 
loss in the period in which they arise except for some exceptions.

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities in the Group’s foreign operations are translated into Won, 
using the exchange rates at the end of reporting period. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate for the period, 
unless the exchange rate during the period has significantly fluctuated, in which case the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions are used. 
The exchange differences arising, if any, are recognized in equity as other comprehensive income. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the 
cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss 
on disposal is recognized. Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition of that foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and translated 
at the exchange rate at the end of reporting period.

Foreign exchange gains or losses are classified in other operating income (expense) or finance income (expense) by the nature of the transaction 
or event.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



ANNUAL REPORT 201288 89HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(7) Financial assets

The Group classifies financial assets into the following specified categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), held-to-
maturity (“HTM”) financial assets, loans and receivables and available-for-sale (“AFS”) financial assets. The classification depends on the nature 
and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.

1) Financial assets at FVTPL
FVTPL includes financial assets classified as held for trading and financial assets designated at FVTPL upon initial recognition. A financial asset 
is classified as FVTPL, if it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in near term. All derivative assets, except for 
derivatives that are designated and effective hedging instruments, are classified as held for trading financial assets which are measured at fair 
value through profit or loss. Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognized 
in profit or loss.

2) HTM financial assets
HTM financial assets are non-derivative financial instruments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Group has the posi-
tive intent and ability to hold to maturity. HTM financial assets are presented at amortized cost using the effective interest rate less accumulated 
impairment loss, and interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method.

3) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, and mea-
sured at amortized cost. Interest income is recognized using the effective interest rate method except for short-term receivables for which the 
discount effect is not material.

4) AFS financial assets
AFS financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as AFS or are not classified as loans and receivables, HTM fi-
nancial assets nor financial assets at FVTPL. AFS financial assets are measured at fair value. However, investments in equity instruments that do 
not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost. 

A gain or loss on changes in fair value of AFS financial assets is recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment loss, interest 
calculated using the effective interest method and foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary assets. Accumulated other comprehensive 
income is reclassified to profit or loss from equity at the time of impairment recognition or elimination of related financial assets. Dividends on an 
AFS equity instrument are recognized in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

(8) Impairment of financial assets

1) Financial assets carried at amortized cost
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets 
is impaired. If any such evidence exists, the Group determines the amount of any impairment loss. The amount of the loss is measured as the dif-
ference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, excluding future credit losses that have not 
been incurred, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. The carrying amount of the asset 
is reduced either directly or through use of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is recognized in profit or loss.

Certain financial assets such as trade receivables and financial services receivables that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addi-
tion, assessed for impairment on a collective basis. The objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s 
past experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period, as well as 
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after 
the impairment was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is reversed and recognized in profit or loss. The reversal shall not result 
in a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have been had the impairment not been recognized at the 
date the impairment is reversed.

2) Financial assets carried at cost
The amount of the impairment loss on financial assets that are carried at cost because their fair value cannot be reliably measured is measured as 
the difference between the carrying amount of the financial asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current 
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment losses are not reversed.

3) Available-for-sale financial assets 
If there is objective evidence of impairment on available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss that has been recognized in other compre-
hensive income less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss. Impairment losses recog-
nized in profit or loss for investments in equity instruments classified as AFS are not reversed through profit or loss. Meanwhile, if, in a subsequent 
period, the fair value of a debt instrument classified as AFS increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after the 
impairment loss was recognized in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

(9) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial 
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership nor transfers and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in the asset 
and associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred 
financial asset, the Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

(10) Inventory

Inventory is measured at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventory cost including the fixed and variable manufacturing overhead cost, is 
calculated, using the moving average method except for the cost for inventory in transit which is determined by the identified cost method. 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
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(11) Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant 
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over its policies.

The investment is initially recognized at cost and accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is 
initially recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the Group’s share of the profit 
or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds the Group’s interest in that 
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group discon-
tinues recognizing its share of further losses. Additional losses are recognized only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive 
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of an 
associate recognized at the date of acquisition is recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the investment. The entire 
carrying amount of the investment including goodwill is tested for impairment and presented at the amount less accumulated impairment losses. 
Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after 
reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

Unrealized gains from transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated up to the shares in associate stocks. Unrealized losses 
are also eliminated unless evidence of impairment in assets transferred is produced. If the accounting policy of associates differs from the Group, 
financial statements are adjusted accordingly before applying equity method of accounting. If the Group’s ownership interest in an associate is 
reduced, but the significant influence is continued, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss only a proportionate amount of the gain or loss previously 
recognized in other comprehensive income.

(12) Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a contractual arrangement whereby the Group and other parties undertake an economic activity that is subject to joint control 
(i.e. when the strategic financial and operating policy decisions relating to the activities of the joint venture require the unanimous consent of the 
parties sharing control). Investments in joint ventures are initially recognized at acquisition cost and accounted for using the equity method. The 
carrying amount of the investments contains goodwill arising on the acquisition of the Group’s interest in a jointly controlled entity and presented 
at the amount less accumulated impairment losses. 

(13) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is to be recognized if, and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow 
to the Group, and the cost of the asset to the company can be measured reliably. After the initial recognition, property, plant and equipment is 
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. The cost includes any cost directly attributable to bringing the 
asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management and the initial estimate of 
the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. In addition, in case the recognition criteria are met, 
the subsequent costs will be added to the carrying amount of the asset or recognized as a separate asset, and the carrying amount of what was 
replaced is derecognized. 

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

(14) Investment property

Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both. An investment property is measured initially at its cost and 
transaction costs are included in the initial measurement. After initial recognition, the book value of investment property is presented at the cost 
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment.

Subsequent costs are recognized as the carrying amount of the asset when, and only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated 
with the asset will flow to the company, and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably, or recognized as a separate asset if appropriate. The 
carrying amount of what was replaced is derecognized.

Land is not depreciated, and other investment properties are depreciated using the straight-line method over the period from 20 to 50 years. The 
Group reviews the depreciation method, the estimated useful lives and residual values at the end of each annual reporting period. If expectations 
differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

(15) Intangible asset

1) Goodwil
Goodwill arising from a business combination is recognized as an asset at the time of obtaining control (the acquisition-date). Goodwill is measured 
as the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition-
date fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets 
acquired and the liabilities assumed.

If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed exceeds the aggregate 
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisition-date fair value of the Group’s 
previously held equity interest in the acquiree, the excess is recognized immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is not amortized but tested for impairment at least annually. For purposes of impairment tests, goodwill is allocated to those cash gener-
ating units (“CGU”) of the Group expected to have synergy effect from the business combination. CGU that goodwill has been allocated is tested 
for impairment every year or when an event occurs that indicates impairment. If recoverable amount of a CGU is less than its carrying amount, the 
impairment will first decrease the goodwill allocated to that CGU and the remaining impairment will be allocated among other assets relative to its 
carrying value. Impairment recognized for goodwill may not be reversed. When disposing a subsidiary, related goodwill will be included in gain or 
loss from disposal. 

2) Development costs
The expenditure on research is recognized as an expense when it is incurred. The expenditure on development is recognized as an intangible asset 
if, and only if, all of the following can be demonstrated:

- the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
- the intention to complete the intangible asset and use or sell it;
- the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
- how the intangible asset will generate probable future economic benefits;
- the availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the intangible asset; and 
- the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development.

The cost of an internally generated intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets 
the recognition criteria above and the carrying amount of intangible assets is presented as the acquisition cost less accumulated amortization and 
accumulated impairment losses.

The Group reviews the depreciation method, the estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment at the end of each 
reporting period. If expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in accounting estimate.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimated useful lives (years)

Buildings and structures 5 – 50

Machinery and equipment 2 – 25

Vehicles 3 – 15

Dies, molds and tools 2 – 15

Office equipment 2 – 15

Other 2 – 20
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3) Intangible assets acquired separately
Intangible assets that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization 
is recognized using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews the estimated useful life and amortization 
method at the end of each reporting period. If expectations differ from previous estimates, the changes are accounted for as a change in ac-
counting estimate.

Amortization is computed using the straight line method based on the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Estimated useful lives (years)

Development costs 3 – 5

Industrial property rights 5 – 10

Software 2 – 6

Other 2 – 40

Club membership included in other intangible assets is deemed to have an indefinite useful life as there is no foreseeable limit on the period over 
which the membership is expected to generate economic benefit for the Group, therefore the Group does not amortize it.

(16) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication ex-
ists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset to determine the extent of the impairment loss. Recoverable amount is the higher of 
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. 

If the cash inflow of individual asset occurs separately from other assets or group of assets, the recoverable amount is measured for that individual 
asset; otherwise, it is measured for each CGU to which the asset belongs. Except for goodwill, all non-financial assets that have incurred impairment 
are tested for reversal of impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives or intangible assets not yet available for use are not amortized but tested for impairment at least an-
nually.

(17) Non-current assets held for sale

The Group classifies a non-current asset (or disposal group) as held for sale if its carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale 
transaction rather than through continuing use. The criteria is considered to be met only if the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate 
sale in its present condition and its sale is highly probable. The management must be committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group), and 
the sale should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets (or disposal group) as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

(18) Lease

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All 
other leases are classified as operating leases.

1) The Group as lessor
Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognized as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance 
lease interest income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect an effective interest rate on the Group’s net investment outstanding in 
respect of the leases. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct 
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized as expense 
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

2) The Group as lessee
Assets held under finance leases are initially recognized as assets and liabilities of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, 
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance expenses and the 
reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expenses are allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are recognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

Operating lease payments are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rents for operating lease are rec-
ognized as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 

(19) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalized to the cost of those assets, 
until they are ready for their intended use or sale. A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for 
its intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying 
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. All other borrowing costs are recognized in profit or loss in the period in 
which they are incurred.

(20) Retirement benefit costs

Contributions to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered service entitling them 
to the contributions.

The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position represents the present value of the defined ben-
efit obligation, less the fair value of plan assets and an adjustment for unrecognized past service cost. Defined benefit obligations are calculated 
by an actuary using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation are measured by discounting estimated 
future cash outflows by the interest rate of high-quality corporate bonds with similar maturity as the expected post-employment benefit payment 
date. In countries where there is no deep market in such bonds, the market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds are used. 
Actuarial gain or loss from changes in actuarial assumptions or differences between actuarial assumptions and actual results are recognized in 
other comprehensive income of the statement of comprehensive income, which is immediately recognized as retained earnings. Those recognized in 
retained earnings will not be reclassified in profit and loss of the current period. Past service costs are recognized in profit and loss of the period, 
but if the changes in pension plans require a vesting period, the past service costs are expensed over the vesting period using the straight-line 
method.
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(21) Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow 
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the ob-
ligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the 
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. A provision is measured using the present value of the 
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation. The increase in provision due to passage of time is recognized as interest expense.

The Group generally provides a warranty to the ultimate consumer for each product sold and accrues warranty expense at the time of sale based 
on actual claims history. Also, the Group accrues probable expenses, which may occur due to product liability suit, voluntary recall campaign and 
other obligations at the end of the reporting period. In addition, the Group recognizes provisions for the probable losses of unused loan commit-
ment, construction contracts, pre-contract sale or service contract due to legal or constructive obligations. 

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized 
as an asset if it is certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(22) Taxation 

Income tax expense is composed of current and deferred tax.

1) Current tax 
The current tax is computed based on the taxable profit for the current year. The taxable profit differs from the income before income tax as 
reported in the consolidated statements of income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years 
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax expense is calculated using tax rates that 
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

2) Deferred tax 
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial state-
ments and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable 
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets shall be generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable 
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities 
shall not be recognized if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of 
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests 
in joint ventures, except when the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the tem-
porary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with 
such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that taxable profit will be available against which the temporary difference can 
be utilized and they are expected to be reversed in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied in the period in which the liability is settled or 
the asset is realized, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The 
measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects to 
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and 
when they relate to income tax levied by the same taxation authority. Also, they are offset when different taxable entities which intend either to 
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which 
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

3) Current and deferred tax for the year 
Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, or items arising from initial accounting treatments of a business combination. The tax effect arising from a business combination 
is included in the accounting for the business combination.

(23) Treasury stock

When the Group repurchases its equity instruments (treasury stock), the incremental costs and net of tax effect are deducted from shareholders’ 
equity and recognized as other capital item deducted from the total equity in the consolidated statements of financial position. In addition, profits 
or losses from purchase, sale or retirement of treasury stocks are directly recognized in shareholders’ equity and not in current profit or loss. 

(24) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt instruments and equity instruments issued by the Group are recognized as financial liabilities or equity depending on the contract and the 
definitions of financial liability and equity instrument.

1) Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instru-
ments issued by the Group are recognized at issuance amount net of direct issuance costs.

2) Financial guarantee liabilities
A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because 
a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee liabilities are initially measured at fair value and are subsequently measured at higher amount between obligated amount of the 
contract and the initial cost less accumulated amortization according to profit recognition principles.

3) Financial liabilities at FVTPL
Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated at FVTPL. FVTPL is stated at fair value 
and the gains and losses arising on remeasurement and the interest expenses paid in financial liabilities are recognized in profit and loss.

4) Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at am-
ortized cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognized on an effective-yield basis. 

5) Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Group derecognizes financial liabilities only when the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expired.

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(25) Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair 
value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated 
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.
The Group designates certain derivatives as hedging instruments to hedge the risk of changes in fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an 
unrecognized firm commitment (fair value hedges) and the risk of changes in cash flow of a highly probable forecast transaction and the risk of 
changes in foreign currency exchange rates of firm commitment (cash flow hedge).

1) Fair value hedges
The Group recognizes the changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as fair value hedges are recognized in profit 
or loss immediately, together with any changes in the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk. Hedge ac-
counting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedging instrument is expired, sold, terminated, or exercised, 
or when it is no longer qualified for hedge accounting. The fair value adjustment to the carrying amount of the hedged item arising from the hedged 
risk is amortized to profit or loss from that date.

2) Cash flow hedges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualified as cash flow hedges is recognized in other com-
prehensive income. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognized immediately in profit or loss. Amounts previously recognized 
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognized in 
profit or loss. If the forecast transaction results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or liability, the related gain and loss recognized in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is transferred from equity to the initial cost of related non-financial asset or liability.

Cash flow hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relationship, when the hedge instrument is extinguished, disposed, 
redeemed, exercised, or when it is no longer qualified for the criteria of hedging. Any gain or loss accumulated in equity at that time remains in 
equity and is recognized as profit or loss when the forecast transaction occurs. When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the 
gain or loss accumulated in equity is recognized immediately in profit or loss.

(26) Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainties

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, management is required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying 
amounts of assets and liabilities that cannot be identified from other sources. The estimation and assumptions are based on historical experience 
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may be different from those estimations. The estimates and underlying as-
sumptions are continually evaluated. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The main accounting estimates and assumptions related to the significant risks that may make significant changes to the carrying amounts of as-
sets and liabilities after the reporting period are as follows:

1) Goodwill
Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill has been al-
located. The value in use calculation requires the management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit 
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

2) Warranty provision
The Group recognizes provisions for the warranties of its products as described in Note 2.(21). The amounts are recognized based on the best 
estimate of amounts necessary to settle the present and future warranty obligation.

3) Post-employment benefit obligations
The Group operates defined retirement benefit plans. Defined benefit obligations are determined at the end of each reporting period using an 
actuarial valuation method that requires management assumptions on discount rates, expected rate of return on plan assets and expected rate of 
salary increase. The estimation of post-employment benefit obligation includes significant uncertainties due to its long-term characteristic and 
assumptions used. The characteristic of post-employment benefit plan which serves for the long term period causes significant uncertainties when 
the post-employment benefit obligation is estimated.

4) Taxation
The Group recognizes current tax and deferred tax based on the best estimates of income tax effect to be charged in the future as the result of 
operating activities until the end of the reporting period. However, actual final income tax to be charged in the future may differ from the relevant 
assets and liabilities recognized at the end of the reporting period and the difference may affect income tax charged or credited, or deferred tax 
assets and liabilities in the period in which the final income tax determined.

5) Fair value of financial instruments
The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain type 
of financial instruments. The Group makes judgements on the choice of various valuation methods and assumptions based on the condition of the 
principal market at the end of the reporting period.

6) Measurement and useful lives of property, plant, equipment or intangible assets
If the Group acquires property, plant, equipment or intangible assets from business combination, it is required to estimate the fair value of the as-
sets at the acquisition date and determine the useful lives of such assets for depreciation and amortization. 

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. TRADE NOTES AND ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE:

(1) Trade notes and accounts receivable as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

4. OTHER RECEIVABLES:

Other receivables as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

5. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS:

(1) Other financial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

(2) �Available for sale financial assets which are measured at fair value as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist 
of the following:

(2) Aging analysis of trade receivables

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, total trade notes and accounts receivable that are past due but not impaired are ￦390,632 million and ￦293,025 
million, respectively; of which trade notes and accounts receivable that are past due less than 90 days but not impaired are ￦335,898 million 
and ￦235,267 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the impaired trade notes and accounts receivable are ￦29,543 million and 
￦40,853 million, respectively.

(3) Transferred trade notes and accounts receivable that are not derecognized

As of December 31, 2012, total trade notes and accounts receivable which the Group transferred to financial institutions but did not qualify for 
derecognition, are ￦1,889,307 million. The Group recognize the carrying amount of the trade notes and accounts receivable continuously due to 
the fact that the risks and rewards were not transferred substantially, and cash and cash equivalents received as consideration for the transfer 
are recognized as short-term borrowings.

(4) The changes in allowance for doubtful accounts for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Current Non-current Current Non-current

Trade notes and accounts receivable ￦ 3,716,367 ￦ 48,513 ￦ 3,885,863 ￦ 82,628

Allowance for doubtful accounts (29,543) - (40,346) -

Present value discount accounts - (4,712) - (5,785)

￦ 3,686,824 ￦ 43,801 ￦ 3,845,517 ￦ 76,843

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Current Non-current Current Non-current

Accounts receivables-other ￦ 1,458,809 ￦ 761,943 ￦ 1,405,249 ￦ 707,051

Due from customers for contract work 781,136 - 762,263 -

Lease and rental deposits 54,924 259,040 64,474 236,347

Deposits 11,293 23,594 8,283 29,354

Other 3,489 - 4,389 18,728

Allowance for doubtful accounts (5,241) - (4,176) -

Present value discount accounts - 	 (7,968) - 	 (4,273)

￦ 2,304,410 ￦ 1,036,609 ￦ 2,240,482 ￦ 987,207

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Current Non-current Current Non-current

Financial assets at FVTPL ￦ 67,666 ￦ 19,486 ￦ 18,645 ￦ 72,448

Derivative assets that are effective hedging instruments 15,060 20,745 306,791 171,142

AFS financial assets 12,394 1,544,141 22,960 1,642,632

HTM financial assets 27 35 - -

Loans 14,152 10,057 8,048 11,721

￦ 109,299 ￦ 1,594,464 ￦ 356,444 ￦ 1,897,943

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Acquisition cost Valuation 
difference Book value Book value

Debt instruments ￦ 14,872 ￦ 202 ￦ 15,074 ￦ 24,739

Equity instruments 676,781 864,680 1,541,461 1,640,853

￦ 691,653 ￦ 864,882 ￦ 1,556,535 ￦ 1,665,592

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Beginning of year ￦ 40,346 ￦ 30,355

Impairment loss 10,161 9,986

Write-off (25,246) (174)

Effect of foreign exchange differences (1,075) 179

Changes in scope of consolidation 5,357 -

End of year ￦ 29,543 ￦ 40,346
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(3) �Equity instruments classified into AFS financial assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist  
of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Name of company Ownership 
percentage Acquisition cost Valuation 

difference Book value Book value

Hyundai Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. 2.88 ￦ 56,924 ￦ 473,056 ￦ 529,980 ￦ 562,830

Hyundai Glovis Co., Ltd. 4.88 210,688 194,865 405,553 351,540

Korea Aerospace Industries, Co., Ltd. 10.00 151,086 100,887 251,973 385,514

Hyundai Oil Refinery Co., Ltd. 4.35 53,734 83,756 137,490 130,097

Seoul Metro Line Nine Corporation (*) 25.00 41,779 - 41,779 41,779

Hyundai Green Food Co., Ltd. 2.36 15,005 24,226 39,231 37,270

Hyundai Merchant Marine Co., Ltd. 0.45 9,161 7,194 16,355 17,394

Doosan Capital Co., Ltd. 7.14 10,000 3,508 13,508 16,406

Hyundai Finance Corporation 9.29 9,888 1,177 11,065 10,427

Hyundai Development Company 0.60 9,025 718 9,743 7,560

KT Corporation 0.09 8,655 (132) 8,523 8,559

Ubivelox Co., Ltd. 5.20 1,710 6,150 7,860 9,310

NICE Information Service Co., Ltd. 2.25 3,312 417 3,729 3,189

NICE Holdings Co., Ltd. 1.42 3,491 (364) 3,127 2,497

Hyundai Asan Corporation 2.07 22,500 (20,383) 2,117 4,239

NESSCAP, Inc. 4.53 1,997 (798) 1,199 2,804

Other 67,826 (9,597) 58,229 49,438

￦ 676,781 ￦ 864,680 ￦ 1,541,461 ￦ 1,640,853

(*) �Investments are not accounted for using the equity method, as the Group is considered not to have significant influence over the investee, despite the fact that its ownership 
percentage exceeds twenty percent.

As of December 31, 2012, the valuation difference between the book value and the acquisition cost of AFS equity instruments includes the cumula-
tive impairment loss of ￦27,680 million.

6. INVENTORIES:

Inventories as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

7. OTHER ASSETS:

Other assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Finished goods ￦ 3,476,869 ￦ 3,293,273

Merchandise 294,875 242,583

Semi-finished goods 382,434 332,892

Work in progress 367,896 304,958

Raw materials 1,110,764 1,050,361

Supplies 170,736 173,195

Materials in transit 544,688 420,601

Other 424,602 419,889

￦ 6,772,864 ￦ 6,237,752

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Current Non-current Current Non-current

Accrued income ￦ 403,645 ￦ 329 ￦ 310,286 ￦ -

Advanced payments 517,543 - 387,116 -

Prepaid expenses 247,320 44,095 230,561 1,288

Prepaid value added tax and other 736,937 - 209,899 -

￦ 1,905,445 ￦ 44,424 ￦ 1,137,862 ￦ 1,288
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8. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE:

Non-current assets held for sale as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Land ￦ 19,995 ￦ -

Buildings 3,312 -

￦ 23,307 ￦ -

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Acquisition 
cost

Accumulated
depreciation (*) Book value Acquisition 

cost
Accumulated

depreciation (*) Book value

Land ￦ 5,799,466 ￦ - ￦ 5,799,466 ￦ 5,637,917 ￦ - ￦ 5,637,917

Buildings 6,407,132 (1,819,636) 4,587,496 5,935,208 (1,665,627) 4,269,581

Structures 945,595 (401,122) 544,473 889,454 (346,082) 543,372

Machinery and equipment 11,634,177 (5,801,023) 5,833,154 10,737,165 (5,294,546) 5,442,619

Vehicles 301,304 (119,340) 181,964 266,248 (102,961) 163,287

Dies, molds and tools 5,625,044 (4,139,372) 1,485,672 5,215,788 (3,790,600) 1,425,188

Office equipment 1,434,032 (1,063,004) 371,028 1,353,668 (998,755) 354,913

Other 55,519 (21,226) 34,293 83,167 (30,755) 52,412

Construction in progress 1,902,312 - 1,902,312 1,658,759 - 1,658,759

￦ 34,104,581 ￦ (13,364,723) ￦ 20,739,858 ￦ 31,777,374 ￦ (12,229,326) ￦ 19,548,048

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2012, the Group entered into a contract for disposal of land and buildings classified as non-current assets held for sale and 
the assets will be disposed within 12 months. No impairment loss on non-current assets held for sale is recognized for the year ended December 
31, 2012.

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

(1) Property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

The changes in property, plant and equipment(“PP&E”) for the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

(*) Accumulated impairment is included.

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning
of year Acquisition

Acquisition 
from business 
combinations

Transfer
within PP&E Disposal Depreciation Other (*) End of year

Land ￦ 5,637,917 ￦ 68,809 ￦ 36,189 ￦ 78,717 ￦ (14,386) ￦ - ￦ (7,780) ￦ 5,799,466

Buildings 4,269,581 51,471 46,892 528,634 (8,207) (195,561) (105,314) 4,587,496

Structures 543,372 5,541 1,712 61,022 (1,143) (54,579) (11,452) 544,473

Machinery and equipment 5,442,619 18,010 159,058 1,141,672 (37,977) (734,094) (156,134) 5,833,154

Vehicles 163,287 46,389 12,525 27,112 (16,878) (38,500) (11,971) 181,964

Dies, molds and tools 1,425,188 8,278 7,421 607,580 (8,813) (508,605) (45,377) 1,485,672

Office equipment 354,913 61,840 2,844 113,323 (8,289) (148,294) (5,309) 371,028

Other 52,412 3,858 4,112 (10,817) (1,796) (9,489) (3,987) 34,293

Construction in progress 1,658,759 2,735,842 29,213 (2,547,243) (3,406) - 29,147 1,902,312

￦ 19,548,048 ￦ 3,000,038 ￦ 299,966 ￦ - ￦ (100,895) ￦ (1,689,122) ￦ (318,177) ￦ 20,739,858

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning
of year Acquisition Transfer

within PP&E Disposal Depreciation Other (*) End of year

Land ￦ 5,667,851 ￦ 17,891 ￦ 13,961 ￦ (45,438) ￦ - ￦ (16,348) ￦ 5,637,917

Buildings 4,335,818 37,722 131,264 (8,493) (184,226) (42,504) 4,269,581

Structures 546,936 12,917 33,571 (1,810) (40,056) (8,186) 543,372

Machinery and equipment 5,107,741 48,304 1,137,570 (61,912) (682,775) (106,309) 5,442,619

Vehicles 160,430 26,038 39,238 (24,990) (34,462) (2,967) 163,287

Dies, molds and tools 1,364,502 110,449 502,829 (25,690) (502,695) (24,207) 1,425,188

Office equipment 319,988 91,913 75,797 (2,150) (132,646) 2,011 354,913

Other 6,985 8,763 50,700 (1,597) (7,841) (4,598) 52,412

Construction in progress 1,003,958 2,545,180 (1,984,930) (6,778) - 101,329 1,658,759

￦ 18,514,209 ￦ 2,899,177 ￦ - ￦ (178,858) ￦ (1,584,701) ￦ (101,779) ￦ 19,548,048

(*) Other includes the effect of foreign exchange differences and transfers from or to other accounts.

(*) Other includes the effect of foreign exchange differences and transfers from or to other accounts.

The changes in property, plant and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:



ANNUAL REPORT 2012104 105HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Acquisition 
cost

Accumulated
depreciation Book value Acquisition 

cost
Accumulated
depreciation Book value

Land ￦ 62,874 ￦ - ￦ 62,874 ￦ 46,757 ￦ - ￦ 46,757

Buildings 330,853 (124,830) 206,023 339,065 (117,731) 221,334

Structures 18,303 (4,368) 13,935 18,303 (3,967) 14,336

￦ 412,030 ￦ (129,198) ￦ 282,832 ￦ 404,125 ￦ (121,698) ￦ 282,427

10. INVESTMENT PROPERTY:

(1) Investment property as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

(2) The changes in investment property for the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:
In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning
of year Transfer Depreciation Effect of exchange

 differences End of year

Land ￦ 46,757 ￦ 16,117 ￦ - ￦ - ￦ 62,874

Buildings 221,334 - (11,252) (4,059) 206,023

Structures 14,336 - (401) - 13,935

￦ 282,427 ￦ 16,117 ￦ (11,653) ￦ (4,059) ￦ 282,832

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning
of year Transfer Depreciation Effect of exchange

 differences End of year

Land ￦ 32,159 ￦ 14,598 ￦ - ￦ - ￦ 46,757

Buildings 220,771 7,546 (10,982) 3,999 221,334

Structures 14,186 548 (398) - 14,336

￦ 267,116 ￦ 22,692 ￦ (11,380) ￦ 3,999 ￦ 282,427

The changes in investment property for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

(3) The fair value of investment property as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:
In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Land ￦ 62,874 ￦ 46,757

Buildings 367,472 380,249

Structures 15,223 15,223

￦ 445,569 ￦ 442,229

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Rental income ￦ 30,683 ￦ 26,093

Operating and maintenance expenses 12,862 11,308

On January 1, 2010, K-IFRS transition date, the Group remeasured the fair value of its investment property through an independent third party. As 
of December 31, 2012, no fair value remeasurement was performed, as the change in fair value is considered not to be material.

(4) �Income and expenses related to investment property for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as 
follows:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Acquisition 
cost

Accumulated
amortization (*) Book value Acquisition 

cost
Accumulated

amortization (*) Book value

Goodwill ￦ 303,444 ￦ (2,433) ￦ 301,011 ￦ 179,652 ￦ (2,498) ￦ 177,154

Development costs 5,135,038 (3,280,432) 1,854,606 4,922,873 (3,074,841) 1,848,032

Industrial property rights 104,100 (71,659) 32,441 89,334 (66,557) 22,777

Software 419,119 (188,446) 230,673 308,234 (126,518) 181,716

Other 447,223 (131,356) 315,867 404,030 (113,931) 290,099

Construction in progress 148,620 - 148,620 140,331 - 140,331

￦ 6,557,544 ￦ (3,674,326) ￦ 2,883,218 ￦ 6,044,454 ￦ (3,384,345) ￦ 2,660,109

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS:

(1) Intangible assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

(2) The changes in intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

(3) Research and development expenditure for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(4) Impairment test of goodwill

Goodwill allocated amongst the Group’s cash-generating units as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

The recoverable amount of the Group’s CGU are measured at its value-in-use calculated based on cash flow projections of financial budgets for 
the next five years approved by management and the pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow projections is 17.2%. Cash flows projection 
beyond the next five-year period are extrapolated by using the estimated growth rate which does not exceed the long-term average growth rate 
of the region and industry to which the CGU belongs. No impairment loss is recognized based on the impairment test for the years ended December 
31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning
of year

Internal 
development
and separate
acquisition

Transfer 
within

intangible
assets

Disposal Amortization Impairment Other (*) End of year

Goodwill ￦ 177,607 ￦ - ￦ - ￦ - ￦ - ￦ - ￦ (453) ￦ 177,154

Development costs 1,943,466 621,313 28,492 (786) (665,117) (79,204) (132) 1,848,032

Industrial property rights 21,027 117 6,937 - (5,314) - 10 22,777

Software 137,533 17,413 17,036 (4) (45,905) - 55,643 181,716

Other 273,778 30,165 13,333 (10,395) (22,340) - 5,558 290,099

Construction in progress 98,157 94,226 (65,798) - - - 13,746 140,331

￦ 2,651,568 ￦ 763,234 ￦ - ￦ (11,185) ￦ (738,676) ￦ (79,204) ￦ 74,372 ￦ 2,660,109

The changes in intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(*) Accumulated impairment is included.

(*) Other includes the effect of foreign exchange differences and transfer from or to other accounts.

(*) Other changes include the effect of foreign exchange differences and transfers from or to other accounts.

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Development costs ￦ 632,776 ￦ 621,313

Ordinary development (manufacturing cost) 312,288 191,952

Research costs (administrative expenses) 686,606 632,003

￦ 1,631,670 ￦ 1,445,268

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Vehicle ￦ 199,130 ￦ 96,327

Finance 1,911 482

Other 99,970 80,345

￦ 301,011 ￦ 177,154

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning
of year

Internal 
development
and separate
acquisition

Acquisition 
from business 
combinations

Transfer 
within

intangible
assets

Disposal Amortization Impairment Other (*) End of year

Goodwill ￦ 177,154 ￦ - ￦ 125,721 ￦ - ￦ - ￦ - ￦ - ￦ (1,864) ￦ 301,011

Development costs 1,848,032 632,776 74,776 23,555 - (725,716) (153) 1,336 1,854,606

Industrial property
rights 22,777 292 455 9,638 - (6,071) - 5,350 32,441

Software 181,716 29,430 4,212 22,740 (553) (60,837) - 53,965 230,673

Other 290,099 38,512 1,940 22,024 (1,549) (30,520) (513) (4,126) 315,867

Construction in 
progress 140,331 97,597 - (77,957) (32) - - (11,319) 148,620

￦ 2,660,109 ￦ 798,607 ￦ 207,104 ￦ - ￦ (2,134) ￦ (823,144) ￦ (666) ￦ 43,342 ￦ 2,883,218
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FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES:

(1) Investments in joint ventures and associates as of December 31, 2012 consist of the following:

(2) �The changes in investments in joint ventures and associates for the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Name of company Beginning of year Acquisition/(Disposition) Gain on valuation Other (*) End of year

BHMC ￦ 1,553,871 ￦ - ￦ 672,287 ￦ (568,973) ￦ 1,657,185

WAE 81,260 14,606 17,448 (6,061) 107,253

HMGC 128,318 - 59,980 (84,848) 103,450

Kia Motors Corporation 4,565,683 - 1,255,166 (182,611) 5,638,238

Hyundai engineering & construction Co., Ltd 3,011,421 - 46,798 (34,406) 3,023,813

Hyundai HYSCO Co., Ltd. 449,438 101,711 73,663 (9,541) 615,271

Hyundai WIA Corporation 482,996 (98,597) 112,285 (12,166) 484,518

Hyundai Powertech Co., Ltd. 254,066 - 47,652 (2,643) 299,075

HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. 210,511 - 7,298 (622) 217,187

Hyundai Dymos Inc. 194,332 - 38,616 712 233,660

Eukor Car Carriers Inc. 111,312 - 32,153 (15,584) 127,881

Hyundai Commercial Inc. 122,364 - 23,275 (24,042) 121,597

Other 543,666 139,927 57,145 (252,135) 488,603

￦ 11,709,238 ￦ 157,647 ￦ 2,443,766 ￦ (1,192,920) ￦ 13,117,731

In millions of Korean Won

Name of company Beginning of year Acquisition/(Disposition) Gain on valuation Other (*) End of year

BHMC ￦ 1,231,700 ￦ 86,569 ￦ 579,016 ￦ (343,414) ￦ 1,553,871

WAE 66,215 - 11,366 3,679 81,260

HMGC 93,822 - 77,518 (43,022) 128,318

Kia Motors Corporation 3,242,033 204,408 1,107,807 11,435 4,565,683

Hyundai engineering & construction Co., Ltd - 2,984,937 57,910 (31,426) 3,011,421

Hyundai HYSCO Co., Ltd. 376,298 - 77,951 (4,811) 449,438

Hyundai WIA Corporation 377,072 - 79,258 26,666 482,996

Hyundai Powertech Co., Ltd. 216,242 - 38,356 (532) 254,066

HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. 198,317 - 10,282 1,912 210,511

Hyundai Dymos Inc. 159,887 - 27,958 6,487 194,332

Eukor Car Carriers Inc. 82,259 - 32,413 (3,360) 111,312

Hyundai Commercial Inc. 90,043 - 35,234 (2,913) 122,364

Other 775,563 (333,720) 137,536 (35,713) 543,666

￦ 6,909,451 ￦ 2,942,194 ￦ 2,272,605 ￦ (415,012) ￦ 11,709,238

(*1) Joint venture.
(*2) �As the Group is considered to be able to exercise significant influence by representation on board of directors of the investee and other reasons, although the total ownership 

percentage is less than 20%, the investment is accounted for using the equity method.

(*) �Other consists of decrease by ￦723,742 million due to declaration of the dividends, changes in accumulated other comprehensive income, changes in ownership percentage and 

others.

The changes in investments in joint ventures and associates for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

(*) �Other consists of decrease by ￦583,464 million due to declaration of the dividends, changes in accumulated other comprehensive income, changes in ownership percentage and 
others.

In millions of Korean Won

Name of company Nature of business Location Ownership Percentage (%) Book value

Beijing-Hyundai Motor Company (BHMC) (*1) Manufacturing China 50.00% ￦ 1,657,185

Hyundai WIA Automotive Engine (Shandong) Company (WAE) " " 22.00% 107,253

Hyundai Motor Group China, Ltd. (HMGC) (*1) Investment " 50.00% 103,450

Kia Motors Corporation Manufacturing Korea 33.88% 5,638,238

Hyundai engineering & construction Co., Ltd. Construction " 20.95% 3,023,813

Hyundai HYSCO Co., Ltd. Manufacturing " 29.37% 615,271

Hyundai WIA Corporation " " 26.79% 484,518

Hyundai Powertech Co., Ltd. " " 37.58% 299,075

HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. Securities brokerage " 26.27% 217,187

Hyundai Dymos Inc. Manufacturing " 47.27% 233,660

Eukor Car Carriers Inc. (*2) Transportation " 12.00% 127,881

Hyundai Commercial Inc. Financing " 50.00% 121,597

Other 488,603

￦ 13,117,731

Investments in joint ventures and associates as of December 31, 2011 consist of the following:
In millions of Korean Won

Name of company Nature of business Location Ownership Percentage (%) Book value

Beijing-Hyundai Motor Company (BHMC) (*1) Manufacturing China 50.00% ￦ 1,553,871

Hyundai WIA Automotive Engine (Shandong) Company (WAE) " " 22.00% 81,260

Hyundai Motor Group China, Ltd. (HMGC) (*1) Investment " 50.00% 128,318

Kia Motors Corporation Manufacturing Korea 33.99% 4,565,683

Hyundai engineering & construction Co., Ltd. Construction " 20.95% 3,011,421

Hyundai HYSCO Co., Ltd. Manufacturing " 26.13% 449,438

Hyundai WIA Corporation " " 33.33% 482,996

Hyundai Powertech Co., Ltd. " " 37.58% 254,066

HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. Securities brokerage " 26.27% 210,511

Hyundai Dymos Inc. Manufacturing " 47.27% 194,332

Eukor Car Carriers Inc. (*2) Transportation " 12.00% 111,312

Hyundai Commercial Inc. Financing " 50.00% 122,364

Other 543,666

￦ 11,709,238

(*1) Joint venture.
(*2) �As the Group is considered to be able to exercise significant influence by representation on board of directors of the investee and other reasons, although the total ownership 

percentage is less than 20%, the investment is accounted for using the equity method
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(*) �Although the closing date of the fiscal year of HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. is March, 31, the financial statements, used for applying the equity method, are prepared for 
the same reporting periods as the Company’s.

Condensed financial information of the Group’s major joint ventures and associates as of and for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(3) �Condensed financial information of the Group’s major joint ventures and associates as of and for the year 
ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

(4) �The market price of listed equity securities as of December 31, 2012 is as follows:

(*) �Although the closing date of the fiscal year of HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. is March, 31, the financial statements, used for applying the equity method, are prepared for 
the same reporting periods as the Company’s.

In millions of Korean Won

Name of company Assets Liabilities Sales Net income

BHMC ￦ 7,650,248 ￦ 4,293,581 ￦ 14,519,399 ￦ 1,344,871

WAE 1,282,756 795,244 1,168,745 78,737

HMGC 466,286 243,563 2,024,745 103,915

Kia Motors Corporation 32,398,314 15,550,252 47,242,933 3,864,704

Hyundai engineering & construction Co., Ltd. 12,746,829 7,990,893 13,324,821 566,960

Hyundai HYSCO Co., Ltd. 5,403,067 3,549,366 8,405,083 260,155

Hyundai WIA Corporation 4,573,489 2,691,371 7,021,086 424,564

Hyundai Powertech Co., Ltd. 2,013,016 1,188,248 2,954,852 121,410

HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. (*) 4,257,135 3,582,773 1,104,413 21,511

Hyundai Dymos Inc. 1,368,385 879,442 1,926,637 76,404

Eukor Car Carriers Inc. 2,497,136 1,432,406 2,867,224 323,517

Hyundai Commercial Inc. 3,932,124 3,583,222 347,735 52,327

In millions of Korean Won, except price per share

Name of company Price per share Number of shares Market value

Kia Motors Corporation ￦ 56,500 137,318,251 ￦ 7,758,481 

Hyundai engineering & construction Co., Ltd. 70,000 23,327,400 1,632,918

Hyundai HYSCO Co., Ltd. 45,450 23,554,188 1,070,538

Hyundai WIA Corporation 173,000 6,893,596 1,192,592

HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. 14,200 7,705,980 109,425

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Loans ￦ 27,922,539 ￦ 26,478,053

Card receivables 9,744,711 9,394,236

Financial lease receivables 2,836,499 2,307,352

Other lease receivables 6,951 4,656

40,510,700 38,184,297

Allowance of doubtful accounts (749,166) (729,047)

Loan origination fee (259,716) (333,573)

Present value discount accounts (7,587) (11,548)

￦ 39,494,231 ￦ 37,110,129

In millions of Korean Won

Name of company Assets Liabilities Sales Net income

BHMC ￦ 6,692,470 ￦ 3,547,238 ￦ 12,405,949 ￦ 1,177,038

WAE 995,381 626,017 926,476 51,664

HMGC 622,038 333,536 2,336,190 165,184

Kia Motors Corporation 30,255,179 16,745,469 43,190,942 3,519,236

Hyundai engineering & construction Co., Ltd. 11,871,889 7,508,415 11,920,167 685,139

Hyundai HYSCO Co., Ltd. 4,720,646 3,087,008 8,170,343 297,785

Hyundai WIA Corporation 4,252,849 2,757,406 6,392,708 240,884

Hyundai Powertech Co., Ltd. 1,791,495 1,081,452 2,803,987 98,750

HMC Investment Securities Co., Ltd. (*) 3,485,634 2,836,685 703,424 44,333

Hyundai Dymos Inc. 1,155,459 722,679 1,799,714 69,941

Eukor Car Carriers Inc. 2,671,900 1,744,300 2,558,996 270,115

Hyundai Commercial Inc. 3,465,237 3,114,580 325,819 76,247

13.FINANCIAL SERVICES RECEIVABLES:

(1) Financial services receivables as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

(2) �Aging analysis of financial services receivables

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, total financial services receivables that are past due but not impaired are ￦1,384,125 million and ￦1,098,415 mil-
lion, respectively; of which financial services receivables that are past due less than 90 days but not impaired are ￦1,384,125 million and ￦1,098,415 
million, respectively. As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the impaired financial services receivables are ￦631,406 million and ￦347,906 million, 
respectively.
 
(3) �Transferred financial services receivables that are not derecognized

As of December 31, 2012, the Group issued asset backed securities, which have recourse to the underlying assets, based on loans, card receivables 
and others. As of December 31, 2012, the carrying amounts of the transferred financial assets that are not derecognized and the associated liabili-
ties are ￦13,186,895 million and ￦9,912,680 million, respectively. In addition, as of December 31, 2012, the fair values of the transferred financial 
assets and the associated liabilities are ￦13,156,258 million and ￦10,007,119 million, respectively, and the net position is ￦3,149,139 million.



ANNUAL REPORT 2012112 113HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(4) �The changes in allowance for doubtful accounts of financial services receivables for the years ended  
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(6) �Unearned interest income of financial lease as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(2) �Future minimum lease receipts related to operating lease assets as of December 31,  
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(5) �Gross investments in financial lease and its present value of minimum lease receipts as of December 31,  
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Beginning of year ￦ 729,047 ￦ 615,599

Impairment loss 498,823 494,526

Write-off (398,137) (322,469)

Effect of foreign exchange differences (14,359) 3,262

Transfer and other (77,150) (61,871)

Changes in scope of consolidation 10,942 -

End of year ￦ 749,166 ￦ 729,047

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Acquisition cost ￦ 9,008,006 ￦ 5,922,955

Accumulated depreciation (1,121,592) (618,093)

Accumulated impairment loss (56,326) (36,608)

￦ 7,830,088 ￦ 5,268,254

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Within 1 year ￦ 1,643,559 ￦ 1,232,216

Within 5 years more than 1 year 1,842,246 1,339,767

More than 5 years 2 4

￦ 3,485,807 ￦ 2,571,987

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Gross investments in financial lease ￦ 3,178,866 ￦ 2,603,369

Net lease investments

Present value of minimum lease receipts 2,836,499 2,292,439

Present value of unguaranteed residual value - 14,913

2,836,499 2,307,352

Unearned interest income ￦ 342,367 ￦ 296,017

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Gross investments 
in financial lease 

Present value 
of minimum lease 

receipts
Gross investments 
in financial lease

Present value 
of minimum lease 

receipts

Within 1 year ￦ 1,366,499 ￦ 1,093,879 ￦ 986,287 ￦ 810,018

Within 5 years more than 1 year 1,812,227 1,742,481 1,617,005 1,482,345

More than 5 years 140 139 77 76

￦ 3,178,866 ￦ 2,836,499 ￦ 2,603,369 ￦ 2,292,439

14. OPERATING LEASE ASSETS:

(1) Operating lease assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

15. BORROWINGS AND DEBENTURES:

(1) Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

Annual interest rate

Description Lender December 31, 2012 (%) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Overdrafts Citi Bank and other 0.51~4.40 ￦ 198,630 ￦ 107,616

General loans Kookmin Bank and other 0.31~4.97 2,361,415 3,779,392

Loans on trade receivables collateral Korea Exchange Bank and other LIBOR+0.35~0.60 1,889,307 2,034,557

Banker’s Usance Kookmin Bank and other LIBOR+0.70~0.85 596,229 714,299

Short-term debentures Daewoo Securities and other 2.91~3.84 879,630 229,930

Commercial paper Shinhan Bank and other 2.90~3.96 730,000 920,000

Other Citi Bank and other 0.31~2.21 126,538 94,220

￦ 6,781,749 ￦ 7,880,014
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(2) Long-term debt as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consists of the following:

(3) Debentures as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

Annual interest rate

Description Lender December 31, 2012 (%) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

General loans Shinhan Bank and other 0.20~5.80 ￦ 2,265,859 ￦ 1,369,128

Facility loan Korea Development Bank and other 1.26~5.85 796,486 1,206,574

Commercial paper SK Securities and other 3.07~4.15 343,000 320,000

Asset backed securities JP Morgan and other 0.53~0.95 3,369,345 1,050,777

Other Kookmin Bank and other 0.10~3.00 290,324 640,620

7,065,014 4,587,099

Less: present value discounts 158,398 180,259

Less: current maturities 2,764,143 922,713

￦ 4,142,473 ￦ 3,484,127

In millions of Korean Won

Annual interest rate

Description Latest maturity date December 31, 2012 (%) December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Guaranteed public debentures June 8, 2017 3.75~4.50 ￦ 1,604,827 ￦ 1,726,687

Guaranteed private debentures April 25, 2015 5.68 80,333 86,498

Non-guaranteed public debentures July 31, 2019 2.72~8.76 17,434,701 20,903,643

Non-guaranteed private debentures October 2, 2017 1.63~5.15 2,613,559 2,910,714

Asset backed securities February 15, 2019 0.23~3.15 9,880,999 5,494,645

31,614,419 31,122,187

Less: discount on debentures 95,532 70,381

Less: current maturities 5,148,198 7,397,481

￦ 26,370,689 ￦ 23,654,325

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Warranty ￦ 5,908,719 ￦ 5,850,285

Other long-term employee benefit 609,589 586,628

Other 490,450 210,240

￦ 7,008,758 ￦ 6,647,153

16. PROVISIONS:

(1) Provisions as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the followings:

(2) �The changes in provisions for the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows: 

The changes in provisions for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows: 

In millions of Korean Won

Description Warranty Other long-term 
employee benefit Other

Beginning of year ￦ 5,850,285 ￦ 586,628 ￦ 210,240

Charged 712,587 66,354 452,907

Utilized (795,880) (46,574) (154,684)

Amortization of present value discounts 144,566 - -

Changes in expected reimbursements by third parties 2,343 - -

Effect of foreign exchange differences (72,024) (6) (28,189)

Changes in scope of consolidation 66,842 3,187 10,176

End of year ￦ 5,908,719 ￦ 609,589 ￦ 490,450

In millions of Korean Won

Description Warranty Other long-term 
employee benefit Other

Beginning of year ￦ 5,252,340 ￦ 431,518 ￦ 301,720

Charged (reversed) 1,169,889 214,622 (25,353)

Utilized (728,419) (59,370) (63,115)

Amortization of present value discounts 164,071 - -

Changes in expected reimbursements by third parties (2,550) - -

Effect of foreign exchange differences (5,046) (142) (3,012)

End of year ￦ 5,850,285 ￦ 586,628 ￦ 210,240
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17. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

Other financial liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

(1) Categories of financial assets as of December 31, 2012 consist of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Current Non-current Current Non-current

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (*) ￦ 1 ￦ 4,161 ￦ 426,897 ￦ 16,004

Derivative liabilities that are effective hedging instruments 24,604 331,699 20,482 43,058

Financial lease liabilities 8,458 20,333 8,535 31,390

Other 115,248 - - 109,745

￦ 148,311 ￦ 356,193 ￦ 455,914 ￦ 200,197

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Current Non-current Current Non-current

Advance received ￦ 412,792 ￦ 51,549 ￦ 482,899 ￦ 84,173

Withholdings 1,402,652 554,677 963,451 626,011

Accrued expenses 1,288,105 - 1,102,940 -

Unearned income 482,160 339,549 374,175 299,210

Accrued dividends 77 - 77 -

Due to customers for contrac work 497,948 - 467,868 -

Other 207,370 536,583 85,206 527,609

￦ 4,291,104 ￦ 1,482,358 ￦ 3,476,616 ￦ 1,537,003 

(*) �As of December 31, 2011, debentures designated as financial liabilities at FVTPL of ￦404,666 million are included and the debentures have been redeemed wholly  
as of December 31, 2012.

18. OTHER LIABILITIES:

Other liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

Description
Financial

assets 
at FVTPL

Loans and 
receivables

AFS
financial
assets

HTM
financial
assets

Derivatives 
designated 
as hedging 
instruments

Book value Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents ￦ - ￦ 6,759,338 ￦ - ￦ - ￦ - ￦ 6,759,338 ￦ 6,759,338

Short-term and long-term financial instruments - 12,385,416 - - - 12,385,416 12,385,416

Trade notes and accounts receivable - 3,730,625 - - - 3,730,625 3,730,625

Other receivables - 2,559,883 - - - 2,559,883 2,559,883

Other financial assets 87,152 24,209 1,556,535 62 35,805 1,703,763 1,703,763

Other assets - 403,974 - - - 403,974 403,974

Financial services receivables - 39,494,231 - - - 39,494,231 39,894,670

￦ 87,152 ￦ 65,357,676 ￦ 1,556,535 ￦ 62 ￦ 35,805 ￦ 67,037,230 ￦ 67,437,669

In millions of Korean Won

Description
Financial

assets 
at FVTPL

Loans and 
receivables

AFS
financial
assets

Derivatives 
designated 
as hedging 
instruments

Book value Fair value

Cash and cash equivalents ￦ - ￦ 6,231,946 ￦ - ￦ - ￦ 6,231,946 ￦ 6,231,946

Short-term and long-term financial instruments - 9,394,115 - - 9,394,115 9,394,115

Trade notes and accounts receivable - 3,922,360 - - 3,922,360 3,922,360

Other receivables - 2,465,426 - - 2,465,426 2,465,426

Other financial assets 91,093 19,769 1,665,592 477,933 2,254,387 2,254,387

Other assets - 310,286 - - 310,286 310,286

Financial services receivables - 37,110,129 - - 37,110,129 37,859,530

￦ 91,093 ￦ 59,454,031 ￦ 1,665,592 ￦ 477,933 ￦ 61,688,649 ￦ 62,438,050

Categories of financial assets as of December 31, 2011 consist of the following:
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In millions of Korean Won

Description
Financial 
liabilities 
at FVTPL

Financial 
liabilities carried 
at amortized cost

Derivatives 
designated 
as hedging 
instruments

Book value Fair value

Trade notes and accounts payable ￦ - ￦ 6,841,326 ￦ - ￦ 6,841,326 ￦ 6,841,326

Other payables - 4,550,278 - 4,550,278 4,550,278

Borrowings and debentures - 45,207,252 - 45,207,252 46,237,968

Other financial liabilities 4,162 144,039 356,303 504,504 504,504

Other liabilities - 1,288,182 - 1,288,182  1,288,182

￦ 4,162 ￦ 58,031,077 ￦ 356,303 ￦ 58,391,542 ￦ 59,422,258

In millions of Korean Won

Description
Financial 
liabilities 
at FVTPL

Financial 
liabilities carried 
at amortized cost

Derivatives 
designated 
as hedging 
instruments

Book value Fair value

Trade notes and accounts payable ￦ - ￦ 6,666,406 ￦ - ￦ 6,666,406 ￦6,666,406

Other payables - 3,782,155 - 3,782,155 3,782,155

Borrowings and debentures - 43,338,660 - 43,338,660 43,931,435

Other financial liabilities 442,901 149,670 63,540 656,111 656,111

Other liabilities -  1,103,017 - 1,103,017 1,103,017

￦ 442,901 ￦ 55,039,908 ￦ 63,540 ￦ 55,546,349 ￦ 56,139,124

(2) Categories of financial liabilities as of December 31, 2012 consist of the following:

Categories of financial liabilities as of December 31, 2011 consist of the following:

(3) �Fair value estimation

Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are grouped into Level 1 to Level 3, based on the degree to 
which the fair value is observable, as described below:

•	L evel 1 : Fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
•	L evel 2 : �Fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
•	L evel 3 : �Fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not based 

on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value measurements of financial instruments by fair-value hierarchy levels as of December 31, 2012 are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL ￦ - ￦ 87,152 ￦ - ￦ 87,152

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments - 35,805 - 35,805

AFS financial assets 1,287,409 5,023 264,103  1,556,535

HTM financial assets - 62 - 62

￦ 1,287,409 ￦ 128,042 ￦ 264,103 ￦ 1,679,554

Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL ￦ - ￦ 4,162 ￦ - ￦ 4,162

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments - 356,303 - 356,303

￦ - ￦ 360,465 ￦ - ￦ 360,465

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2011

Description Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets:

Financial assets at FVTPL ￦ - ￦ 91,093 ￦ - ￦ 91,093

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments - 477,933 - 477,933

AFS financial assets 1,388,503 4,019 273,070  1,665,592

￦ 1,388,503 ￦ 573,045 ￦ 273,070 ￦ 2,234,618

Financial Liabilities:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL ￦ 404,666 ￦ 38,235 ￦ - ￦ 442,901

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments - 63,540 - 63,540

￦ 404,666 ￦ 101,775 ￦ - ￦ 506,441

Fair value measurements of financial instruments by fair-value hierarchy levels as of December 31, 2011 are as follows:
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The changes in financial instruments classified as Level 3 for the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

The changes in financial instruments classified as Level 3 for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning of year Purchases Disposals Valuation Transfer End of year

AFS financial assets ￦ 273,070 ￦ 9,042 ￦ (21,162) ￦ 3,153 ￦ - ￦ 264,103

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning of year Purchases Disposals Valuation Transfer End of year

AFS financial assets ￦ 262,373 ￦ 8,222 ￦ (318) ￦ 4,790 ￦ (1,997) ￦ 273,070

(4) �Interest income, dividend income and interest expenses by categories of financial instruments for years 
ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

2012 2011

Description Interest 
income

Dividend 
income

Interest 
expenses

Interest 
income

Dividend 
income

Interest 
expenses

Non-financial services:

Loans and receivables ￦ 586,507 ￦ - ￦ - ￦ 461,359 ￦ - ￦ -

Financial assets at FVTPL - - - 11,198 - -

AFS financial assets 3,769 15,024 - 3,071 17,584 -

HTM financial assets 1 - - - - -

Financial liabilities at FVTPL - - - - - 30,794

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost - - 311,113 - - 353,426

￦ 590,277 ￦ 15,024 ￦ 311,113 ￦ 475,628 ￦ 17,584 ￦ 384,220

Financial services:

Loans and receivables 2,757,278 - - 2,775,731 - -

Financial liabilities at FVTPL - - 14,464 - - 24,822

Financial liabilities carried at amortized cost - - 1,430,910 - - 1,454,303

￦ 2,757,278 ￦ - ￦ 1,445,374 ￦2,775,731 ￦ - ￦ 1,479,125

(5) �The commission income (financial services revenue) arising from financial assets or liabilities other than 
financial assets or liabilities at FVTPL for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are ￦1,616,825 million and 
￦1,615,068 million, respectively. In addition, the fee expenses (cost of sales from financial services) occurring 
from financial assets or liabilities other than financial assets or liabilities at FVTPL for the years ended 
December 31, 2012 and 2011 are ￦808,147 million and ￦687,019 million, respectively.

20. CAPITAL STOCK:

The Company’s number of shares authorized is 600,000,000 shares. Common stock and preferred stock as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist 
of the following:

(1) Common stock

21. CAPITAL SURPLUS:

Capital surplus as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consists of the following:

In millions of Korean Won, except par value

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Issued 220,276,479 shares 220,276,479 shares

Par value ￦ 5,000 ￦ 5,000

Capital stock 1,157,982 1,157,982

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Stock paid-in capital in excess of par value ￦ 3,321,334 ￦ 3,321,334

Other 837,654 792,676

￦ 4,158,988 ￦ 4,114,010

In millions of Korean Won

Description Par value Issued Korean Won Dividend rate

1st preferred stock ￦ 5,000 25,109,982 shares ￦ 125,550 Dividend rate of common stock + 1%

2nd preferred stock ˝ 37,613,865 shares 193,069 Dividend rate of common stock + 2%

3rd preferred stock ˝ 2,478,299 shares 12,392 Dividend rate of common stock + 1%

Total 65,202,146 shares ￦ 331,011

The Company completed stock retirement of 10,000,000 common shares and 1,320,000 common shares as of March 5, 2001 and May 4, 2004, 
respectively. Due to these stock retirements, the total face value of outstanding stock differs from the capital stock amount.

(2) Preferred stock

As of March 5, 2001, the Company retired 1,000,000 second preferred shares. Due to the stock retirement, the total face value of outstanding 
stock differs from the capital stock amount. The preferred shares are non-cumulative, participating and non-voting.



ANNUAL REPORT 2012122 123HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. OTHER CAPITAL ITEMS:

Other capital items consist of treasury stocks purchased for the stabilization of stock price. Number of trea-
sury stocks as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

23. ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Accumulated other comprehensive income as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

25. SALES:

Sales for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

24. RETAINED EARNINGS AND DIVIDENDS:

(1) Retained earnings as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

Number of shares

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Common stock 11,006,710 11,006,710

1st preferred stock 1,950,960 1,950,960

2nd preferred stock 1,000,000 1,000,000

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Gain on valuation of AFS financial assets ￦ 678,559 ￦ 760,361

Loss on valuation of AFS financial assets (2,372) (2,844)

Gain on valuation of cash flow hedge derivatives 4,614 4,722

Loss on valuation of cash flow hedge derivatives (5,726) (35,580)

Gain on valuation of equity-accounted investees 21,532 154,623

Loss on valuation of equity-accounted investees (287,108) (230,597)

Loss on foreign operations translation, net (882,872) (275,404)

￦ (473,373) ￦ 375,281

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Sales of goods ￦ 75,002,314 ￦ 69,345,485

Rendering of services 1,238,936 954,521

Royalties 151,770 179,857

Other 176,141 234,333

Financial services revenue 7,900,560 7,083,699

￦ 84,469,721 ￦ 77,797,895

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Legal reserve (*) ￦ 423,124 ￦ 375,113

Discretionary reserve 26,531,647 19,046,647

Unappropriated 13,038,459 12,841,768

￦ 39,993,230 ￦ 32,263,528

(*) �The Commercial Code of the Republic of Korea requires the Company to appropriate as a legal reserve, a minimum of 10% of annual cash dividends declared, until such reserve 
equals 50% of its capital stock issued. The reserve is not available for the payment of cash dividends, but may be transferred to capital stock or used to reduce accumulated 
deficit, if any.

Appraisal gains, amounting to ￦1,852,871 million, derived from asset revaluation by the Asset Revaluation Law of Korea are included in retained 
earnings. It may be only transferred to capital stock or used to reduce accumulated deficit, if any.

In millions of Korean Won, except per share amounts

Description Common shares 1st Preferred shares 2nd Preferred shares 3rd Preferred shares

Number of shares issued 220,276,479 25,109,982 37,613,865 2,478,299

Treasury shares (11,006,710) (1,950,960) (1,000,000) -

Shares, net of treasury stocks 209,269,769 23,159,022 36,613,865 2,478,299

Par value per share ￦ 5,000 ￦ 5,000 ￦ 5,000 ￦ 5,000

Dividend rate 38% 39% 40% 39%

Dividends declared 397,612 45,160 73,228 4,833

Dividends per share ￦ 1,900 ￦ 1,950 ￦ 2,000 ￦ 1,950

Market price per share 218,500 69,300 75,600 54,500

Dividend yield ratio 0.9% 2.8% 2.6% 3.6%

In millions of Korean Won, except per share amounts

Description Common shares 1st Preferred shares 2nd Preferred shares 3rd Preferred shares

Number of shares issued 220,276,479 25,109,982 37,613,865 2,478,299

Treasury shares (11,006,710) (1,950,960) (1,000,000) -

Shares, net of treasury stocks 209,269,769 23,159,022 36,613,865 2,478,299

Par value per share ￦ 5,000 ￦ 5,000 ￦ 5,000 ￦ 5,000

Dividend rate 35% 36% 37% 36%

Dividends declared 366,222 41,687 67,736 4,460

Dividends per share ￦ 1,750 ￦ 1,800 ￦ 1,850 ￦ 1,800

Market price per share 213,000 63,500 67,100 49,350

Dividend yield ratio 0.8% 2.8% 2.8% 3.6%

(2) The computation of the proposed dividends for the year ended December 31, 2012 is as follows:

The computation of the dividends for the year ended December 31, 2011 is as follows:



ANNUAL REPORT 2012124 125HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. SELLING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES:

Selling and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

28. FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES:

(1) Financial income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consists of the following:

(2) Financial expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

27. GAIN ON INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES:

Gain on investments in joint ventures and associates for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consists of 
the following:

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Selling expenses:

Export expenses ￦ 994,234 ￦ 930,114

Overseas market expenses 385,112 518,060

Advertisements and sales promotion 2,163,739 2,205,031

Sales commissions 531,536 676,161

Expenses for warranties 954,764 1,326,365

Transportation expenses 283,515 226,067

5,312,900 5,881,798

Administrative expenses :

Payroll 2,163,291 2,069,589

Post-employment benefits 143,241 125,026

Welfare expenses 313,181 278,140

Service charges 1,116,815 896,874

Research 686,606 632,003

Other 1,324,595 983,613

5,747,729 4,985,245

￦ 11,060,629 ￦ 10,867,043

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Interest income ￦ 590,277 ￦ 475,628

Gain on foreign exchange transaction 89,945 44,360

Gain on foreign currency translation 147,653 112,751

Dividend income 15,024 17,584

Income on financial guarantee 3,673 5,949

Gain on valuation of financial liabilities at FVTPL 53,920 16,537

Gain on disposal of AFS financial assets - 2,182

Gain on valuation of derivatives 67,655 69,683

Other 1,579 2,872

￦ 969,726 ￦ 747,546

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Interest expenses ￦ 426,698 ￦ 511,617

Loss on foreign exchange transaction 45,809 58,475

Loss on foreign currency translation 122,943 173,406

Loss on disposal of trade notes and accounts receivable 15,330 12,318

Loss on disposal of AFS financial assets 100 27

Impairment loss on AFS financial assets 2,123 -

Loss on valuation of derivatives 11,470 23,823

￦ 624,473 ￦ 779,666

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Gain on valuation of equity-accounted investees, net ￦ 2,443,766 ￦ 2,272,605

Gain on disposal of investments in associates, net 136,140 131,148

￦ 2,579,906 ￦ 2,403,753
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29. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES:

(1) Other income for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consists of the following:

30. EXPENSES BY NATURE:

Expenses by nature for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

31. EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE:

Basic earnings per common share are computed by dividing profit available to common shares by the weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding during the year. The Group does not compute diluted earnings per common share for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 
2011 as there are no dilutive items during the periods.

Basic earnings per common share for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are computed as follows:

(2) Other expenses for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Gain on foreign exchange transaction ￦ 420,252 ￦ 269,418

Gain on foreign currency translation 204,726 157,766

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 31,366 13,681

Commission income 36,586 45,165

Rental income 86,280 69,839

Other 452,150 474,724

￦ 1,231,360 ￦ 1,030,593

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Changes in inventories ￦ (296,076) ￦ (565,926)

Raw materials and merchandise used 47,306,979 43,996,939

Employee benefits 7,397,554 6,659,791

Depreciation 1,700,775 1,596,081

Amortization 823,144 738,676

Other 20,088,734 18,327,450

Total (*) ￦ 77,021,110 ￦ 70,753,011

In millions of Korean Won, except per share amounts

Description 2012 2011

Profit attributable to owners of the Parent Company ￦ 8,561,825 ￦ 7,655,871

Profit available to preferred stock (1,966,766) (1,759,059)

Profit available to common share 6,595,059 5,896,812

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding (*) 209,269,769 shares 209,104,580 shares

Basic earnings per common share ￦ 31,515 ￦ 28,200

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Income tax currently payable ￦ 1,576,461 ￦ 1,687,332

Adjustments recognized in the current year in relation 
to the prior years (39,836) (16,380)

Changes in deferred taxes due to:

Temporary differences 694,868 1,304,792

Tax credits and deficits 162,391 (613,795)

Items directly charged to equity 96,957 54,352

Current tax directly charged to equity - (62,243)

Effect of foreign exchange differences 61,644 (11,811)

Changes in scope of consolidation (3,632) -

Income tax expense ￦ 2,548,853 ￦ 2,342,247

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Loss on foreign exchange transaction ￦ 394,426 ￦ 323,553

Loss on foreign currency translation 180,835 194,662

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 62,983 83,779

Donations 70,301 69,847

Other 279,791 312,104

￦ 988,336 ￦ 983,945

(*) Sum of cost of sales, selling and administrative expenses and other expenses in the consolidated statements of income.

(*) Weighted average number of common shares outstanding includes the effects of treasury stock transactions.

32. INCOME TAX EXPENSE:

(1) Income tax expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 consists of the following:
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(2) The changes in deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the year ended December 31, 2012 are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning of year Changes End of year

Provisions ￦ 1,569,408 ￦ 103,132 ￦ 1,672,540

AFS financial assets (253,238) 23,267 (229,971)

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (521,821) (332,354) (854,175)

Reserve for research and manpower development (169,400) (70,777) (240,177)

Derivatives (75,379) 18,951 (56,428)

Property, plant and equipment (2,754,400) (477,624) (3,232,024)

Accrued income (50,970) 18,536 (32,434)

Loss (gain) on foreign currency translation 41,275 (40,660) 615

Other 232,173 62,661 294,834

(1,982,352) (694,868) (2,677,220)

Accumulated deficit and tax credit carryforward 966,628 (162,391) 804,237

￦ (1,015,724) ￦ (857,259) ￦ (1,872,983)

In millions of Korean Won

Description Beginning of year Changes End of year

Provisions ￦ 1,347,859 ￦ 221,549 ￦ 1,569,408

AFS financial assets (230,441) (22,797) (253,238)

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (334,751) (187,070) (521,821)

Reserve for research and manpower development (112,200) (57,200) (169,400)

Derivatives (67,767) (7,612) (75,379)

Property, plant and equipment (1,577,158) (1,177,242) (2,754,400)

Accrued income (41,122) (9,848) (50,970)

Loss (gain) on foreign currency translation 52,986 (11,711) 41,275

Other 285,034 (52,861) 232,173

(677,560) (1,304,792) (1,982,352)

Accumulated deficit and tax credit carryforward 352,833 613,795 966,628

￦ (324,727) ￦ (690,997) ￦ (1,015,724)

The changes in deferred tax assets (liabilities) for the year ended December 31, 2011 are as follows:

(3) The components of items charged to equity as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(4) �The temporary differences not recognized as deferred tax liabilities related to subsidiaries, associates and 
joint ventures are ￦4,793,848 million and ￦3,946,606 million as of December 31, 2012 and 2011.

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Income tax charged or credited to:

Gain on disposal of treasury stock ￦ - ￦ (62,243)

Deferred tax charged or credited to:

Loss (gain) on valuation of AFS financial assets, net ￦ 25,818 ￦ (2,297)

Gain on valuation of derivatives, net (7,599) (10,392)

Actuarial loss on defined benefit obligations, net 69,330 67,041

Changes in retained earnings of equity-accounted investees 9,408 -

￦ 96,957 ￦ 54,352

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Paid in cash ￦ 6,049 ￦ 6,190

Recognized liability 957 916

￦ 7,006 ￦ 7,106

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Discount rate 3.39~8.25% 4.21~8.00%

Expected return on plan assets 2.78~8.00% 4.08~8.25%

Expected rate of salary increase 1.50~6.00% 1.50~5.60%

33. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN:

(1) �Expenses recognized in relation to defined contribution plans for the years ended December 31,  
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(2) �Actuarial assumptions used by the Company and its subsidiaries, respectively, as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 
are as follows:



ANNUAL REPORT 2012130 131HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(3) �Profit and losses in relation to defined benefit plans for the years ended December 31,  
2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(5) �Changes in present value of the defined benefit obligations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are 
as follows:

(6) �Changes in fair value of the plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Current service cost ￦ 399,983 ￦ 329,122

Interest expense 106,189 96,293

Expected return on plan assets (72,906) (59,788)

￦ 433,266 ￦ 365,627

Cost of sales (Manufacturing cost) ￦ 234,341 ￦ 195,882

Selling and administrative expenses 139,440 122,063

Other 59,485 47,682

￦ 433,266 ￦ 365,627

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Beginning of year ￦ 2,249,240 ￦ 1,808,027

Current service cost 399,983 329,122

Interest expenses 106,189 96,293

Transfer in (out) 979 9,976

Actuarial loss 328,491 247,029

Benefits paid (127,710) (259,737)

Changes in scope of consolidation 28,402 -

Effect of foreign exchange differences and other (9,803) 18,530

End of year ￦ 2,975,771 ￦ 2,249,240

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Beginning of year ￦ 1,600,601 ￦ 1,318,430

Expected return on plan assets 72,906 59,788

Actuarial gain 12,333 4,146

Transfer in (out) (1,126) 4,050

Contributions from plan participants 531,609 330,420

Benefits paid (68,292) (122,230)

Changes in scope of consolidation 16,945 -

Effect of foreign exchange differences and other (10,954) 5,997

End of year ￦ 2,154,022 ￦ 1,600,601

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Present value of defined benefit obligations ￦ 2,975,771 ￦ 2,249,240

Fair value of plan assets (2,154,022) (1,600,601)

Defined benefit obligations ￦ 821,749 ￦ 648,639

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Insurance instruments ￦ 1,948,010 ￦ 1,428,546

Debt instruments 50,859 29,346

Other 155,153 142,709

￦ 2,154,022 ￦ 1,600,601

(4) �The amounts recognized in the consolidated statements of financial position related to defined benefit plans 
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:

The actual returns on plan assets for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were ￦85,239 million and ￦63,934 million, respectively.

(7) �Fair value of the plan assets as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 consist of the following:



ANNUAL REPORT 2012132 133HYUNDAI MOTOR COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARIES FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012 AND 2011
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS:

Cash generated from operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 is as follows:

35. RISK MANAGEMENT:

(1) �Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to maintain an optimal capital structure for maximizing profit of its shareholder and reducing the cost of capital. 
Debt to equity ratio calculated as total liabilities divided by total equity is used as an index to manage the Group’s capital. The overall capital risk 
management policy is consistent with that of the prior period. Debt to equity ratios as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Profit for the year ￦ 9,056,277 ￦ 8,104,863

Adjustments:

Post-employment benefits 433,266 365,627

Depreciation 1,700,775 1,596,081

Amortization of intangible assets 823,144 738,676

Provision for warranties 712,587 1,169,889

Income tax expense 2,548,853 2,342,247

Loss (gain) on foreign currency translation, net (48,601) 97,551

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net 31,617 70,098

Interest expenses (income), net (163,579) 35,989

Gain on valuation of equity-accounted investees, net (2,443,766) (2,272,605)

Gain on disposal of investments in associates, net (136,140) (131,148)

Cost of sales (revenue) from financial services, net 3,300,405 2,775,142

Other 364,830 130,493

7,123,391 6,918,040

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease (increase) in trade notes and accounts receivable 297,742 (813,966)

Decrease in other receivables 371,695 235,836

Decrease in other financial assets 155,604 7,459

Increase in inventories (538,355) (961,690)

Decrease (increase) in other assets (710,477) 56,187

Increase in trade notes and accounts payable 16,971 342,451

Increase in other payables 1,415,433 1,747,476

Increase in other liabilities 945,772 186,666

Decrease in other financial liabilities (168,904) (52,370)

Changes in retirement benefit obligation (529,504) (311,961)

Payment of severance benefits (59,418) (137,507)

Decrease in provisions (997,138) (850,904)

Changes in financial services receivables (4,160,902) (4,475,606)

Increase in operating lease assets (4,415,826) (3,548,013)

Other 65,728 (20,148)

(8,311,579) (8,596,090)

Cash generated from operations ￦ 7,868,089 ￦ 6,426,813

Meanwhile, the Group changed the presentation of increase or decrease in short-term financial instruments and short-term borrowings arising 
from investing and financing activities on the consolidated statements of cash flows from a gross basis to a net basis, and proceeds from and 
repayment of long-term debt and debentures which had been separately presented was combined as described in Note 2.(1).

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Total liabilities ￦ 73,620,239 ￦ 69,152,273

Total equity 47,917,575 40,327,702

Debt to equity ratio 153.6% 171.5%

In millions of Korean Won

Foreign Exchange Rate Sensitivity

Foreign Currency Increase by 5% Decrease by 5%

USD ￦ 1,198 ￦ (1,198)

EUR (47,176) 47,176

JPY (7,549) 7,549

(2) �Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to various financial risks such as market risk (foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquid-
ity risk related to its financial instruments. The purpose of risk management of the Group is to identify potential risks related to financial per-
formance and reduce, eliminate and evade those risks to an acceptable level of risks to the Group. Overall, the Group’s financial risk management 
policy is consistent with the prior period policy.

1) �Market risk

The Group is mainly exposed to financial risks arising from changes in foreign exchange rates and interest rates. Accordingly, the Group uses 
financial derivative contracts to hedge and to manage its interest rate risk and foreign currency risk.

a) Foreign exchange risk management

The Group is exposed to various foreign exchange risk by making transactions in foreign currencies. The Group is mainly exposed to foreign 
exchange risk in USD, EUR and JPY.

The Group manages foreign exchange risk by matching the inflow and the outflow of foreign currencies according to each currency and matu-
rity, and by adjusting the foreign currency settlement date based on its the exchange rate forecast. The Group uses foreign exchange deriva-
tives; such as currency forward, currency swap, and currency option; as hedging instruments. However, speculative foreign exchange trade on 
derivative financial instruments is basically prohibited. 

The Group’s sensitivity to a 5% change in exchange rate of the functional currency against each foreign currencies on income before income tax 
as of December 31, 2012, is as follows:

The sensitivity analysis includes the Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and derivative assets, liabilities but excludes items of income statements 
such as changes of sales and cost of sales due to exchange rate fluctuation.
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b) Interest rate risk management

The Group has borrowings with fixed or variable interest rates. Also, the Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from financial instru-
ments with variable interest rates. To manage the interest rate risk, the Group maintains an appropriate balance between borrowings with fixed 
and variable interest rates for short-term borrowings and has a policy to borrow funds with fixed interest rates to avoid the future cash flow 
fluctuation risk for long-term debt if possible. The Group manages its interest rate risk through regular assessments of the change in markets 
conditions and the adjustments in nature of its interest rates.

The Group’s sensitivity to a 1% change in interest rates on income before income tax as of December 31, 2012 is as follows:

c) Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to market price fluctuation risk arising from AFS equity instruments. As of December 31, 2012, the amount of AFS equity 
instruments measured at fair value is ￦1,541,461 million.

2) �Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk when a counterparty defaults on its contractual obligation resulting in financial loss to the Group. The Group 
operates a policy to transact with counterparties who only meet a certain level of credit rating which was evaluated based on the counterparty’s 
financial conditions, default history, and other factors. The credit risk in the liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited as the 
Group transacts only with financial institutions with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies. Except for the guar-
antee of indebtedness discussed in Note 37, the book value of financial assets on the financial statements represents the maximum amounts of 
exposure to credit risk

3) �Liquidity risk

The Group manages liquidity risk based on maturity profile of its funding. The Group analyses and reviews actual cash outflow and its budget to 
match the maturity of its financial liabilities to that of its financial assets.

Due to the inherent nature of the industry, the Group requires continuous R&D investment and is sensitive to economic fluctuations. The Group 
minimizes its credit risk in cash equivalents by investing in risk-free assets. In addition, the Group has agreements in place with financial institu-
tions with respect to trade financing and overdraft to mitigate any significant unexpected market deterioration. The Group, also, continues to 
strengthen its credit rates to secure a stable financing capability.

The Group’s maturity analysis of its non-derivative liabilities according to their remaining contract period before expiration as of December 31, 
2012 is as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Interest Rate Sensitivity

Accounts Increase by 1% Decrease by 1%

Cash and cash equivalents ￦ 5,752 ￦ (5,752)

Short-term financial instruments and other financial assets 807 (807)

Borrowings and debentures (55,614) 55,614

In millions of Korean Won

Remaining contract period

Description Within
 1 year

Within 5 years 
more than 1 year

More than 
5 years Total

Non interest-bearing liabilities ￦ 12,786,763 ￦ 8,019 ￦ 252 ￦ 12,795,034

Interest-bearing liabilities 15,938,536 30,473,960 1,794,305 48,206,801

Financial guarantee 754,952 72,215 179,655 1,006,822

In millions of Korean Won

2012 2011

Description Sales/proceeds Purchases/expense Sales/proceeds Purchases/expense

Related parties:

Entity with significant influence over the Company ￦ 630,445 ￦ 8,785,788 ￦ 511,319 ￦ 7,907,032

Joint ventures and associates 4,609,762 8,722,623 5,116,055 8,952,433

Other related parties 15,677 1,341,143 12,970 1,111,019

Affiliates by Act: 1,164,960 6,182,864 519,911 4,796,922

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Description Receivables Payables Receivables Payables

Related parties:

Entity with significant influence over the Company ￦ 227,839 ￦ 1,370,080 ￦ 146,745 ￦ 1,238,695

Joint ventures and associates 1,044,898 1,394,439 923,052 1,282,713

Other related parties 4,415 368,329 7,504 329,323

Affiliates by Act: 383,874 923,755 76,273 866,699
The maturity analysis is based on the non-discounted cash flows and the earliest maturity date that payments including both principal and inter-
est, which should be made.

(3) �Derivative instrument

The Group enters into derivative instrument contracts such as forwards, options and swaps to hedge its exposure to changes in foreign ex-
change rate.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group deferred a net loss of ￦1,112 million and ￦30,858 million, respectively, in accumulated other com-
prehensive loss, on its effective cash flow hedging instruments. 

The longest period in which the forecasted transactions are expected to occur is within 57 months as of December 31, 2012.

For the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Group recognized a net loss of ￦410,510 million and a net gain of ￦171,847 million in profit 
or loss(before tax), respectively, which resulted from the ineffective portion of its cash flow hedging instruments and changes in the valuation 
of its other non-hedging derivative instruments.

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

The transactions and balances of receivables and payables within the Group are wholly eliminated in the preparation of consolidated financial 
statements of the Group.

(1) �Significant transactions arising from operations for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 between the 
Group and related parties or affiliates by Monopoly Regulation And Fair Trade Act of the Republic of Korea 
(“Act”) are as follows:

(2) �As of December 31, 2012 and 2011 significant balances arising from operations related to the transactions  
between the Group and related parties or affiliates by Act are as follows:
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(3) �Compensation of registered and unregistered directors, who are considered to be the key management  
personnel for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:

(5) �Hyundai Capital Services, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, has a Revolving Credit Facility Agreement with the 
following financial institutions:

(6) �Hyundai Card Co., Ltd, a subsidiary of the Company, has a Revolving Credit Facility Agreement  
with the following financial institutions:

(7) �Hyundai Card Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, has an asset backed securitization agreement, which 
provides early redemption clauses when certain triggering events occur. Such clauses are in place to limit 
the risk that the investors may incur due to changes in asset quality of the subsidiary in the future. In the 
event the asset-backed securitization triggers such events, Hyundai Card Co., Ltd. is obligated to make early 
redemption of its asset-backed securities.

(8) �The shares of Hyundai Engineering & Construction Co., Ltd, an equity method investee acquired during 2011, are 
restricted to be transferred or pledged as collateral in whole or in part to third party without prior writ-
ten consent of the seller for the following two years from the acquisition. On the purpose of assuring this 
restriction, the shares of the associate worth of 10% of the total acquisition price are held by the designat-
ed escrow agent.

In millions of Korean Won

Description 2012 2011

Short-term employee salaries ￦ 163,126 ￦ 143,201

Post-employment benefits 29,000 26,840

Other long-term benefits 504 550

￦ 192,630 ￦ 170,591

Financial institutions Credit line

GE Capital Corporation Euro worth of USD 	 1,000 million

Citi Bank, N.A. USD	 200 million

The Bank of Tokyo Mitsubishi UFJ., LTD. USD	 200 million

Mizuho Corporate Bank, Seoul Branch KRW	  65,000 million

JP Morgan, Seoul Branch KRW	  110,000 million

Citi Bank, Seoul KRW	  50,000 million

Standard Chartered, Seoul Branch KRW	  50,000 million

Societe Generale, Seoul Branch KRW	  55,000 million

Bank of China, Seoul KRW	  30,000 million

DBS Bank, Seoul KRW	 100,000 million

Credit Agricole, Seoul KRW	 100,000 million

RBS, Seoul KRW	  110,000 million

Kookmin Bank KRW	  200,000 million

Korea Development Bank KRW	  60,000 million

Kyobo life insurance co., ltd. KRW	  50,000 million

Financial institutions Credit line

GE Capital Corporation Euro worth of USD 	 200 million

Woori Bank KRW	 200,000 million

Kookmin Bank KRW	 160,000 million

Shinhan Bank KRW	 100,000 million

NH bank KRW	 100,000 million

Citibank, Seoul KRW	 50,000 million

In millions of Korean Won

Description Domestic Overseas (*)

Associates ￦ - ￦ 103,897

Others 143,776 973,338

Customer financing and lease financing 42,876 -

￦ 186,652 ￦ 1,077,235

37. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

(1) �As of December 31, 2012, the debt guarantees provided by the Group, excluding the Company’s subsidiaries,  
are as follows:

(*) �The guarantee amounts in foreign currency are translated into Korean Won using the Base Rate announced by Seoul Money Brokerage Services, Ltd. as of December 31, 2012.

(2) �As of December 31, 2012, the Group is involved in domestic and foreign lawsuits as a defendant.  
In addition, the Group is involved in lawsuits for product liabilities and other. The Group obtains insurances 
for potential losses which may result from product liabilities and other lawsuits. The Group is currently un-
able to estimate the outcome or the potential financial impact of such lawsuits but expects it will not have 
a material effect on its consolidated financial statements.

(3) �As of December 31, 2012, the Group’s property, plant and equipment are pledged as collateral for various 
loans up to ￦859,007 million. In addition, the Group pledged certain bank deposits, checks, promissory notes 
and investment securities, including 213,466 shares of Kia Motors Corporation, as collateral to financial insti-
tutions and others. Certain receivables held by the Company’s foreign subsidiaries such as financial services 
receivables are pledged as collateral for their borrowings.

(4) �In 2006, the Group sold 10,658,367 shares of Hyundai Rotem Company, a subsidiary of the Company, to MSPE Metro 
Investment AB and entered into a shareholders’ agreement. MSPE Metro Investment AB is entitled to a put op-
tion to sell those shares back to the Group in certain events (as defined) in accordance with the agreement. 
In relation to the agreement, the present value of exercise price of the put option is recognized as a liability 
(other financial liability) by the Group.
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38. SEGMENT INFORMATION:

(1) �The Group has a vehicle segment, a finance segment and other. The vehicle segment is engaged in the manufac-
turing and sale of motor vehicles. The finance segment operates vehicle financing, credit card processing and 
other financing activities. Other includes the R&D, train manufacturing and other activities which cannot be 
classified as the vehicle segment or the finance segment.

(2) �Sales and operating income by operating segments are as follows:

(3) �Assets and liabilities by operating segments are as follows:

(4) Sales by region where the Group’s entities are located in are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Vehicle Finance Other Consolidation
adjustments Total

Total sales ￦ 103,878,093 ￦ 8,799,513 ￦ 5,348,113 ￦ (33,555,998) ￦ 84,469,721

Inter-company sales (32,571,552) (136,556) (847,890) 33,555,998 -

Net sales 71,306,541 8,662,957 4,500,223 - 84,469,721

Operating income 6,711,117 1,177,513 254,552 293,765 8,436,947

In millions of Korean Won

As of December 31, 2011

Vehicle Finance Other Consolidation
adjustments Total

Total assets ￦ 71,314,560 ￦ 48,539,075 ￦ 4,441,339 ￦ (14,814,999) ￦ 109,479,975

Total liabilities 31,209,912 42,476,276 3,013,981 (7,547,896) 69,152,273

Borrowings and debentures 6,330,586 36,683,570 1,544,696 (1,220,192) 43,338,660
In millions of Korean Won

For the year ended December 31, 2011

Vehicle Finance Other Consolidation
adjustments Total

Sales ￦ 94,381,955 ￦ 7,401,809 ￦ 3,895,091 ￦ (27,880,960) ￦ 77,797,895

Inter-company sales  (27,253,897) (113,783) (513,280) 27,880,960 -

Net sales  67,128,058 7,288,026 3,381,811 - 77,797,895

Operating income  6,633,588 1,203,430 146,324 45,487 8,028,829

In millions of Korean Won

For the year ended December 31, 2012

Korea North
America Asia Europe Other Consolidation

adjustments Total

Total sales ￦ 53,231,743 ￦ 31,515,158 ￦ 7,576,598 ￦ 25,287,990 ￦ 414,230 ￦ (33,555,998) ￦ 84,469,721

Inter-company sales (14,576,806) (6,802,632) (737,897) (11,438,663) - 33,555,998 -

Net sales 38,654,937 24,712,526 6,838,701 13,849,327 414,230 - 84,469,721

In millions of Korean Won

For the year ended December 31, 2011

Korea North
America Asia Europe Other Consolidation

adjustments Total

Total sales ￦ 51,565,160 ￦ 26,029,355 ￦ 7,387,760 ￦ 20,696,366 ￦ - ￦(27,880,746) ￦ 77,797,895

Inter-company sales  (12,866,279)  (6,199,585)  (364,463)  (8,450,419) - 27,880,746 -

Net sales  38,698,881  19,829,770  7,023,297  12,245,947 - - 77,797,895

In millions of Korean Won

As of December 31, 2012

Vehicle Finance Other Consolidation
adjustments Total

Total assets ￦ 77,264,305 ￦ 53,424,342 ￦ 5,742,620 ￦ (14,893,453) ￦ 121,537,814

Total liabilities 31,596,447 46,410,502 3,729,628 (8,116,338) 73,620,239

Borrowings and debentures 5,424,506 40,721,836 1,875,225 (2,814,315) 45,207,252
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(5) �Non-current assets by region where the Group’s entities are located in as of December 31, 2012  
and 2011 are as follows:

(*) �Sum of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and investment property.

(6) �There is no single external customer who has 10% or more of the Group’s revenues for the year ended  
December 31, 2012 and 2011.  

39. CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS:

Cost, income and loss and claimed construction from construction in progress as of December 31, 2012, and 2011 
are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Korea ￦ 18,596,981 ￦ 17,143,139

North America 1,598,120 1,724,270

Asia 1,127,336 1,111,898

Europe 2,132,063 2,175,648

Other 491,205 365,926

23,945,705 22,520,881

Consolidation adjustments (39,797) (30,297)

Total (*) ￦ 23,905,908 ￦ 22,490,584

In millions of Korean Won

Description December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011

Accumulated accrual cost ￦ 5,980,499 ￦ 7,356,916

Accumulated income 660,495 1,286,987

Accumulated loss - (164,938)

Accumulated construction in process 6,640,994 8,478,965

Progress billing (6,357,806) (8,184,570)

Due from customers 781,136 762,263

Due to customers (497,948) (467,868)

40. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS: 

(1) �The Company acquired 100% of the shares in HMF, HAS and HAAP, respectively, as of January 3, 2012 to improve 
sales networks in Europe market, and HMF has merged with HAS and HAAP as of August 31, 2012. In addition, 
the Company has obtained control over HMD to improve sales networks by acquiring additional shares (the 
Company has owned 100% of shares after acquisition) as of January 3, 2012. None of the goodwill recognized is 
expected to deductible for tax purposes.

1) �Considerations for acquisition and the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed  
at the acquisition date are as follows:

2) �Sales and net income (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2012 after the acquisition date included in the con-
solidated statements of income are as follows:

3) �Contractual gross amounts for trade receivables and expected uncollectable amounts assumed  
at acquisition date are as follows:

In millions of Korean Won

Description HMF HAS HAAP HMD

Considerations transferred ￦ 112,379 ￦ 23,904 ￦ 7,275 ￦ 136,463

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Cash and cash equivalent 57,994 32 1,724 24

Other current assets 156,136 13,899 4,837 363,377

Non-current assets 5,518 27 - 24,460

Current liabilities (142,917) (5,141) (2,511) (238,075)

Non-current liabilities (8,812) (69) (114) (55,035)

Fair value of identifiable net assets 67,919 8,748 3,936 94,751

Goodwill ￦ 44,460 ￦ 15,156 ￦ 3,339 ￦ 41,712

In millions of Korean Won

Description HMF HAS HAAP HMD

Sales ￦ 634,045 ￦ 18,093 ￦ 7,365 ￦ 1,490,908

Net income (loss) (3,221) 2,102 257 (12,083)

In millions of Korean Won

Description HMF HAS HAAP HMD

Contractual gross amounts ￦ 63,740 ￦ 13,638 ￦ 4,133 ￦ 18,306

Expected uncollectable amounts (4,704) (1) (114) (652)
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(2) �Hyundai KEFICO Corporation reduced the capital through the compensational cancellation of 1,670,000 shares 
among its common shares as of August 1, 2012. As a result of the capital reduction, the Company has owned 
100% of shares and obtained control over Hyundai KEFICO Corporation after the capital reduction. The Com-
pany measured goodwill by using the acquisition-date fair value of its interests.

1) �Considerations for acquisition and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed  
at the acquisition date are as follows:

2) �Sales of ￦643,567 million and net income of ￦36,040 million arising after the acquisition date are included in the 
consolidated statement of income. Had the acquisition date been as of January 1, 2012, sales and net income in-
cluded in the consolidated statement of income for the year ended December 31, 2012 would be ￦1,524,399 million 
and ￦71,950 million, respectively. Contractual gross amounts for trade receivables are ￦266,577 million and the 
contractual amounts not expected to be collected are ￦50 million at the acquisition date.

(3) �Hyundai Capital Services, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, obtained control of GE Capital Korea, Co., Ltd. by 
acquiring 100% of its shares as of July 3, 2012. 

1) �Considerations for acquisition and the amounts of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed  
at the acquisition date are as follows:

2) �Hyundai Capital Services, Inc. should adjust the difference which will occur from the impairment of the financial 
receivables and changes in the remaining value of the leased assets for the term of guarantee of loss of three 
years in accordance with contract of compensation for loss with GE Capital Asia Investments, Inc. No indemnifi-
cation assets based on the term are recognized at the acquisition date.

3) �Sales of ￦20,554 million arising after the acquisition date are included in the consolidated statements of income. 
Had the acquisition date been as of January 1, 2012, sales included in the consolidated statement of income for 
the year ended December 31, 2012 would be ￦49,486 million.

41. AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The accompanying consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors 
on January 24, 2013.

In millions of Korean Won

Description Amounts

Acquisition-date fair value of the interests ￦ 185,451

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Cash and cash equivalent 53,548

Other current assets 414,762

Non-current assets 430,290

Current liabilities (582,640)

Non-current liabilities (150,134)

Fair value of identifiable net assets 165,826

Goodwill ￦ 19,625

In millions of Korean Won

Description Amounts

Considerations transferred ￦ 193,625

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed:

Cash and cash equivalent 31,985

Loans 120,143

Financial lease receivables 225,014

Operating lease assets 15,996

Borrowings (168,654)

Other (32,288)

Fair value of identifiable net assets 192,196

Goodwill ￦ 1,429
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CentenNial (EQUUS)   
The essence of Hyundai’s advanced engine 
technology is found on the Centennial, with its 
Lambda 3.8 GDi and Tau 5.0 GDi engines. 
Flowing with the times and at the same time 
leading it, it is Korea’s most prestigious luxury 
sedan.

Elantra (AVANTE) 
Elantra, beloved by the world over, conveys 
the very essence of a compact sedan through 
a dynamic performance. It was named as 2012 
North American Car of the Year, the most 
exclusive award in North America.

SONATA HYBRID 
Style, dynamic performance, and eco-friendly 
technologies for a better tomorrow. Hyundai’s 
Sonata Hybrid lets drivers experience the new 
tomorrow of hybrid vehicles.

SONATA 
With 28 years of history and renown under its name, Sonata, Hyundai’s 
most famous mid-sized sedan, is back with a design inspired by the fluid 
dynamism of an orchid and high performance engines.

Genesis Coupe
The newly introduced Genesis Coupe sports 
a more dynamic and individualistic design and 
exceptional power to offer a faster-paced, 
exciting ride.

Azera (Grandeur)  
Inspired by the magnificent descent of 
a soaring eagle, the Azera is synonymous with 
the history of the luxury sedan in Korea. 
It has always fulfilled the desires of leaders 
looking for driving pleasure by featuring 
Hyundai’s latest technologies.

Genesis 
Placing first in J.D. Power’s 2012 Vehicle 
Dependability Study (VDS), Genesis continues 
to be recognized by the world over as 
Hyundai’s most representative luxury sedan.

ACCENT 4Door / 5Door
New concept near mid-sized sedan equipped with dynamic style and cutting-edge features for 
the ‘Style Guy’ living the most passionate and energetic period of his life.

Veloster / Veloster Turbo
Veloster was born as Hyundai’s communication brand incorporating the innovative cultural and 
emotional values of the new generation. With one door on the driver’s side and two doors on the 
passenger’s side, Veloster’s refreshing take on style has captivated the hearts of young people 
all over the world.

Elantra (AVANTE) Coupe
Elantra Coupe is a 2-door model of Elantra 
with dynamic coupe styling. It provides 
dynamic driving performance with the high-
performance Nu 1.8 MPi engine with maximum 
of 150 ps power output and 18.2 kg.m torque.

* The images in this brochure may differ from the actual cars for sale.
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Santa Fe
Santa Fe sets the standard for the family SUV, at home, offroad or in the suburbs.

Veracruz (ix55) 
Veracruz created a new genre in automobiles
—the Luxury Utility Vehicle. 
A majestic and dignified style fused with eco-
friendly performance has created Hyundai’s 
most advanced SUV.

i40 / i40 Sedan
European sensibility and premium exemplified 
in a new concept CUV that marries style with 
utility.

i30 
The i30 inspires with its sporty style that ap-
peals to the senses, a truly luxurious interior 
space, and high performance engines. 
Stylish and smart, the i30 is always in fashion.

i20 
Beloved by Europeans looking for style and 
efficiency, the all-new i20 is now eco-friendly, 
too, with a newly developed eco-friendly U2 
diesel engine.

Grand Santa Fe 
Grand Santa Fe offers best-in-class amenity features and plentiful 
space through the widened roof-line. It is a premium SUV born for the family 
enjoying the outdoor leisure life. 

TUCSON ix (ix35) 
Just like its slogan, Tucson ix is the sexiest 
thing to move. From the SUV’s attractive design 
to the smallest details, Tucson ix is style itself.

ix20 
Dynamic style and versatile functionality, on 
top of a Euro NCAP five-star safety perfor-
mance, make the ix20 the latest big player in 
the small MVP category.

i10 
Whizzing through the backstreets of Europe, 
the i10 is exactly what Europeans have been 
waiting for in style, utility, and eco-friendliness.

Hb20 
HB, standing for Hyundai Brasil, and 20, desig-
nating the compact class, is a bi-fuel vehicle 
that can utilize both bio-ethanol and gasoline. 
Named car of the year in 2012, HB20 captivates 
the hearts of Brazilian people with style and 
economy.

EON 
Eon is an Indian market-specific sub-compact 
model embodying the concept of ‘Suburban 
City Car.’ The 5-passenger hatchback features 
a front-wheel drive system with an 814 cc 
engine that has a maximum power output of 
56 ps with 20.8 km/ℓ fuel economy.

* The images in this brochure may differ from the actual cars for sale.
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DUMP TRUCK 
The newly reinforced heavy-duty Hyundai dump truck provides greater durability 
and superior performance, responding exactly to customer needs.

HD65 / HD72 / HD78 
The Hyundai HD series bring a new dynamism 
and capability to light and medium duty trucks. 
Tough but stylish, comfortable and dependable, 
the HD series offer the perfect vehicle to meet 
the demands of the trucking business.

HD45 
Ideal for heavy traffic operation, the narrow 
1,760 mm width of the Hyundai HD45 also fits 
it to city streets. A clean exterior style and 
integrated details such as the driver’s step and 
rear cab protection make it look good as well.

TRACToR TRUCK 
The Hyundai tractor truck delivers more cost-
effectiveness, high payload, and maximum 
vehicle performance in long-distance transport.

MIXER TRUCK 
The Hyundai mixer truck offers the best value 
for money today. Built for construction and 
ready to take on heavy loads, it offers the per-
fect “mix” of performance, price, and reliability 
with top mixing and pouring performance and 
ruggedized construction for a long service life.

H-100 
The stronger and quieter H100, with its relaxed 
character lines and a new quality of comfort, 
comes with an efficient cargo space that allows 
convenient cargo loading and unloading up to 
1 ton, a high performance diesel engine, and a 
safer and more powerful brake system.

UNIVERSE 
Sophisticated style, powerful performance 
ensured by the independently developed 
Powertech engine, comfortable ride, and easy 
maintenance make the Universe first class all 
the way.

AEROTOWN 
The redesigned front bumper absorbs low 
impact forces better while stylish headlamps 
add a note of sophistication. Passenger comfort 
is maximized with ergonomically contoured 
seats. On top of it all, Aero Town is easy to 
drive thanks to the advanced steering system.

County 
Futuristic and unique, County’s style beautifully 
harmonizes with its practical personality. 
Rounded edges and flush fitting surfaces con-
tribute to a clean, simple image.

HD120 
The Hyundai HD120 sets the standard in the 
medium duty truck category by combining top 
performance, reliability, and economy.

CARGO TRUCK 
With an unbeatable top performance, the 
Hyundai cargo truck is built tough to run reli-
ably and economically, working around the 
clock to carry maximum payloads often under 
extreme road conditions.

SUPER AERO CITY 
Super Aero City provides a superb exterior and 
an ergonomic driver’s seat and instrument panel 
that offer a comfortable passenger car-like 
driving experience. Expanded wind shield and 
vertical-type MFR headlamps not only ensure 
safe driving, but also offer a luxurious feeling.

H-1 (Grand Starex) 
A dynamic and urban design, thoughtful consideration of user convenience such as the seat 
variation feature, maximum five-star EURO NCAP rating, efficient technologies, and robust stability 
make the H-1 simply perfect for both business and pleasure.

* The images in this brochure may differ from the actual cars for sale.
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Brilliant is the laughter
Hyundai makes 
every moment brilliant

brilliant.hyundai.com

l i ve br i l l iant



Through new thinking, we will discover new possibilities

that our customers, the world, and the times we live in never expected.

And we will make sure that the possibilities become a reality,

that they become new values that customers can experience and enjoy.

Hyundai is ‘New Thinking. New Possibilities.’
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People’s expectation toward individual mobility requires more than just a convenient means of transportation. The old 
understanding of cars has become outdated. A car represents individuals’ lifestyles, and it became an integral part of 
their lives. At the same time, the automobile industry has experienced seismic change. Hyundai Motor Company has 
grown rapidly to become one of the largest automakers, backed by world class production capability and superior quality. 
We have now reached a point where we need a qualitative approach to bring bigger ideas and relevant solutions to our 
customers. This is an opportunity to move forward and we have developed a new brand slogan that encapsulates our 
willingness to take a big leap. Led by our new slogan and the new thinking underlying it, we will become a company that 
keeps challenging itself to unlock new possibilities for people and the planet.

www.facebook.com/hyundaiworldwide 
www.youtube.com/hyundaiworldwide

plus.google.com/+hyundai

Hyundai Motor Company  
www.hyundai.com
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